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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mERE

For the year ended 30 June

BEAA=TRHLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

g T ZZZTF ZT-NF ZT-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

Revenue L 657,726 380,000 311,835 282,037 270,195

Income tax expense FTERFAY 26,552 156,950 8,897 8,754 6,429

Profit for the year FREF 115,780 77,832 44,853 32,252 9,017

Profit for the year attributable to Vi/NCIE YN
owners of the Company 15 FE R T 115,780 77,832 44,853 32,252 9,017
As at 30 June
RAA=1+H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

g T ZIZZTF ZT-NF ZT-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET FET FET FET

Total assets BEE 719,229 490,208 410,827 341,924 335,498

Total liabilties BAE 251,866 104,930 87,710 42,710 45,808
Equity attributable to RRAFIREREA

equity holders of the Company FEfE R 467,363 385,278 323,117 299,214 289,690
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2021/2022 was continuing to be a challenging year to Sun
Hing Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to the “Group”). The Group was exposed under
several market challenges and uncertainties, such as continuous
impact of COVID-19 pandemic on unstable material supplies and
port congestion, ongoing trade dispute between the United States of
America (the “USA") and the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
and geopolitical tension that led to pessimistic economy sentiment all
over the world.

Although the abovementioned factors did not directly discourage the
financial performance to our Group in the year 2021/2022, they posed
challenges to majority sectors in Hong Kong by undermining investment
and business environment. Furthermore, the outbreak of the COVID-19
aggravated global economy and changed consumers’ behavior around
the world.

The Group's 2021/2022 profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company recorded the historical high to HK$115.8 million (2020/2021:
HKS$77.8 million). The increase in the profit was mainly attributable to
some customers resuming their key and ongoing projects previously
postponed by COVID-19 pandemic, and the Group adopted stringent
and continuous cost control policies during the year. Basic earnings per
share was HK24.12 cents (2020/2021: HK16.22 cents). The Company
has proposed a final dividend of HK8.8 cents (2020/2021: HK4.0
cents). Together with interim dividend of HK1.8 cents (2020/2021:
HK1.5 cents), the Company has proposed a total dividend of HK8.6
cents (2020/2021: total dividend of HK5.5 cents), which the Group
intended to maintain a stable dividend return to reward our shareholders
of the Group and to reflect our confidence in our strong financial
performance.

Looking forward to the Year 2022/2023, the market will still be full
of challenges and uncertainties, disregarding the encouraging result
we achieved in the Year 2021/2022. Under the ongoing threat from
COVID-19 pandemic and geopolitical tension in Asia, worldwide
economy is expected to be volatile. The Group will continue to maintain
its stringent cost control measures, enhance the Group’s overall
production efficiency and maintain its competitiveness in the market.
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FERE

In addition, the Group will further devote resources and manpower
to boost internal operation effectiveness, and will grasp opportunities
arising from potential new markets, such as environmental friendly
packaging market for sustainable growth. While we are also proactively
looking into the market for the latest printing associated technologies,
advanced machinery and innovative materials, to provide value-added
services to our customers and to differentiate ourselves from our
competitors.

Last but not least, employees are the greatest asset to the Group, we
will persist in providing training to our employees, in order to facilitate
the upcoming development of the Group.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, investors, business partners, management and all the
staff members for their increasing support and dedication to the Group.
We will continue to provide the market with innovative, reliable and
high-quality printing products to our customers, and to drive the
Group’s business development in the long term. We believe these will
empower us to achieve a better performance and create greater value
for our customers, investors and shareholders.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 30 September 2022
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FOCUS

ON PAPER-RELATED PRINTING PRODUCTS
EmUREDNRmAE

Products are mainly used in the markets of various consumer products

as well as for the purposes of promotion, advertising and education.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmRDN

REVIEW OF OPERATION

Sun Hing Printing Holdings Group is a one-stop printing service
provider. Our printing services can be broadly categorised into (i)
packaging printing services which cover, among others, corrugated
boxes, gift boxes, card boxes and product boxes; (i) paper gift set
printing services which cover, among others, gift sets containing gift
boxes, cards, booklets and hardback books; (i) card printing services
which cover, among others, colour cards, insert cards, warranty cards
and plain cards; (iv) smart package printing services which cover,
among others, Near-field communications (‘NFC”) tags, Radiofrequency
|dentification ("RFID") labels and Real QR code; and (v) other printing
services which cover, among others, stickers, colour papers, yupo
papers and red packets.

Despite there was sign of recovery in the global retail market and
resumption of economic activities, printing industry in Hong Kong is still
encountering intense competition. Continuous impact of COVID-19
pandemic on unstable material supplies and port congestion, lockdown
of boarder between the PRC and Hong Kong, geopolitical tension and
anxiety about the economic recession are repeatedly challenging the
Group’s business operations and development.
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REVIEW OF OPERATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 73.0% to
approximately HK$657.7 million for the year ended 30 June 2022
compared to last year. The increase in the Group's revenue was
mainly due to increase in contribution from packaging and paper gift
set printing services as a result of resumption of the key and ongoing
projects by some customers, which were postponed by the COVID-19
pandemic in previous years, and more revenue generated by some
projects as compared to the revenue level prior to the COVID-19
pandemic. In addition, the Group had devoted more resources and
time to promote the smart package and sustainable products to the
customers, which created value-added and quality services to our
customers. The gross profit also increased by approximately 76.2%
from approximately HK$151.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2021
to approximately HK$266.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2022,
as a result of the increase in revenue and the stringent cost control
adopted by the Group.

With the increase in revenue and the stringent cost control adopted,
our gross profit margin also increased from approximately 39.9%
during the year ended 30 June 2021 to approximately 40.6% during
the year ended 30 June 2022. Our net profit for the year increased
by approximately HK$38.0 million from approximately HK$77.8 million
for the year ended 30 June 2021 to approximately HK$115.8 million
for the year ended 30 June 2022, as a result of the resumption of the
key and ongoing projects by some customers, which were postponed
by the COVID-19 pandemic in previous years and the stringent
cost control policies placed by management. The net profit margin
decreased from approximately 20.5% for the year ended 30 June 2021
to approximately 17.6% for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 June 2022 was
HK24.12 cents, compared to a basic earnings per share of HK16.22
cents for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRRDN

BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW EREBENEE
The Group comprises five key business units (2021: five). AEERAE(ZE=—F A EZXKEMAE
B

Revenue contribution for the year ended 30 June 2022

BE-—E-—HXA=Z1tHLFENKRIZSE

3.7%1.6%
4.1%

® Packaging Printing &% ENR
@ Paper Gift Set Printing 4532 S &2 ENF|
® Card Printing F 5 K2 EN R
©® Smart Package Printing %5 &£ 55 ENR|
35. 1 % ® Other Printing E 1 ENR
55.5%
Revenue contribution for the year ended 30 June 2021
BE-E-—-FXA=1tHLEENKRFZER/M
2.5%
3.2%
10.3%
® Packaging Printing &5 E[Jffll
@ Paper Gift Set Printing #4512 R ELENF|
® Card Printing #2022 ENfI
31.5% .
® Smart Package Printing & g £ 2£ E
® Other Printing E b ENf

52.5%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW ¢
Packaging printing

Packaging printing services cover, among others, corrugated boxes,
gift boxes, card boxes and product boxes. For the year ended
30 June 2022, revenue from packaging printing increased by
approximately 15.3% to approximately HK$230.3 million as compared
to approximately HK$199.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2021,
The increase in revenue from packaging printing was mainly caused
by recovery of the retail markets in Europe, USA and Hong Kong and
resumption of the economic activities in those regions during the year. It
slightly boosted the demand on packaging boxes in those regions.

Paper gift set printing

Paper gift set printing services cover, among others, gift sets containing
gift boxes, cards, booklets and hardback books. For the year ended
30 June 2022, revenue from paper gift set printing increased by
approximately 205.4% to approximately HK$365.2 milion as compared
to approximately HK$119.6 million for the year ended 30 June 2021,
The increase in revenue from paper gift set printing was benefited from
resumption of key and ongoing projects by some customers, which
were delayed by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in previous
years. And the Group has generated more revenue from some projects
as compared to the revenue level prior to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Furthermore, some foreign customers had switched back their
production lines from Southeast Asian countries back to the PRC, as
there were more effective anti-epidemic measures being taken in the
PRC.

Card printing

Card printing services cover, among others, colour cards, insert cards,
warranty cards and plain cards. For the year ended 30 June 2022,
revenue from card printing decreased by approximately 30.6% to
approximately HK$27.2 million as compared to 2021. The decrease
in revenue from card printing was mainly caused by launches of
new board and card game projects in the previous years, which it
took time for the market to absorb the previously launched products.
Thus, it results in a drop in orders placed on card printing products
consequently.

Smart package printing

Smart package printing services cover, among others, RFID labels,
NFC tags and Real QR code, in order to provide value-added services
to our existing and potential customers. For the year ended 30 June
2022, revenue from smart package printing increased by approximately
102.5% to approximately HK$24.3 milion as compared to 2021, The
increase in the revenue from smart package printing was generated as
more retail customers were willing to organize promotional sales under
the recovery of the retail markets in Europe, USA and Hong Kong,
leading to more customers’ orders in smart package printing products.

Other printing

Other printing services cover, among others, stickers, colour papers,
yupo papers and red packets. For the year ended 30 June 2022,
revenue from other printing increased by approximately 12.6% to
approximately HK$10.7 million as compared to 2021. The increase in
revenue from other printing services was mainly because these was an
increase in orders placed on red packets products during the current
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DM

OUTLOOK

The year 2021/2022 was challenging due to continuous influence of
COVID-19 pandemic, geopolitical tension and anxiety about the global
economic recession. Furthermore, uncertain material supplies and
port congestion, volatility of material costs, increase in labor costs,
and imposition of various stringent environmental control required by
different countries and cities on printing industry are posting additional
challenges to the Group’s business operations and development in the
foreseeable future.

To mitigate the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has taken
several measures, such as providing face masks and hand sanitizers,
strict monitoring on body temperature and maintaining social distance
in factory area, to secure the health and safety of our staff and to
ensure smooth operation of the Group. Despite the improvement in
the current year's performance, the Group is currently accelerating
machine automation and seeking for advanced printing technologies in
the market. In light of uncertain business environment, our management
always maintains a stringent control over our manufacturing costs in
order to make our printing products to be more competitive in the
market and be cautious on pricing of our printing products. We have
also worked closely with our existing customers to understand their
needs and provided the value-added services for them to maintain
mutual relationship. In addition, our Group is exploring opportunities
on promotion of our smart package and sustainable products to our
customers, which can differentiate ourselves from our competitors. With
the Group's experienced management team and reputation in printing
industry, our management believes that the Group is well-equipped
to deal with the forthcoming challenges and to maintain sustainable
growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 73.0% to
approximately HK$657.7 million for the year ended 30 June 2022
compared to approximately HK$380.1 million for the year ended
30 June 2021, The increase in the revenue is mainly due to higher
contribution from packaging and paper gift set printing as a result of the
resumption of the key and ongoing projects by some customers, which
were postponed by the COVID-19 pandemic in previous years, and
more revenue generated by some projects as compared to the revenue
level before COVID-19 pandemic.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by approximately 76.2% from approximately
HK$151.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2021 to approximately
HK$266.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2022, as a result of
the increase in revenue and the stringent cost control adopted by the
Group.

With increase in revenue and the stringent cost control adopted, our
gross profit margin increased from approximately 39.9% during the year
ended 30 June 20271 to approximately 40.6% during the year ended
30 June 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$108.4 million and
approximately HK$61.3 million for the years ended 30 June 2022
and 20271 respectively. Administrative expenses increased was mainly
due to (i) rise in redundancy costs for administrative staff in Shenzhen;
(i) a general salary increment in both Hong Kong and China; and (i)
increase in the performance-related salary expenses as a result of
improvement in the Group’s overall performance.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses was approximately HK$10.2 million
and approximately HK$5.3 million for the years ended 30 June 2022
and 2021, respectively, which mainly included salaries of salespeople
and freight charges. Selling and distribution expenses increased was
mainly because of an increase in sales made during the current year
and also increase in redundancy costs for seling and distribution staff
in Shenzhen.

Other operating income/(expenses), net

The Group recorded other operating expenses of approximately
HK$3.6 million for the year ended 30 June 2022, while the Group
recorded other operating income of approximately HK$4.2 million in last
year. The turnaround from other operating income to other operating
expenses for the year ended 30 June 2022 was mainly due to loss
arising from disposal of fixed assets in Shenzhen factory and increase
in the exchange loss during the current year.

Other income and government grants

Other income and government grants were approximately HK$5.6
million for the year ended 30 June 2021 and drop to approximately
HK$3.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2022. The decrease in the
amount was mainly due to less government grants received under
Employment Support Scheme from the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and under the technological
transformation scheme from the Shenzhen Industrial and Information
Technology Bureau of the PRC Government.

Finance costs

Finance costs were approximately HK$6.3 million and approximately
HKS$0.9 million for the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021
respectively. The increase in the finance costs was mainly resulted
from the lease liabilities for the new lease of a factory in Huizhou which
commenced in October 2021, leading to an increase in the finance
costs recorded by the Group in the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (cor

Income tax expense
Income tax expense increased by approximately HK$10.6 milion from
approximately HK$16.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2021 to
approximately HK$26.6 million for the year ended 30 June 2022. The
effective tax rates for the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021 are
18.7% and 17.0%, respectively.

Liquidity and capital resources

Our net assets amounted to approximately HK$467.4 million and
approximately HK$385.3 million as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021
respectively. The increase in net assets was primarily due to the profit
generated from the operation during the current year.

The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash and cash
equivalents and net cash generated from operating activities. The
directors expects that the Group will rely on the internally generated
funds and unutilised net proceeds from the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange on 16 November 2017, in the
absence of unforeseen circumstances.

As at 30 June 2022, our cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$237.4 million (30 June 2021: approximately
HK$204.4 million); and our net current assets were approximately
HK$265.9 million (30 June 2021: approximately HK$253.6 million).
The current ratio, being current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 3.1 and 3.4 as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had approximately HK$237.4 million
total cash on hand, of which approximately HK$0.3 million was
restricted cash and denominated in Renminbi. For the remaining
balance approximately HK$237.1 million, mainly approximately
HK$18.9 million was denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, approximately
HK$129.8 million was denominated in US Dollars, and approximately
HK$88.4 million was denominated in Renminbi. The Group’s cash
in US Dollars and Renminbi was held to support its core operational
needs. In addition, the Group had approximately HK$183.3 million of
fixed time deposits with maturity within 12 months. For the fixed time
deposits approximately HK$9.0 million was denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, approximately HK$93.6 milion was denominated in US Dollars
and approximately HK$80.7 million was denominated in Renminbi.

As at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing bank borrowings, and thus the computation of the
gearing ratios were not applicable as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June
2021.

During the year, the Group recorded over HK$68.8 million in capital
expenditure, which was mostly deployed for automation, equipment
upgrades and leasehold improvement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE
OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilites and did not
pledge any assets as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021.

OUR EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2022, we had 1,256 employees in Hong Kong and
the Mainland China. During the peak season namely from June
to September for each year, in order to maximise our production
capacity, we expand our employees for production, who are principally
responsible for certain post-press processes and packaging which
have to be done manually and cannot otherwise be achieved by
automatic machines.

Our direct labour cost, including salaries, bonuses and other
employee’s benefits, amounted to approximately HK$74.6 milion and
approximately HK$40.2 million for the years ended 30 June 2022
and 2021, respectively. The Group had recorded redundancy costs
amounted to approximately HK$20.2 million for the year ended 30 June
2022 (2021: approximately HK$3.5 million). Remuneration packages
are generally structured by reference to market terms and individual
qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally reviewed annually based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HKE.8 cents per share
in cash. The proposed final dividend is subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
These, together with an interim dividend of HK1.8 cents (2021: HK1.5
cents) per share paid in March 2022, will make a total dividend of
HK8.6 cents (2021: HK5.5 cents) per share for the current year. The
proposed final dividend is expected to be distributed on Thursday,
22 December 2022 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Monday, 5 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DM

USE OF PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the initial public offering were HK$124.0 million after
deducting all the direct costs associated with the Listing.

Up to the date of this report, the Group had used approximately
HK$80.6 million for equipment upgrades on the improvement of the
production process, approximately HK$31.0 million for relocation of
a factory in Shenzhen (“Shenzhen Factory”), approximately HK$8.3
million for general working capital and approximately HK$1.3 million for
the upgrade of enterprise resources planning (‘ERP”) system. During
the year, the net proceeds, have been used for the purpose consistent
with the section headed “Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” as set
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 2 November 2017 (the
“Prospectus”).

Details of the allocation of the net proceeds, and the utilisation of the
net proceeds up to the date of this report are set out below:

FrEREAR
M LA B EERAK - BRAME
EFREREFRAI140EBET -

RAREBH  AEECERLH0EESBIT
HBI0BEE B HS3EEB LN I3ES
BEDAARNELEETF 2 REL BB
FYHE - —REBEESRABRCEERAE
(TERP)) R - FN - FIBFUIEFECIREAR
ABMA—ZT—tHF+—A_BHNBRERE ([
RER]) rE [ RRFTEIRAMBRERR] —&
HFHNAESA -

RARE B - PISHIRFREN D BB A RPT
SRIBFENSHABEREINAT

Actual usage Unutilised net

up to proceeds up to
Percentage of Planned the date of the date of
Intended application of the net proceeds total proceeds applications this report this report
FrSTIEEER HERE BEARERS RARERH
RERE BENEAL SHERRER WERERER WRBRALE
% HKS in million HKS in million HKS in million
BEET BEET FEET
Purchase four presses by stages (Note 7) 65.0 80.6 80.6 -
PEREEM SR (K1)
Relocation of Shenzhen Factory (Note 2) 250 310 310 -
mERNEE (o)
Upgrade ERP system (Note 3) 33 4.1 13 2.8
FRERPREE (H1#25)
General working capital 6.7 83 8.3 -
~HEERS
Totdl 100.0 124.0 1212 28
st
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

The Group has kept searching for upgrade of our machines in the
market and utilised the relevant proceeds from the initial public
offering of approximately HK$80.6 million up to the date of this report
for purchase of press and related machines to improve the overall
production efficiency. Hence, we had fully utilised the relevant proceeds
on or before 30 June 2022.

On 23 October 2021, AR EN (M) B R 2 A, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, BN TR EEBERRBER A A,
the landlord, and Mr. Chen Zhencheng, the guarantor, entered into a
formal tenancy agreement in respect of the Huizhou Factory Leasing for
a term of ten years commencing from 23 October 2021 to 22 October
2031. We have utilised the relevant proceeds from the initial public
offering of approximately HK$31.0 million up to the date of this report for
relocation of Shenzhen Factory to a factory in Huizou. Hence, we had
fully utilised the relevant proceeds on or before 30 June 2022.

The Group had entered into agreements with independent third party
ERP service providers to update our systems. Up to the date of this
report, we have already utilised HK$1.3 million to the service providers
for the update of our ERP system. We expect to fully utilise the relevant
proceeds on or before 31 December 2024.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEEARE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principle of the Company emphasizes on accountability
and transparency and is adopted in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. In addition the Company will strive to continuously
improve these practices and cultivate an ethical corporate culture.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out on in the
Code of Corporate Governance (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions in the CG Code
since 30 June 20271 up to the date of this report.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is composed of
7 directors, of which 4 are Executive Directors and 3 are Independent
Non-executive Directors. All the Independent Non-executive Directors
have appropriate professional qualifications, experience or related
industry expertise. The Directors’ biography and relevant relationships
amongst them are set out in the Directors’ and Senior Management's
Profiles section under Report of the Directors on pages 93 to 97 of this
Annual Report.

Review will be made regularly by the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirement of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Also, a balanced
composition of Executive Directors is maintained to ensure
independence and effective management. The Company has satisfied
the Listing Rules in having one of the Independent Non-executive
Directors with appropriate accounting qualifications and expertise to sit
in the Audit Committee.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 and
Appendix 16(12B) of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES co
Independent Non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications. An updated list of the Directors identifying the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the roles and functions of the
Directors is maintained on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

ed)

When selecting potential candidates for directors, skills, experience,
expertise, their devotion of time, potential conflicts of interests are key
factors of consideration. The Nomination Committee was set up to
make recommendations to the Board on the selection and nomination
of candidates for directorship. Majority of members of the Nomination
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board is accountable to shareholders and is responsible for the
formulation of the Group’s strategy, overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group.

Key and important decisions are fully discussed at the board meetings.
All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters proposed for
inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at regular intervals. The
Board would meet more frequently as and when required.

All the Directors are covered by the Director's & Officer’s Liability
Insurance, which is also part of our best practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N ,A\A$E¢

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES (continued)

The attendance record of the Directors at the board meetings since
30 June 2021 up to the date of this report is as follows:

EXSARARESZTEER @)

B-Z - —FRA=THRREZEAREAD
BERhFEEEER IRBOT

Attendance
Board meetings
HE R
EEg8E
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang BREAE ST 4/4
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin PR AR ER S A 4/4
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PR SRR ST A 4/4
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond fR&EERE 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry Rt kE 4/4
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis KAk 4/4
Mr. WONG Kam Fai HipEL & 3/4

Notice of at least fourteen days is given to the Directors for regular
meetings, while Board papers are sent to the Directors not less than
three days before the scheduled date of a board or board committee
meeting. The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication. The Company Secretary
ensures that the procedure and all applicable rules and regulations are
strictly and fully complied with. Minutes of board meetings and board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Directors.

Directors have full access to information on the Group and are able to
obtain independent professional advice whenever necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will meet with other Directors and
key management executives, and will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment.
Subsequently, he will receive briefings and other professional
development necessary to ensure that he has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Company and he is fully aware of
his responsibility with the Company.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors
are also invited to participate in the Company events to familiarize
themselves with the operations of the Company and create opportunity
to communicate with other management members of the Company.

The records of training as received by each Director for the year ended
30 June 2022 are summarized as follows:
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Type of trainings

EHER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang FRE A ST A
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin RSB A A
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PRABA S A
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond fREERE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry RITEE A
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis PN s A
Mr. WONG Kam Fal mIRIE A A
Al reading materials relating to general business, regulatory updates on A MEEE—BRER  ETRAGEHEEURES

listing rules and board practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND
DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
govemance functions as set out below:

0] developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(v)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee is the person to be notified for securities
dealings by Directors and a designated form is used for notification and
acknowledgement purpose.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, their compliance with the required standards of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transaction since
30 June 2021 up to the date of this report and there was no event of
non-compliance.

Senior management of the Company is also required to comply with
the guidelines on similar terms as set out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company places great importance on internal control and risk
management to safeguard the assets of the Company and the interests
of shareholders. The Board has overall responsibility for the system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for maintaining an
effective system of interal control. The Audit Committee reviews the
process by which the Group evaluates its control environment and risk
assessment process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed through the assistance of the Company’s Intermal Control
Consultant.

The Internal Control Consultant assesses risk exposure, formulates
audit plan and ensures that the audit programs cover key internal
control areas of operating subsidiaries on a rotational basis for the
review by the Audit Committee.

The Internal Control Consultant reports her findings and
recommendations to management of the Company and the Audit
Committee. The Internal Control Consultant also monitors the follow-
up actions agreed upon in response to her recommendations and
reports to the Audit Committee the progress of implementation of those
recommendations.

With the assistance of the Audit Committee and the Company’s Internal
Control Consultant, the Board is satisfied that the overall financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management of the
Group continues to be effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. The Directors ensure that the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilites on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 107 to 112 of this Annual
Report.

TRERBE

R AR EE 12
ARAFFFERAMEEREAREER - UREAR
REBERERNEG -EFTE2EAE ARPEE
BE - TmAEKRY - BEREZEEHPHEESR
TEAEBARAMEZEFEZEE EXEES
B AEEFEEERRE 2 REF RERFGE
o AREBARR AR EEER 2 B EERE
B R EERER 2 Tk o

MEEEERFERR « BRI BRI L ERE
ERFEGBEEEREZENBRARAZEEZN
MEEHE FREREFAZREREZES
Rg

NHEZEERRARRERENEZEZ EGER
HERFBERER ANEZBRRTEEEAER
BEMBERETE TAEXREGREZ
ERBCERERE -

EERZEERARAANMBEZEBHYT &
EZREMBREYE CEMAREERURARE
ZEBRERDRBR

ESHUBBRZEME

EEHARSHREAEE M BHRRAFER
F-BEERRAKREHBRR BT EENR
ERGERZ GRHAER o

AARZBMEMEHAEEMERERBRST
2B HRAFRFEIOTETI2E 2B
B o

23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N ’A\A$E¢

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2022, the auditors of the Company
received approximately HK$1,298,000 (2021: HK$1,254,000) for
their audit service. Non-audit service which covered taxation service
provided to the Group was approximately HK$62,000 (2021
HK$63,500) in the same vear.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises 2 Independent Non-executive
Directors and 1 Executive Director. They are Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Wong Kam Fai and Mr. Chan Peter Tit
Sang. The Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms
of reference which are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and the
senior management were reviewed by the Committee. Remuneration,
including basic salary and performance bonus. Annual salary
adjustment and performance bonus are subject to review and approval
by the Committee.

No individual directors and senior managers are allowed to determine
his or her own remuneration.

The Committee met twice since 30 June 2021 up to the date of this
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report. The attendance record of the member of the Remuneration HEHHBETZAEE  FWEE KB L FLH

Committee is as follows: N
Attendance
Remuneration Committee Meetings
HEE
FMEEEER

Remuneration Committee FMEESE

Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis KL e 2/2
Mr. WONG Kam Fai Ebii) Ve 1/2
Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang FREAE ST 2/2

During the vyear, the works performed by the Committee included the
following:

- the review of the performance and remuneration packages of
directors and senior management; and

- the review of the remuneration policy of the Group.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises 1 Executive Director,
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang (Committee Chairman) and 2 Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry and Mr. Wong Kam
Fai. The defined terms of reference of the Committee are set out in
wiriting and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the Board
for selection and nomination of directors, and the succession planning
of directors and senior management. The Committee also reviews
the size, structure and composition of the Board with reference to the
Company's board diversity policy and assesses the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Committee met once since 30 June 2021 and up to the date of
this report with a 100% attendance by all Committee members.

During the vyear, the works performed by the Committee included the
following:

- the recommendation of the retiring directors for re-election at the
annual general meeting;

- the review of composition of the Board; and

- the assessment of independence of the independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board to enhance
quality of its performance. The policy aims to achieve diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors including but not being limited
to skills, regional and industry experience, background, age, race,
gender and other qualities. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments are based on merit, in the content of the talents, skills
and experience, and taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the composition of
the Board under diversified perspective, and monitor the implementation
of this policy to ensure its effectiveness. It will discuss any revisions
that may be required and recommend such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the
Board members have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business.
The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

Reputation for integrity;

° Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the business and
industry;

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

° Compliance with the criteria of independence, in case for the
appointment of an independent non-executive director, as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange;

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service; and

o Any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time as
appropriate.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedure for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended 30 June 2022, there was no change
in the composition of Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors. They are Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry (Committee Chairman),
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis and Mr. Wong Kam Fai. The defined terms of
reference of the Committee are set out in writing and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control and the Company’s internal
audit function, risk management system and regulatory compliance, the
review of the Company’s financial information and compliance, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditor and assessing its independence and performance.

Since 30 June 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Committee
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held two meetings and the attendance records are as follows: WEAHMBITRAEHE  HECHEOT
Attendance
HE =
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry RITEE 2/2
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis RIGHER 2/2
Mr. WONG Kam Fal EIRIE A 2/2

27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued
The works performed by the Committee during the year included the
following:

- reviewing with the auditor on key audit and accounting matters,
and updates on regulatory rules in the auditor's Audit Committee
Report and the draft audited financial statements for the financial
year ended 30 June 2022.

- reviewing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2022 focusing on business highlights, any change of accounting
policies and practices, and compliance with accounting
standards and listing rules requirements.

- reviewing with the auditor the scope of their audit, their
communication plan, their independence, developments affecting
the Company’s business, their risk assessment and updates of
accounting standards and listing rules as affecting the Company
for the financial year ended 30 June 2022,

- reviewing the audit plan, audit progress report and significant
audit findings with management at all committee meetings.

- reviewing with management on implementation of the recommendations
on interal control made by the Internal Control Consultant.

- reviewing the risk management and interal control of the Group.

The Committee is satisfied with the review of the work of external
auditors, their audit fees, results of their audits and has recommended
to the Board their re-appointment for the financial year ending on
30 June 2023 at the forthcoming annual general meeting (‘AGM").

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. A decision to declare and pay
any dividends would require the approval of the Board and will be at
their discretion. The Board may from time to time determine and pay
to the Company’s shareholders such interim dividends as it considers
appropriate. The Board may recommend the payment of final dividends
which are required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meetings.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Company recognizes the importance of communication with
the shareholders of the Company, both individual and institutional as
well as potential investors. The Company adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring that shareholders are
provided with timely information about the Company and enabling them
to engage actively with the Company and to exercise their rights in an
informed manner.

The AGM also provides a good opportunity for communication between
the Board and shareholders. The Executive Chairman of the Board, the
Chairman of the respective Committees as well as the external auditors
are normally present to answer questions as raised by shareholders.
Notice of the AGM and the related circular are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

Votes of the shareholders at general meeting will be taken by poll in
accordance with the Listing Rules. Detailed procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained to shareholders at the beginning of the general
meeting to ensure that shareholders are familiar with the voting
procedures. Each issue will be proposed by a separate resolution by the
Chairman of the general meeting. The poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the same day of
the general meeting. Each general meeting, other than an annual general
meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”).

The 2021 AGM was held on 7 December 2021 at 10/F, United Centre,
95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong. Businesses transacted at the
2021 AGM included the adoption of audited consolidated financial
statements, the approval of final dividend, the re-election of Directors
and fixing of the Directors’ fees, the re-appointment of auditors, and the
renewal of general mandates with respect to the repurchase of shares
and the issue of new shares.

The attendance records of the Directors at the 2021 AGM are set out
below:
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Directors AGM attended
Bx HERRBFAE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang FRE A ST v/
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin RSB S AE v
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PRABA S AE v/
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond fREESE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHTES

Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry Rt kE v
Mr. CHU Po Kuen Louis ReLrEEs v
Mr. WONG Kam Fai =gk & X
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(Continued)

Procedures and right for shareholders to

convene EGM

- An EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
(the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
Pe held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

- The requisition must state clearly the names of the Eligible
Shareholders concerned, specify the objects of the meeting, and
be signed by the Eligible Shareholders concerned. The Eligible
Shareholders must prove their shareholdings in the Company to
the satisfaction of the Company.

- The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board
will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the requirements under the Articles to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order or the Shareholders concerned have failed to
deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call
for an EGM.

- If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures and right for shareholders to
convene EGM (Coninued)

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Companies Law (Revised) of
Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles, shareholders who
wish to move a resolution may by means of requisition convene an
EGM.,

Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company's
registered office. Shareholders are encouraged to access to the
Company website at http://www.sunhingprinting.com for all relevant
information including Company’s announcements, press releases,
financial highlights, the Company’s constitutional documents and
detailed procedures for shareholders to convene meetings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has a proactive policy for promoting investor
relations and communications by maintaining a regular dialogue
with investors and other stakeholders. The Company’'s website at
http://www.sunhingprinting.com also features a dedicated Investor
Relations section to facilitate communication with shareholders and
investors. Corporate information and other relevant financial and
non-financial information are made available electronically and in a
timely manner.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

The Group is pleased to present its environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”") report (the “Report”) to all its stakeholders. The
content contained herein focuses on providing an overview of the
ESG performance of its major operations in the People’'s Republic of
China (‘PRC") and Hong Kong from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022
(the “Reporting Year”). This also facilitates the Group to conduct
thorough performance review and evaluation to enhance its overall
performance results in the future. The Reporting Year coincides with its
financial year.

Scope of the Report

This report covers the reporting period from 1 July 2021 to
30 June 2022, and makes relevant disclosures in accordance with
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
and compiles with the “Comply or Explain” provision therein. The
Report summarizes our ESG performance during the Reporting Year,
with respect to environmental protection, emission reduction, safe
workplace, employees training and drills, supply chain management
and community investment and engagement. Focuses are placed
on certain aspects closely relevant to our shareholders and other
stakeholders, with our full commitment to sustainable development
of the Group as a whole. Unless otherwise stated, the calculations of
relevant Key Performance Indicators (‘KPIs") were referenced to the
“How to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting guidance on
Environment KPIs” and “How to prepare an ESG Reporting Appendix 3:
Reporting guidance on Social KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange.

The present scope of the ESG Report covers the principal operating
activities of the Group’s manufacturing and sales of printing products
which are operating in the PRC. To raise the comprehensiveness of
our ESG disclosure in the environmental aspect, the emission from
our downstream transportation and distribution is newly included in the
Scope 3 reporting scope starting from the Reporting Year. The Group
considered the operation of the Hong Kong office is immaterial to the
Group’s environmental performance, therefore, the KPIs data of the
Hong Kong office had been excluded from the current ESG Report.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD (con
Scope of the Report (Continued)

The Group would like to achieve the following goals on setting the
environmental, social and governance policies:

1. To minimize the burden of the environment
2. To identify and prioritise the environmental and social issues
3. To foster the innovative culture

4, To respond to major crisis and market changes in a timely
manner

5. To safeguard human rights and social culture

6. To actively engage stakeholders in the decision-making process
7. To nurture and empower our employees

8. To support the local community

Reporting Principle

The ESG report adheres to the ESG Reporting Guidelines set out in
the Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, including materiality, quantitative and
consistency. Detalls are illustrated as follows:

Materiality

The content of the ESG Report is determined based on the stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. The Group has identified
ESG related issues, gathered and reviewed the opinions from internal
management and various stakeholders, assessed the relevance and
materiality of the issues, and prepared and validated information of the
ESG Report. The ESG Report provides comprehensive coverage of the
key ESG issues of concemn to the Group's stakeholders.

Quantitative

The disclosure of Environmental, Social and Governance KPIs in
the ESG report are supported by quantitative data and measurable
standards. All applicable statistics, calculation tools, methodologies,
reference materials and sources of conversion factor used are
disclosed when presenting the emission data.
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RIE  HERERRE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD (con
Reporting Principle (Coniinued)

Consistency

To facilitate the comparison of ESG performance between years, the
Group uses consistent reporting and calculation methods as far as
reasonable, and details the significant changes in methodologies in
the relevant sections. The intensities in the Report were calculated per
hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups' revenue.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively strives to better understand and engage its
stakeholders to ensure continuous improvements. We strongly believe
that our stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business in the challenging market. The Group regularly assess
and determine our environmental, social and governance risks, and
ensure that the relevant risk management measures and internal control
systems are operating effectively. The following table shows the means
of communication with the stakeholders and the management response
to the stakeholders’ expectations and concemns:

Major stakeholders

FTEFHERE HEEER

Expectations and concerns

BEENRBEHE @)

WERR (2)

— B

BHRLBRSFEZRE ?j:@&%q%%fﬁ N
SEREBBERTERBER ZHRERTERE
WHMARSERAEHL D 2 E2R IR 2 ERE
o WATRER  BENEREAEESTES LY
TErE o

KM= EEE
AEBEEHNNRAT REAFEEEL R

BEZN  BRMSHEEY - HMRE - &
FRMIBOTISRE - FaBEREERMERE

BHBBRETMENACERER - AEEE
HFERETRE HERERRR  BREH
[ B B IR 1A b I BB IR B R 2 B e B U
7 - FRARNSAMEENBERRERERERY
AR E R EEERKIATR

Means of communication

Government/Regulatory -

authorities - Fulfil tax obligation
- Joint anti-epidemic
B EEAS - ETERER
-  BOBBEE
- HaenE

Shareholders/Investors - Retumn on investment

- Good corporate govemance system -
- Transparency and disclosure of -

corporate information

- Sustainability strategies and

development
BRR BREE - REBOR
- Eﬁ%mﬁ:\iE/D%, L
- REMEENEREREKE
- ARFEERERLER

Compliance with laws and regulations

Regular declaration
- Onsite inspection

- Laws and regulations
- EHR®R

- Eigd

- RBER

- Shareholders’ meetings
Interim and annual reports
Announcements

- Official company website
- Emall

~ e

- REREEHS
N

- AREBHE
_ BB
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS (con

Major stakeholders

Expectations and concerns

BMHON@=AEEE @)

Means of communication

FEFZEREE BB ER BREERE
Employees - Labour rights Workers’ Union
- Compensation and benefit Employees activities
- Career development Performance appraisal
- Health and workplace safety Employees handbook
- Joint anti-epidemic Trainings and drills
BT - B THE I
- FBRER BITEF
- EBEIER B EZ
- RBEEREBEZD 8 TFf
- EehE AR N BB
Customers - High quality products and services Business visit
- Timely delivery Email, phone call and
- Reasonable price communication apps
- Service value Customer satisfaction survey
- Labour protection and work safety
- Joint anti-epidemic
®F - (BEEMLERE BB FD
- rkEZE B - B RRAEARER
- ABRER EEmBERE
- ARIS(EE
- SBIRERIERD
- EE IR
Suppliers - Payment schedule Business visit
- Stable demand Email, phone call and
- Joint anti-epidemic communication apps
Supplier performance evaluation
PR - EEEER B
- REHFHXK BFBH - EFEREMERER
- EEhE HERRIEFTE

Communities

HE

- Environmental protection
- Community contribution
- Economic development
- Joint anti-epidemic

- RERE

- HEAEE

- KEER

- BE TR

Official company website
Community engagement
Employee voluntary activities

NGIN=WR i
N
ETETEF
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Year, the Group has conducted a materiality
assessment exercise to identify the most important ESG issues to
our business. This involved conducting surveys with both internal
and external stakeholders to better understand their concerns about
ESG issues, in which stakeholders have been invited to review the
importance of emerging ESG issues to the Group’s businesses. The
Group believes that input from various stakeholders allows us to better
review and prioritise issues in relation to the stakeholders’ concems,
such that our ESG strategies can better align with stakeholder
expectations and our commitment to sustainable development.

Materiality Assessment Process

Stakeholders have been invited to review the importance of emerging
ESG issues to the Group’s business, and the assessment have been
conducted in three steps, namely the identification of ESG issues,
prioritisation of questionnaire results and validation of ESG issues.

Identification
o —

e Reviewed and adopted \
emerging ESG issues;
o WBERFENINIRE g

E/El u%ﬂfu ;

Prioritisation

295

Questionnaire results were
consolidated, analysed
and assessed to identify a
prioritised list of potential

EEMFMA

AEBNRREFECHETER MM LA
HRMNWEBMEBREENRE HERER
Ao HEEEAE RN SEEEETHH
L REBBEFEHRR L RERREYR
SEEBNEEN  AREZEHRREMELIN
RE - -#HE@REREE ARERRTRNEA
BENBRADRMARAFEMNEAEEMBT

METWH P - SRS RMOBE g
R ER K B AR E O 2 RR I AR
BRMFEHDE —H -
BEERMAEBERE
FEARRE R EIRS MR RERERY
AEEEBNBEMN - MED = SHT - 2F
MABE  HEREGHE  WRBERETH
F o ARBRERS - g REGHMA -

Validation

/ e The prioritised list of materia\\

ESG issues was presented
to the Board for discussion

and validation.

Invited internal and external
stakeholders to to rate the
importance of ESG topics
in the form of questionnaire
in relation to the Group’s
business.

BER R ED S SR A 2 A
HEUARSH R EAEEE
BHEBANIERE g RkE
REENERN

material issues;

BEaHSHER  REMNE

HEAZENBRAREER
I S el

A materiality matrix was
formulated to plot the ratings
based on their importance
to the Group and to

stakeholders.

i 2 E 1R AR R
LR B ARNEE XA AR
MEEZMHMTR

/
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (contir
Identifying the material ESG-topics
The Group has invited both internal and external stakeholders such
as the management, employees, customers and suppliers to provide
feedback in the form of an online survey on ESG topics relevant to the
nature of the Group's operations. The survey covers three main areas
conceming issues about environmental, social and operating area with
28 related topics in total. With reference to the reporting scope, the
considerations of the business characteristics of the Group, as well
as the results gathered from various stakeholders, all responses from
both stakeholder groups were weighted equally, and the material topics
identified were analyzed and formulated into a materiality matrix.

Prioritisation and Materiality Matrix

With reference to the materiality matrix, the top right corner of the
matrix presents the most material topics that are related to the
Group’s operations. The most important topic identified concerns the
operational aspect relating to “Customer Satisfaction”. Other issues
of relatively higher importance include “Forest damage caused by
improper logging”, “Compliance with laws and regulations relating
to environmental protection”, “Occupational health and safety” and
“Training and development” respectively. As our business involves
providing printing services focused on paper-related printing products,
we emphasize the use of responsibly sourced forest products such as
paper materials to ensure that the environmental impact of improper
logging is avoided in our operations. On the other hand, ensuring
occupational health and safety and the training and development needs
of employees are also the comerstone to the Group’s success.

The Group is committed to continuously prioritising ESG issues
identified through materiality assessments to better direct our resources
where they are most needed, and in ways that strategically support
our business development plans. In addition to disclosing relevant
information in this Report, the Group maintains close communication
with stakeholders to ensure timely responses to all concerns and
comments. In the future, the Group is committed to maintaining
continuous communication with various stakeholders, so that we can
conduct substantive analysis from the collected feedback if necessary.
At the same time, the Group will also ensure that the focus of ESG
issues are reviewed from time to time to clearly define and identify the
importance of ESG issues of interests, so that the Group can better
prepare and provide appropriate information for future ESG reports to
better align with the interests and expectations of stakeholders.

RE  HERERBE

EEMFME @)
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (Continueq) EEMTE )

Materiality Matrix of ESG Issues
B HEREARENEEIEE )

9
; JiZ -<=
& .
-
@} 6
S&
»
D8 5 e
g @
5%
2=
EES
2
1
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Importance to Business
HEBNESL
Operating issues
EBEE
21. Supply chain management
HEEE R
22. Customer satisfaction
EEWMEE
23. Customers'’ privacy
B AL
24. Product quality and safety
EmEERLE
25. Economic performance
BRI
26. Operational compliance
EEGH
27. Corporate governance
hEES
28. Anti-corruption
RES
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BOARD STATEMENT

The Group is fully aware of the importance of efficient ESG governance
to corporate sustainability development. The Group has established an
ESG management framework with clear demarcation of responsibilities
between different levels within the governance structure to ensure the
effective implementation of the ESG governance policy in its operation.
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group assumes primary
responsibility for the supervision of the Group’'s ESG governance,
including determining the Group’s ESG approach, understanding
and controlling ESG related risks, and supervising and leading
the management and relevant departments in the formulation and
implementation of relevant policies and measures. Through the
adoption of a “top-down” management approach, the Group is able
to facilitate effective communication among all working units and allow
policymakers to better understand the day-to-day operations and
practical experiences so that appropriate plans and strategies can be
formulated.

The Board is responsible for:
o assessing and determining the Group’s ESG risks;

° ensuring the establishment of appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control systems;

° developing ESG strategies, action plans and objectives;

o monitoring the progress and performance of ESG initiatives; and

° reviewing and approving the annual ESG reports.

The Management is responsible for:
° reporting ESG-related risks and opportunities to the Board;

° provide guidance on the implementation of ESG policies and
measures;

o arranging work in accordance with the ESG strategies, action
plans and objectives formulated by the Board;

° reporting to the Board on the progress and performance of ESG
work; and

o reviewing and submitting annual ESG report to the Board for
approval.
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BOARD STATEMENT (Continued)
Functional Departments are responsible for:
o coordinate and implement specific ESG policies and measures;

o report to the management on ESG work;

o collecting information and data in relation to ESG performance of
the Group; and

° preparing annual ESG reports and reporting to the management.

The Board will continue to oversee the ESG-related work and keep
abreast of the latest ESG disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. The Board also ensures that all departments work
closely to achieve the goal of operational compliance and shouldering
social responsibility. Moving forward, the Group will develop ESG
objectives and targets that are more fitting for the Group as far as
possible for achieving better ESG performance and better meet the
expectations of stakeholders.

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL

Climate change remains one of the key environmental topic in the
contemporary society. In order to effectively address a series of
challenges brought about by climate change, the PRC government
officially announced that Mainland China has been striving for
domestically contributions in taking stronger policy measures to achieve
the goal of Carbon Peaking by 2030 and Carbon Neutrality by 2060.
In order to actively respond to the national strategic goals and meet
the requirements of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, the Group strives to
promote sustainable development, actively contribute to addressing the
challenges of change, as well as promote the philosophy of green and
low-carbon development.

EFBY 0

B *‘BF‘?E%

e WHAREBABIEE HEREBERRE
NAEHE

o MEEEERRS HEREBIE:

o WEEAREEIRE-
ZEREEE K

e kEAKRRIAM

e MERR HENERFHR URNEEE
HE -

EEeNEBAEERRE HehERHERZT

fF YEMRBFRBIMEFORE HERER

BRERTE EFSNERMBIPIETAIE

BEREEAGRRBELHEEEZAR - RER
X AEEBHEENAAREZRE  HER

ERBNRER UWERFEHFNESCGKRR » Bif
Hoih e MIEEAR R E R HIEE -
AHS  BHEEE

Efmﬂiﬁ RIFE(NAET —HEBIRE
HRE - BASUES RIEE(CASR 2 ERPE
'43IEAUHIEKEWEEPlﬁqﬂﬂ—ﬁiﬁi@ﬁéﬂx%%ﬁﬁ
ZHEMERELREZEREM  BSRR-2ZE=
TEREERIEE YR T RNTFEFIE IR P
e BREGHEERRKEEZERETE 1MW
BERETE) ZHTE  AEERNHEETFHES
B EmEH BERA RS SR s s UKk

MBSO MRIRERES -

4(Q SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED i 8ED 3l #2824 R 2 5 / Annual Report 43R 2021/ 2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (cContinued)
Sustainability is regarded as the cornerstone of our corporate culture,
so it is crucial to incorporate environmental and socio-economic
considerations into our decision-making processes. Based on national
and local laws and regulations, as well as referenced to the ISO 140071
environmental management system according to the Group’s operating
environment, structure, production capacity and human resources,
the Group has formulated an unique environmental management
system along with corresponding regulations and guidelines for
pollutant management, such that the waste gases, sewage, noise
and different types of solid wastes generated in the operation and
production process can be better managed. The Group adheres to
the enterprise culture that focuses on environment protection and
energy conservation; with an aim of setting up a comprehensive internal
environmental management system to monitor, manage and dispose
of various pollutants generated from the operations of our plants and
offices; and strictly comply with the standards and requirements of the
local government.

The Group has formulated a Compliance Manual, which clarifies the
relevant laws and regulations along with pollutant discharge standards
that the Group strictly abides by, and also the factors that affect the
environment during the operation of the Group. The Group performs
regular compliance review in to ensure that no non-compliance
incidents have occurred in its operations. During the Reporting Year,
there was no material non-compliance issue with relevant laws and
regulations related to the environment has come to our attention.

RE  HERERBE

A7 REEMHE &)
AREEEGEAARRMACELZER  E
M BEBEREEEEEEMAREBERA T
ZHEE - BEERRAMEERES  tBE
SO 14001 BIE BB R R IR B AR E E > 0218
B AERNRANER AEERYT
— EBSNBEEEZRURERSE SRS
BIRiES|  EREREERRFEL ZBER 5
K BERTAENGEEEYSHNETEE -
AEBERBEINBRRGE ML B
BY—EREONDBEETERS  UER- G
BREENBERBATLEREPELNSE
EaY) A RBTAMETOEERETE -

AEEHET —AERTM EPEBETARE
BRSF 2 AE R E D) K AR B A 305 R B BURZE - BA
RASEREETHRTENTENRE - A%
EEMETARRAN  UEERNEEER L EH
ETEREMN - RBEFE - RALBEREH
ERERBRBEBZIABENNRROIZEE

41



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R dHERERHE

Ao RIBEEME (&)
Mo EEERPELE Y RERRTIT -8
CoFBERE . HEHNMT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Besides, the Board had developed the 2022 environmental targets for
various emissions of the PRC operation. Details are as follow:

Results as at
the end of
Potential emissions Targets Measures Reporting Year
BRER B i RBEFERZER
Air pollutants during Meets the secondary emission standards of 1. Choose more environmentally friendly soybean ink, Target achieved
production the second period in the Guangdong Province water-based oil to reduce the use of UV ail ink to
"Air Pollutant Emission Limits” (DB44/27-2001) produce lesser VOCs; and
2. Entrust a third-party testing agency to test annually.
EERREESL HEERE (RASEDHHRE) 1 BEFRROADRERKBIERARDEA EXERE
ZERARY (DBA4/27-2001) 5 ZHIM0E Z IR HERUR £ UvidE - ffRL EEBERERL S Kk
2 BRE=IRAKEBETEERA -
Air pollutants during Meets the “Emission Standard of Cooking 1. Organize training and leamning according to the Target achieved
Operation of canteen Fume’ ‘Kitchen Discharge Facilities Management
Regulations’;
2. Entrust a third-party testing agency to conduct testing
annually; and
3. The administration department regularly maintains the
treatment facllities and records truthfully.
LEREBESY & (RREMEFRUTE) 1 RBE(ERHGRIE RO BIEIREE . ERAER
ERARY 2 BRE=IRAKBETEERA K
3 THEFIE R R B 8E -
Sewage Meets the emission standards of Guangdong 1. Wastewater from production is uniformly recycled Target achieved
Province “Discharge limits of water pollutants and treated by a qualified third-party recycling
DB44.26-2001" company; and
2. The industrial wastewater is inspected by a
professional third-party inspection company annually.
K HEERE OSEMHRRE 1 EERRELE KR —HAERNEZ] EKERE
DB44.26-2001) Z B HUiE%E BRI S —ERRER : R
2. TERKB—EENE=FRBATET
FE#A -
Hazardous solid wastes  100% safe recycling 1. Hazardous solid wastes are put into designated Target achieved
storage points and recycled by a qualified third-party
recycling company; and
2. Office used batteries and ink cartridges are handled
by the back office and recycled by a qualified
third-party recycling company.
REREBEY 100% & 2B 1 RESEREYNELET  REME ENES

Th—-FEERNE=TERAREY : Rk
BRERTLRESHEYHIIRE -
Th—FARERNE=TER AR EMY -
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) Ao RIBEEME (&)

Potential emissions

BEHR

Targets
B

Measures

i

Results as at

the end of
Reporting Year
REEFERZER

Non-hazardous solid
wastes

B
Ui
|
il
559
=

Leakage of dangerous
materials/chemicals

kL2
ZRR

Noise

50
Juid;

100% safe recycling

100% 22 E

No leakage of dangerous materials/chemicals

ZRBYH/LEMERER

Comply with the “Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary
(GB12348:2008)"

FE(IECEBRRRERB I ZE
(GB12348:2008))

1. Living waste are collected in bags and collected
py the local sanitation department;

2. Packaging wastes are collected in bags and collected
by extemal service provider for recycling; and

3. Reach 100% recycle rate for recyclable waste,

such as paper scraps, cardboards, waste documents,

scrap defective products/goods, etc. via passing to
responsible departments for recycling.

1 BEEEIREERY - AR EREE
YeER

2. BREENREZERF
WEGEFTRIY : R

3. WBBHAEUEY (BImMAE « B - BEER
Xt BENREER/ERE) XTHEHM
TR

+ AR SN IR LB

1. According to the “Dangerous Goods Management
Regulations”, hazardous chemicals are classified
and stored according to their categories and
perform spot checks regularty; and

2. Schedule a chemical spill drill annually.

1. RE(ERRERAN)  BEEMAREHR
BEETHEARKE TEHETHS R

2. RHEEEMEREE -

1. Provide protective equipment such as earplugs for
operators handling the machines;

2. Use a noise detector to detect whether the noise
in the workshop exceeds the standard; and

3. Entrusting third-party inspection company perform
regular checking

1. RERERENABRMRERE  fIMER:

2 FEBRESRAISFATIS REEGRE &

3 ERZE=ARAIATETE Bl o

Target achieved

ERER

Target achieved

ERER

Target achieved

ERER
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions

Air Emissions

The Group always comply with the applicable provisions of the national
and the local laws, regulations and standards of the operating locations
and established related internal policy and procedures, demand the
employees to strictly follow the operating procedures of the production
equipment and environmental protection equipment and provided
suitable labor supplies to our employees, so as to effectively control
and manage the air pollutants emission and reduce its environmental
impacts and harms to our employees.

The Group’s air pollutants, including nitrogen oxides (“NO,”), sulphur
oxides (“SO,”") and respiratory suspended particles (‘RSP”"), are
mainly generated from the usage of gasoline and diesel oil in the
automobiles. During the Reporting Year, the Group’s air emission for the
Reporting Year was approximately 1,036 kg (FY2020/21: 1,007 kg),
and the corresponding intensity was 0.16 kg (FY2020/21: 0.262 kg)
per hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups’ revenue.
The air emission has slightly increased for approximately 3%, while
the corresponding intensity has decreased for approximately 38%
respectively. The increase in total air emission was due to a higher
vehicle usage during the reporting year; where the decrease of intensity
was mainly due to the increase in Groups' Revenue. The composition
of the Group’s air emissions is ilustrated as below:

Air Emissions of PRC Factory

AZD REEH &)
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! The data has been revised in alignment with the calculation methodology
of the Reporting Year.

2 The intensity figure of the last corresponding year has been revised in
alignment with the revised calculation.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

In order to reduce exhaust air and greenhouse gas emissions, and to
better manage fuel usage for business and non-business purposes, the
Group has adopted a number of conservation measures. For example,
we prioritise small-displacement economical vehicles when purchasing
new vehicles to reduce related energy consumptions. Under the same
circumstances, we give priority to using gasoline vehicles over diesel
vehicles as they can reduce the corresponding energy consumption.
Moreover, drivers must also plan the route in advance to minimize
travelling distance. We require our drivers to stop idle vehicles’ engines
o reduce unnecessary energy consumption. \We also actively advocate
the environmental concept of “Green Travel”, encourage employees to
take public transportation, or even ride bicycles or walk to work instead
of driving private vehicles to reduce fuel consumption and exhaust air
emissions as much as possible.

To reduce the Volatile Organic Compounds (“VOC") generated from
our production process, we have installed the ultraviolet photolysis
waste gas treatment equipment at each outlet, which are capable to
remove 90% of the VOC pollutants from the air emission. While the
Group actively researches on and develop new raw materials and
technologies, we also integrate environmental protection considerations
into our production processes, which not only provides a variety of
solutions towards our customers’ products, but can also further reduce
the adverse impacts of the Group’s operations on the environment,
Additionally, the Group has also installed an online VOC monitoring
device at the discharge outlet. The local environmental protection
department can monitor the VOC data of the plant at any time through
the information release platform.

The Group regularly entrusts third-party professional inspecting
agencies to test the pollutants at each discharge outlet in the
factory and the ambient air around the plant in accordance with the
emission standards and methods of the local environment protection
government departments. This is to prevent any excessive emission left
unaware of, which could lead to non-compliance to the local emission
standards, while also protecting our atmospheric environment. During
the Reporting Year, the test results were compliance with the national
“Emission standard of air pollutants for printing industry”.

Going forward, the Group will conduct regular inspections and
maintenance of its vehicles to ensure their energy efficiency and
integrate fuel conservation concepts to employees, while continuing to
keep proper records and monitor our air emissions in a bid to cut down
future air emissions as much as possible.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE  HERERRE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (coni
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Greenhouse gases (“GHG") are compound gases that trap heat in
the atmosphere, and they are highly responsible for accelerating the
greenhouse effect. Since the anthropogenic burning of fossil fuels
from development has put a large amount of greenhouse gases into
our atmosphere, the global warming process has been sped up and
contributing to climate change. In accordance with “Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” from the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, GHG emissions can be classified into three scopes:

Scope 1 Energy direct emissions from operations that are owned or
controlled by the Company.

Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions from purchased electricity,
heating, cooling and steam consumed within the
Company.

Scope 3 All other indirect emissions from both upstream and

downstream activities that occur outside the company.

As GHG emissions are the main culprits in causing global warming, the
Group has adopted various green practices in the daily operations to
demonstrate our commitment to environmental conservation, natural
resources preservation and waste reduction in a bid to reduce our
GHG emissions.

The major sources of our GHG emissions are mainly attributed from the
operations of our PRC factory, which include fossil fuel consumption
from vehicles and the use of refrigerant (Scope 1), the consumption
of purchased electricity (Scope 2), paper waste disposed of at
landfills, electricity used for fresh water and sewage processing by the
responsible authorized government departments, and business air
travel by employees (Scope 3). In particular, as per the objective to raise
the comprehensiveness of our disclosure in the environmental aspect,
the indirect emissions from downstream transportation and distribution
are also included in our reporting scope concerning Scope 3 emissions
starting from the Reporting Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (cContinued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, our PRC factory produced approximately
4,633 tonnes of GHG emissions (FY2020/21: 4,319° tonnes), with an
increment of approximately 5%. The intensity of total GHG emission has
decreased approximately 39% from 1.14 tonnes per hundred thousand
Hong Kong dollars of Groups' revenue to 0.69 tonnes per hundred
thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups' revenue.

Comparing to the last corresponding year, the Scope 1 emissions
have decreased approximately 21% mainly due to the decreased
consumption of refrigerant from less malfunctions from relevant
machineries. On the other hand, the slight increase of approximately
7% in our Scope 2 emissions was mainly due to the production
process of finished goods as per the sales order, in which the electricity
required for producing different products was higher than that of the
last corresponding year. With the emissions from the downstream
transportation and distribution newly added to our reporting scope,
the proportion of the emission from downstream transportation and
distribution takes approximately 2% (FY2020/21: 1%) of our total
Scope 3 emissions. Our Scope 3 emissions have slightly increased
for 2% comparing to last year mainly due the increased shipment
arrangements from customers and increase of public sanitation facilities
in the employee dormitories in the Reporting Year.

¢ The GHG emissions of the last corresponding year has been restated
to conform with the current year's presentation as per the addition of our
reporting scope.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R dHERERHE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (cContinued) Ao RBEEME (&)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued) FEHEAT : BB (&)
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued) BERE (BRERED K (&)

A breakdown of the respective GHG emissions by scope in percentage B EREHNE DLz EE S D BT
is presented in the following charts, while the emission data from each  ZRZI7R + T = {5 & F & 1& JE BUR TR 89 BE P EE

source of the three scopes are shown in the below table: AR AN RAETIR -
GHG Emissions by Scope GHG Emissions by Scope
EREESSEEREER EREER S EEREBER
FY2021/22 (the Reporting Year) FY2020/21
e — “_HME(REEER) BT "—HE

N 1%

Total Emissions Total Emissions

R

B

4,533 tonnes i 4,319 tonnes W

95
® Scope 1 ® Scope 2 Scope 3 ® Scope 1 ® Scope 2 Scope 3
&= 1 &[E 2 #[E 3 E HE 2 #[E 3

Scope 3 Emission by category (in %)
HE3FERESHHERE (M%)

98% 2%
FY2021/22 Eiflm
“E-—/CCHF
18% 81% 1%
FY2020/21 [
EI%/-0E
m Paper waste disposed at landfills = Water and sewage processing
BENHEERRRAER RIK KT 7K BRI
Downstream transportation and distribution
g kD8
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (coni
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

RE  HERERBE

ied) A %B fJ\ . i% iﬁ Jg E (&)
[EEA1 : BERY (&)
BERE (RERBD R (&)

Emissions (in tonnes)

PER (LAMERT)

FY2021/22
(the Reporting
Scope Emission Sources Year) FY2020/21
et Y4 —ZT=-%/
£ [E HERIR —-BF (BREFE) ——WE
1 Emissions from Fossil Fuel Consumption 151 155
KB AR BER
Emissions from the Use of Refrigerant 43 924
KB FE AL BRI HERR
Total Scope 1 Emissions 194 247
#E B
2 Emissions from Electricity Consumption 4,294 4,028
R EENEFEH R
Total Scope 2 Emissions® 4,294 4,028
#E 2 45T
3 Emissions from Paper Waste Disposed of at landfill Nil e 8
RERENEERERNBENR
Emissions from Water and Sewage Processing 44 357
R EEIRK 5 KB EER
Emissions from Employee Business Air Travel® Nil & Nil £2
KB E B EBMmEERBERC
Emissions from Downstream Transportation and Distribution? 1.12 0.47
KB THTE R &5 HAIHERC
Total Scope 3 Emissions 45 44
#E 3485
Total GHG Emissions 4,533 4,319
BERBHERAEE
GHG Emissions Intensity 0.69 1.14
BERBEREE
4 The data has been revised in alignment with the calculation methodology ¢ L BREEHERURFEREFENAETE -
of the Reporting Year.
5 The national emission factor for the calculation of the Scope 2 emission 5 AESEEEMMBRERBETFHEEREA

was referenced from the latest emission factor published by The Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the People’s Republic of China (2022).

o As all paper waste produced was sent to an external service provider for o
recycling, no paper waste was sent to the landfill in the Reporting Year.

! The data has been revised in alignment with the calculation methodology ’
of the Reporting Year.

8 There was no employees air travel due to the continued influence of 8
COVID-19.

o The calculation of indirect emissions from downstream transportation ¢

and distribution Is referenced from the "GHG Emission Factors Hub
(April 2020)" published by the United States Environmental Protection
Agency (US EPA) and the “Technical Guidance for Calculating Scope 3
Emissions” published by the Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

1 The total GHG emissions for the last corresponding year have been 0
restated based on the revised calculations above.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R dHERERHE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

Given the harmful impacts of GHG emissions on the environment,
the Group is committed to minimizing the respective emissions from
our operations as far as possible. Whilst promoting the virtues of
environmental consciousness among our employees, they are also
encouraged to practice resource conservation for contributing to
environmental protection together with the Group. We embrace driving
green practices in our day-to-day operations and are also committed
to environmental conservation, natural resource saving and waste

reduction:

Ensuring Energy
Efficiency

Reducing Waste
Production

Limit Unnecessary
Resource
Consumption

5() SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED $i 8 EN 224 iR 2 & / Annual Report £ & 2021 / 2002

Conducted regular inspections and
maintenance for vehicles and production
facilities

Cleaned the filters of air conditioners
to minimize clogged filters and ensure
equipment efficiency

Phase out obsolete equipment to ensure
energy efficiency and avoid wasting
electricity

Re-used the papers in our production
cycles

Engaged external service provider to
collect wastepaper for recycling

Limit the use of artificial lights whenever
possible

Maximize the potential of using natural light
Tumn off the power for electrical appliances
after work hours

Restrict the use of air conditioners
according to temperature and seasonal
changes
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (coni
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)
Emissions Target

Looking ahead, we will continue to monitor both our air and GHG
emissions levels and formulate environmentally friendly measures to
alleviate our environmental impact. Besides, we will also keep a close
eye on the performance of our factory and our Hong Kong office
along with taking practicable steps to make improvements and reduce
corresponding carbon emissions in the future.

Hazardous Waste Management

In compliance with the “Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”
(‘R AR E B8 RE )5 R IRIRMATE") and other applicable
environmental laws and regulations of the local government, the Group
has formulated related internal policy and procedures to manage and
monitor the process in solid wastes collection, storage and disposal, as
well as the adequacy and conditions of the physical storage facilities.

The operation of the Group mainly generates number of hazardous
solid wastes during its operation, including mixed waste oil, waste
ink, printing plate washing wastewater, developing waste liquid, waste
fluorescent tubes, waste rags, waste gloves and wastewater treatment
sludge etc. During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a total of 13
tonnes of hazardous waste (FY2020/21: 10 tonnes), with an increase
of approximately 30% compared to FY2020/21. This was mainly due
to new equipment of printing presses in the production unit, which
inevitably resulted in the corresponding increase of our hazardous waste
production. The corresponding intensity has decreased approximately
33% from 0.003 tonnes per hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of
Groups' revenue to 0.002 tonnes per hundred thousand Hong Kong
dollars of Groups’ revenue, the decrease in intensity was due to the
increase of the Groups’ revenue in the Reporting Year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE  HERERRE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

The Group follows the local government’s laws and regulations
to set up a temporary storage warehouse for hazardous wastes
and take anti-scattering and anti-leakage measures to prevent any
environmental pollution events. All hazardous wastes generated are
stored at designated areas in the factory, while illegal dumping is strictly
forbidden. Although we cannot significantly reduce the hazardous
waste generated during our production process due to the nature and
the limitations of our industry, we encourage our employees to fully
utilize the resources to lower unnecessary consumption. The containers
loaded with hazardous solid wastes have been affixed labels and
stored in designated locations according to categories. Each factory
regularly inspects the storage area of hazardous solid wastes and takes
appropriate measures in case of any leakage or hidden safety hazard is
found to prevent secondary pollution. All the hazardous solid wastes are
collected and disposed by licensed external service provider to ensure
safe disposal to minimize adverse environmental impacts. Meanwhile,
the Internal Audit Department closely monitors the disposal levels of
all wastes, including both hazardous and non-hazardous waste, to
stay vigilant against unregulated waste disposal and potential hazards.
The wastewater and ink produced during the production process may
cause adverse impact to the environment. To avoid potential adverse
environmental impact, the Group has installed a new No Rinse CTP
sewage treatment system since November 2021, which can effectively
minimise the hazardous substances produced during the production
process. On top of that, the Group has installed two set of wastewater
recycle facilities in the treatment system, the facilities are able to
recycle the treated wastewater back to production process for further
usage. We also engaged a third-party inspection company to perform
acceptance procedure on behalf of the Group over the set up and
function of the sewage treatments facilities.

Hazardous Waste Target

As aforementioned, since hazardous waste production is inevitable
in our production process, and is highly subjected to the business
performance and production activities of the Group, our hazardous
waste output may fluctuate in response to changes in our business
performance. Nonetheless, the Group aims to continue to strictly
implement the above measures and ensure proper storage to prevent
major contamination situations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (cContinued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Non-Hazardous Waste Management

The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group was mainly
attributable to the excessive materials generated during the production
process, including paper, packaging ribbon, metal and plastic waste
and living wastes generated from our daily life.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded approximately 3,236
tonnes of non-hazardous wastes (FY2020/21: 3,031 tonnes), showing
a slight increase of around 7% compared with last year. This was
mainly due to the production process of our finished goods as per
the sales order, where different amount of raw materials are required
to support the production process of different products, therefore
inevitably resulting in the increase of scraps produced in the Reporting
Year. Among the non-hazardous wastes, around 98% were recycled
by external service provider and only 2% were disposed of directly at
landfills. The intensity of total non-hazardous wastes of the Reporting
Year was 0.49 tonnes per hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of
Groups’ revenue (FY2020/21: 0.80 tonnes per hundred thousand
Hong Kong dollars of Groups’ revenue), with a decrease of 39%
compared with last year.

In order to reduce the production of non-hazardous waste, the Group
upholds the 3Rs principles, namely reduce, reuse and recycle. For
example, excessive materials are either reused in the next production
cycle or collected and recycled by external service provider for other
purposes. In addition, the Group also attempts to make accurate
estimation of the use of raw materials in its production process before
placing purchase order so as to reduce unnecessary consumption,
All' wastes generated during our production processes are recycled
by recyclers with recycling technology, which can further reduce the
pressure on the environment caused by waste landfills.

To effectively manage non-hazardous waste production, we strictly
follow the requirements of the local governments of each operating
location to classify the waste from business operation and living
purposes into different waste categories such as recyclable waste,
kitchen waste, other waste.

For operational waste such as paper scraps, they are collected
separately and are regularly handed over to third-party external service
providers for recycling. Other waste such as living waste are also
regularly collected and handed over to the local sanitation department
for recycling, landfill or incineration.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE  HERERRE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Non-Hazardous Waste Management (Continued)

Apart from that, the Group implemented following waste reduction
measures in the office to reduce the environmental impact of the
Group’s operations at all levels:

o Employee education and implement policies of reducing,
recycling and harmlessness of office and domestic waste;

° Set up microwaves in the office and encourage employees to
bring their own lunch and reduce ordering takeaway food;

o Reduce the use of disposable consumables, such as food
packaging boxes, paper cups, paper plates, plastic bags, etc.;

° Encourage employees to reuse wastepaper or stationery, such
as single-sided printed paper, envelopes, folders, etc.; and

. Encourage employees to use electronic communication as far as
possible, and advocate a paperless work environment.

Non-Hazardous Waste Target

Like hazardous waste, our non-hazardous waste production is highly
subjected to the business performance and production activities of
the Group, in which fluctuations in the non-hazardous waste output
may arise in response to changes in our business performance.
Notwithstanding, the Group aims to continue enforcing the idea of
resource efficiency and avoid material wastages among employees
in addition to our waste management measures, such that we can
effectively manage and strive to lower our non-hazardous waste
production in the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (cContinued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Noise Management

The noise generated by the Group’s manufacturing business mainly
comes from the operation of production machinery and equipment.
We control noise levels and their impact on the environment through
restricting the location of the production workshop, the placement
settings of production equipment, and implementing vibration and
noise reduction measures. Our production workshop are constructed
with materials and structures with good sound insulation facilities, and
shock absorbers are also installed under the equipment. To maximize
the extend of equipment life cycle, we stress on the repair and
maintenance of machinery and equipment, for instance, lubricating oil
is used to ensure our machines to run smoothly and prevent the parts
from becoming worn or broken. Besides, we also arrange appropriate
production time and put emphasis on the greening of the factory
environment, hoping to continuously reduce the impact of noise on the
surrounding community environment through the attenuation of trees
and plants.

The Group strictly implements the noise emission limits set out in the
“Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary” (‘T3
D EmMARBEEMIZE). During the reporting period, our factory has
conducted an annual noise testing inspection, and the results were up
to the standards.

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

In order to abide by the “Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China” (‘R A RFEMBIELIREIRE"), “Water Law of
the People’s Republic of China” (‘2 ARFEMEIKE" and other
applicable laws, regulations and policies, along with establishing
conservation ideas and promoting the culture of conservation, the
Group has stabled a number of measures and held themed trainings
on environmental protection from time to time to promote the concepts
of energy conservation. We ensure that every employee understands
the impact of their behaviour on the environment and required them to
make the best use of resources for maximizing resource efficiency and
avoid wastages.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) Ay  BREEBM®H &)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued) EBHmA2 : EREH &)

The Board had developed 2022 environmental targets for various 2R ECEARNEE THEAEHRHMEENSEE
resources consumed during the Group’s factory operation. Detalls are  FRETE T ZZ - —FRIFFIZ - FBWOT ¢
as follow:

Results as at
the end of
Resources Targets Measures Reporting Year

&R BE #i REEFERZER

Electricity 1.2% decrease per RMB10,000 of sales 1. Educate all employees about the awareness of energy  Target achieved
saving, tum off the lights as they go; reasonable
machine operations to prevent idling;

2. Adjust air conditioners to the most power-saving

mode;

3. Monthly monitoring of the electricity consumption of
various departments, large electricity users are required
to explain to the management in the form of reports,
and formulate power-saving plans for the department;
Increase the installation of ventilation fans in the
workshop to maintain ventiation and air circulation,
while reducing the workload of electric fans; and
. Reduce the unqualified rate of products.
CHRRETHTHEENAE BFEE S48 EXAE

BIEHE B8
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o

Water resources 3% decrease per RMB10,000 of sales . Technical transformation of water faciliies, wastewater  Target achieved
recycling and supervision, efc., to save water,
reduce resource consumption and sewage discharge;
and

. The equipment department to regularly inspect and
maintain the company’'s water supply system.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)
Electricity Consumption

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total electricity consumption was
approximately 7,390 MWh (FY2020/21: 6,602 MWh), with an increase
of approximately 12%. This was mainly due to the production process
of finished goods as per the sales order, where the energy required to
support the production process differs as per different product types,
therefore inevitably resulting in the increase of electricity consumption in
the Reporting Year. Despite the increase in electricity consumption, the
electricity intensity has dropped from 1.74 MWh per hundred thousand
Hong Kong dollars of Groups' revenue to 1.12 MWh per hundred
thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups' revenue in the Reporting Year,
a drop of nearly 36%, due to the increase in the Groups’ revenue in the
Reporting Year.

Electricity Consumption

BEhiER
(in MWh)
(LR ELBFRT)
8,000
7,500 7,390
7,000
6,602
6,500
6,000
FY2021/22 FY2020/21
(the Reporting Year) —Z—=F /——Bi4F
—E— /ZHF
(REFE)

To reduce the energy consumption in both our offices and factories,
the Group actively adopts different kind of technically feasible and
economically reasonable measures, such as encourage employees to
use natural light for daily operations, restricted use of air conditioners
according to seasonal and temperature changes, regularly clean the
air conditioner’s filter and tum off the unnecessary electrical equipment
after work, phasing out old equipment, use the nationally recognised
equipment or equipment with the energy-efficient labels, focus on the
repair and maintenance or transformation of the electrical equipment,
etc.
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RIE  HERERRE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Fuel Consumption

The fuel consumption of the Group was attributed from gasoline and
diesel in vehicles for business travelling and goods delivery. During the
Reporting Year, the Group consumed approximately 7,252 L of gasoline
(FY2020/21: 8,637 L) with the intensity of 1.10 L (FY2020/21: 2.25 L)
per hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups’ revenue. While
for diesel, the Group consumed approximately 49,811 L (FY2020/21:
49,961 L) with the intensity of 7.57 L (FY2020/21: 13.14 L) per
hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups' revenue. The gasoline
consumption has decreased approximately 15% while the diesel
consumption level was similar to that of the last corresponding year. The
decrease in gasoline consumption was mainly due to the replacement
of an obsolete to a more efficient model for business travelling, such
that the corresponding fuel efficiency has been enhanced. On the other
hand, the equivalent energy consumption from the consumption of
diesel and gasoline in MWh were 533 MWh (FY2020/21: 535 MWh)
and 70 MWh (FY2020/21: 83 MWh) respectively. To maintain a good
record of our fuel consumption, the Administration Department records
the fuel consumptions of each vehicle and performs analysis to identify
any abnormal usage of vehicle. In case of any abnormalities identified,
follow-up actions would be taken to avoid inefficiencies that lead to
extra operational expenses.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Energy Consumption Summary and Targets

The table below summarized the energy consumption sources of the
Group:

RE  HERERBE
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Energy Consumption Sources BETRH R RIR /5 ——WF
(in MWh) (in MWh)

(U EEEET)  (LAJKEBSED)

Purchased Electricity BEE 7,390 6,602
Diesel Ol e 533 535
Gasoline i 70 83
Total Energy Consumption BERHRERE 7,993 7,220
Energy Consumption Intensity EREERE 1.22 1.90

In the future, the Group will continue to actively implement the above-
mentioned resource saving plans and measures while also looking
to further its current practices, aiming to raise the overall efficiency in
resource consumption and avoid unnecessary wastages as much as
possible. We will continue to upgrade machineries and equipment as
needed, for instance, substituting obsolete equipment with alternatives
that are more energy efficient, such as LED lights and appliances
with Grade 1 Energy Label. Additionally, the Group will also strive to
keep better records of its performance for developing more specific
quantitative environmental goals and corresponding measures to
keep up with the pace of energy conservation and reducing its energy
consumption.

Water Consumption

During the Reporting Year, although the Group did not encounter
any water supply issue, the Group still shoulders the responsibility of
environmental protection and sustainable development, and strives
to raise the utilisation rate of water resources along with reducing
environmental pressure. During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total
water consumption was approximately 76,854 m® (FY2020/21:
60,722 m?), with an increment of 27%. This was mainly due to the
increase of public sanitation facilities in the employee dormitories. The
corresponding water consumption intensity was approximately 11.68 m®
per hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of Groups’ Revenue
(FY2020/21: 15.98 m® per hundred thousand Hong Kong dollars of
Groups' revenue), with over a quarter of decrement compared with last
year, due to the increase of Groups' revenue in the Reporting Year.
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B B REARS

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)
Water Consumption (Continued)

Water Consumption

RKiH#E
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While printing is traditionally considered as a water-intensive industry,
the Group always encourage the reduction on unnecessary water
consumption. We have adopted a forward-looking strategy and
purchased new machines with waterless printing technology to reduce
our water consumption since the majority of our water consumption is
highly dependent on our production volume and customers’ demands.
To minimise our water consumption, we strengthen the repair and
maintenance of water equipment, pipes, valves, etc., and regularly
record and analyse the water consumption level of each water usage
point in the factories. Moreover, we have installed wastewater recycling
facilities in our sewage treatment station in order to reduce the water
consumption during our production.

Water Consumption Target

As aforementioned, since our water consumption is highly subject
to the sales volume and customer demand, it is not under the direct
management of the Group. Nonetheless, we will continue to actively
implement the above-mentioned water saving initiatives and measures
while also monitor our water consumption level in a bid to reduce our
consumption in other areas in the future. In particular, the Group aims
to reinforce its promotion and education towards water conservation
so that the employees can build the habit of saving water amongst the
daily work routine and raise the overall water efficiency as a whole.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)
Packaging Material

Due to the nature of printing industry and our business, we did not
collect the data with regard to packaging materials separately, as
they share the same raw materials as our products. Nevertheless, as
mentioned in the “Non-hazardous waste management” section above,
we will prevent unnecessary consumption through accurate estimation

of raw materials needed before placing our purchase order. As for the
excessive materials, some of them will be reused in our production
cycles, while the rest will be collected by external service provider for
recycling purposes.

Paper Material Usage

The printing industry has been one of the controversial industries that
contributes to global warming due to its energy-intensive and water-
intensive nature, as well as one of the causes to deforestation. While
the Group understands the clauses related to the environmental
concemns from paper consumption, paper is a fundamental raw material
for our operations considering the nature of our business in providing
printing services. It is therefore one of the long-standing goals of the
Group to limit potential adverse impacts from improper logging in our
operations in order to uphold our environmental commitments. The
Group has been encouraging our customers to use papers from
sustainable forestry, such as the Forest Stewardship Council (‘FSC”)
label endorsement. The goal of the FSC system is to reduce the risk
that non-certified material used in the manufacture of products is linked
to practices that harm forests and people. The FSC system also aims
to reduce, and eventually eliminate, those risks over time by mitigating
the problems that underlie these practices. The source of the materials
for the accredited entity must not come from illegally harvested
wood, woods harvested in violation of traditional and human rights;
woods from forests in which high conservation values are threatened
by management activities; woods from forests being converted
to plantations or non-forest use; and woods from forests in which
genetically modified trees are planted.
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RIE  HERERRE

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
Aspect A2: Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper Material Usage (Continued)

Given our advocacy in using sustainably sourced papers, the Group
has obtained the FSC Chain-of Custody certification since 2010 for our
usage of the FSC label on our products. Since then, environmentally
friendly concepts have long been promoted in our Company to both
existing and potential customers. During the Reporting Year, the quantity
of FSC papers used in our production increased from 7,725 tonnes to
14,068 tonnes with approximately 82% of increment, while the non-
FSC papers decreased approximately 35% from 13,394 tonnes to
8,711 tonnes compared with the last corresponding year. The sharp
increase in FSC paper consumption was mainly attributed to the shift in
customers’ preference in using more eco-friendly materials for products
in the Reporting Year, which consequently led to a noticeable decrease
in non-FSC paper material consumption.

With the aim to mitigate the detrimental impacts from the paper industry
and discourage deforestation from improper logging, the Group
will continue its advocacy in promoting the use of FSC papers to
customers.

Qur use of FSC Paper
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural
Resources

The production processes in the printing industry primarily generate
volatile organic compounds (“VOCs"), which are organic chemical
gases that contribute to the formation of ground-level ozone and fine
particulates in the atmosphere, and are one of the major pollutants
that brings adverse effects on the environment. Although the footprint
incurred from the production process is unavoidable due to the nature
of our business, the Company believes that business development
should not come at the expense of the environment. Therefore,
the Group has considered environmental factors when formulating
emission reduction strategies, and actively responded to changes in
the government’s environmental policies. Besides, we are constantly
exploring on the optimization of the production processes, taking into
consideration towards maintaining the highest quality of products
alongside environmental protection as our development direction, and
using environmentally friendly raw materials to minimize the adverse
impact of our business activities on the environment as much as
possible. Additionally, with our commitment and efforts in meeting
the standards for our operations, we have been accredited with a

number of certifications and verifications, including FSC™ Chain-of-
Custody, Good Manufacturing Practice (‘GMP”") certification, ISO/IEC
17025:2017, and ISO 14001:2015.

We have also established the Environmental Management Operation
and Monitoring Control Procedures (‘IBIEEIRETT & ES AL HIT2
FF") to monitor the pollution level during operation to ensure that all
emissions fully comply with the environment protection laws and
regulation. Moreover, the Group attaches great importance to the
development of new materials with an aim to meet the growing demand
for products from customers while striving to reduce the amount
of pollutants generated. With our well-established environmental
management system and a team of experienced employees, the Group
is eager to achieve its endeavour in transforming into a sustainable
enterprise in the near future.

According to the “Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China” (‘FZEARLFBEEREEREE"), “Notice on
Deepening the Promotion of Cleaner Production in Key Enterprises” (“#
RIRAEEETEBREEFZTIEMNRA) and “Shenzhen City
Cleaner Production Audit Implementation Rules” (“RIIT/EZEERE
EMARA"), our PRC factory has passed the process of the cleaner
production audit process, in which our aforementioned measures
along with our responsible and experienced employees affirmed our
continuous efforts in environmental protection.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL (coni
Aspect A4: Climate Change

Climate change refers to the long-term shifts in temperatures and
weather patterns. While it could be a natural phenomenon, human
activities are the major driver of climate change with the increasing GHG
emissions accelerated the greenhouse effect and global warming. The
endothermic nature of the heat trapping gases such as carbon dioxide
in the atmosphere is preventing heat from leaking back into the space,
thus contributing to climate change. With the accompanied effects from
the warming temperature disrupting the earth system, it is unmistakable
that climate change is one of the greatest contemporary challenges
to the life of humanity and the health of the planet. As the world now
moves toward a lower-carbon sustainable economy to remediate the
global warming problem, the Group has begun to take into account on
the areas and aspects which it can contribute to the green endeavour.

We acknowledge the potential challenges and impacts of climate
change that could affect our business sustainability alongside the
market trend of transitioning into a lower carbon footprint economy.
In response, incorporating climate considerations into the Group’s
decision-making process is critical for capital allocation, service
development and supply chain management, so that better preparation
and management could be arranged in response to adapting and
managing the potential climate-related uncertainties that may affect the
Group. The Group remains committed to making a greener commitment
to achieve long-term success and become an environmentally
responsible corporation while enhancing its corporate strength.

Physical Risks

Some regions in the PRC, including the operating location of our PRC
factory, are vulnerable to the threat of flood, fire and tropical cyclones.
In terms of the more immediate climate-related risk posed on our
operation and the safety of employees, climate change is likely to
introduce higher frequency and severity of extreme weather events,
which endanger the safety of employees working at our offices and
workshops, as well as increase the risk of property damages, disruption
to the supply chain and logistic functions brought to the Group. In order
to manage the above threats, the Group has implemented special
work arrangements to provide our employees with guidelines on work
arrangements and safety precautions to minimize potential risks of
injury and accidents. We have established an emergency plan for
environmental emergencies (‘2 IRIREHEZTESR") and bought
relevant insurance policy to reduce the losses from natural disasters.
The Group also arranges emergency drills for employees to better
prepare and familiarize themselves with emergency procedures in
the event of such an incident. Moreover, we will also keep abreast of
the latest updates on weather conditions in response to bad weather
events, so that appropriate measures can be taken to avoid property
damage and employee injury, and to minimize potential disruptions
and losses as much as possible. Besides, we actively promote the
principle of conservation on resources usage among our employees
to reduce the Group’s adverse impacts on the environment and to
ourselves.
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SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL conti
Aspect A4: Climate Change (Continued)

Transitional Risks

As temperature continue to rise, climate change is expected to lead
to changes in the world’s resource availability. Since climate change
could alter the frequency and intensity of forest disturbance, such as
insect outbreaks, droughts, heatwaves, wildfires, and storms, this
poses a potential threat to our supply of due to shrinking forestry from a
changing climate. In response, the Group maintains close cooperative
relationships with suppliers to ensure the supply of raw materials, while
also keeping a list of selected suppliers to further secure the supplies
of conventional materials from multi-sourcing in case if any unexpected
situations arise. Moreover, the Group has adopted a development
strategy to explore new business opportunities and reduce the usage
on paper materials by diversifying its product portfolio and increase
more technological element in the product. We have introduced a
range of advanced packaging solutions including variable data printing
(e.g. QR codes, barcodes), RFID packaging for anti-counterfeiting, and
“Audio posters” embedded with Bluetooth chips in promotional items.
This enables the Group to start exploring innovative technologies and
developing products that are more sustainable to reduce material usage
as much as possible.

A shift in market preference from consumer expectations to
sustainability commitment could also cause reputation damage to the
Group if we fail to meet these expectations. We take environmental
factors into considerations when selecting suppliers, including whether
suppliers meet statutory environmental standards and whether they
have obtained any environmental certification, these green procurement
practices ensure our environmental standards are met in the supply
chain management process. Additionally, we closely monitor our ESG
performance and actively strive to optimize our development direction
and strategies to ensure that our performance is in line with our
customers’ expectations.

On the other hand, with more climate conferences and environmental
protection-related climate policies expected in the future, as well as the
PRC government's commitment to carbon neutrality by 2060 and other
international climate initiatives, it is foreseeable that more resources
may be required to meet emerging environmental requirements and
standards. As Mainland China aims to achieve carbon neutrality by
2060, it is possible for the PRC government to launch and implement
carbon pricing mechanisms such as carbon taxes and mandatory
regulation of existing industries and services. For instance, one of
the Group’s subsidiaries has been listed on the List of Key Pollutant
Discharge Units of Shenzhen in the Atmospheric Environment for
2022 (ARIIT2022F KRIRIFE R HE5 BAL A8 (EH#HR)"), where
we are required to fulfill legal obligations on environmental protection,
such as self-monitoring and disclosing information in accordance with
the environmental laws. In the event where we cannot meet related
standards, the Group may have to pay taxes or fines. While it is
inevitable for the Group to emit pollutants as per our business nature,
we are committed to performance monitoring and constantly striving to
achieve best practices in hopes to minimize our environmental footprints
and keeping informed with the latest updates to related regulations to
better prepare the Company for adaptation measures.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group believes that the success of the Company relies on the
contribution and support from our talented employees. Employees
are an important asset and to our success, and we have always been
committed to providing a harmonious working environment and to
grow together with our employees since we strongly believed that it
supports the development of both parties and our business in a long
run. We embrace the principle of equality, diversity, and inclusion as
we believe that openness and inclusiveness enable the workforce to
be more productive and accountable, so that we can better serve our
customers' needs.

Qur human resources policies and procedures, including recruitment,
probation, termination, promotion, retirement, transfer, appraisal,
working hours, salary, bonus, entitled leave and medical benefits,
comply with the relevant legislation in Hong Kong and Shenzhen.

Our Employee Composition

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had a total workforce of 1,266
employees (FY2020/21: 971), of which 50% (FY2020/21: 59%) were
male and 50% (FY2020/21: 41%) were female. Our employees were
spread across a broad age group ranging from 18 to over 65, and no
employees were under the age of 18. Given the operating location of
our offices and factories, approximately 3% of employees were from
Hong Kong, while the remaining 97% were from the PRC. The Group
also offers various employment types in accordance with different
employment status that meets both the needs of the Group and
employees. Among them, approximately 17% (FY2020/21: 17% or 169
employees) were in the contract of indefinite duration, 49% (FY2020/21:
52% or 505 employees) were contracted employees, 30% (FY2020/21:
28% or 272 employees) were temporary workers and 4% (FY2020/21:
3% or 25 employees) were re-employed retirees. Guided by the
principle of non-discrimination and fair employment, we provide equal
opportunities to all employees regardless of their age and gender,
Committed to growing our business with employees, we are with good
relationship with our employees with our mature human resources
policy and trustful relationships while a new group of employees
recruited by the Group during the Reporting Year. We are keen to see
the expansion of our talented team in the coming years.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Our Employee Composition (Continued)

By Gender
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The Group has not employed any employees under 18 years old.
In particular, The Group has established policies and procedures
regarding employment of minors for the PRC factory to avoid situations
where employees under the age of 18 are placed in positions with
potential occupational hazards. The Group strictly complies with the
Employment of Children Regulations (Cap. 57B of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (‘B %
ARFEMBELEL") and Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Minors (“FR #E AR FELFIBIARAK F AREE) in case if

there are future employees under the age of 18 years employed.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Employee Benefits

The Group has a well-established monthly performance evaluation
mechanism with different KPIs set up in different areas to all employees
for assessment in order to reward outstanding employees and our
talented workforce. The management regularly reviews the Group’s
remuneration and welfare policies with reference to market standards,
and is committed to safeguarding the rights and interests of employees.
The employee performance assessment is conducted at the end
of each year. Remuneration and benefits will be adjusted annually
based on employees’ personal performance, contributions and market
conditions in the performance assessment. Promotion decisions
are made based on careful consideration of job responsibilities
together with the individual's qualifications, relevant experiences and
performance, as well as the conduct and potential within the Group.
Promotions and salary raises are awarded to all contributing employees.

Besides, the Group encourages work-life balance and establishes
benefit schemes for our employees in PRC and Hong Kong in
accordance with the labour law of PRC and Hong Kong. The Group
also offers entertainment facilities for leisure and entertainment during
non-working hours. Moreover, the Group actively organizes large-
scale sports activities for employees of different departments in PRC
during leisure time. The Group also organizes various team building
activities to enrich the employees’ spare time and strengthen the sense
of belonging among employees. This also aims to improve employees’
health and ensure work-life balance and well-being among the
employees.

The Group has also established policies and procedures for protecting
female workers who work in the PRC factory during their pregnancy
and within 3 months after the female workers has given birth. During the
above-mentioned period, female factory workers are exempted from
demanding job duties, such as working in harmful environment and
engaging in physical-demanding work and fatigue-prone work activities.
Pregnant workers are also barred from overtime work or night shift
schedules.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Employee Benefits (Continued)

The Group provides employees with various insurance coverage under
statutory requirements. For employees in Hong Kong, contribution to
Mandatory Provident Fund, Employees Compensation Insurance for
the employees in Hong Kong according to the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). For employees in the PRC, the Group has contributed
to the Social Insurance and Housing Provident Fund in compliance
with the local rules and regulations in the PRC. Besides the statutory
requirements, the Group has also subscribed Employer’s Liability
Insurance for the employees in the PRC apart from the Social Insurance
and Housing Provident Fund. The extra subscription insurance has
provided extra protection to the employees who subscribed to Social
Insurance and who does not subscribe to Social Insurance due to the
reason of re-employed retirees.

Furthermore, the Group has not laid off any employee nor reduced
employees’ salary, subsidies and benefits amid the on-going impact of
the COVID-19 outbreak. Besides, due to the mutated COVID-19 virus
named Omicron between late December 2021 to March 2022, the
PRC government also advocated migrant workers to stay in workplace
during Chinese New Year in 2022 due to the mutated COVID-19
virus named Omicron during late December 2021 to March 2022. In
this regard, the Group also supported such an advocacy, in which
all migrant workers are encouraged to stay in the factory and with
subsidies provided for those who spent their Chinese New Year in
factories.

We will take all applicable measures to address the challenges of
attracting and retaining talent. We are in the process of enhancing and
strengthening our human resources system with our commitment to
caring about our employees, in which they can voice their opinions
anonymously on the platform.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Harmonious Working Environment

A harmonious working environment is fundamental for employees to
thrive and nurture abundance. As an equal opportunity employer, we
are committed to diversity and inclusion in our recruitment and talent
development processes, in which equality and respect are promoted
from the hiring process and onto all aspects of our work. The Group
strives to ensure equal employment opportunities for all employees,
regardiess of their ethnicity, colour, religious belief, age, gender, sexual
orientation, nationality, citizenship, disability, marital status or any other
characteristic protected by law. Moreover, we also strive to create an
equitable and healthy working environment that is free of intimidation,
hostility, or any other form of harassment, while protecting the rights
and interests of employees in the workplace. The Group promotes the
understanding and awareness of Non-Discrimination, Anti-Harassment
and Non-Bully Policies by communicating these in team meetings and
in the human resources policy. Furthermore, the Group strictly prohibits
the situations of child labour and forced labour. For the Reporting Year,
the Group has not found any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations in respect of the labour standards.

Talent Retention

Given that printing is a traditional business, the employees turnover
rate is relatively high in this industry. With good relationship between
the Group and the employees, the employees keen to stay and
work for the Group. We are pleased to announce that, the Group’s
employees turnover rate in monthly average was approximately 5% for
the Reporting Year (FY2020/21: 11%). During the Reporting Year, the
average monthly turover rate of employees by gender were 6% (Male)
and 4% (Female), while the average monthly turnover rate by age group
were 7% (18 — 25 years old), 6% (26 — 35 years old), 4% (36 — 45
years old), 2% (46 — 55 years old), 1% (56 — 65 years old) respectively.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)
Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)
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Talent Retention (Continued) BB AT (&)
FY2021/22
(the Reporting
Year) FY2020/21
—EB-— /—BEF
Average Monthly Turnover Rate BAFHRER (REFE) —T=F = —¥F
By Gender EHERIE D
Male B 6% 12%
Female pegis 4% 1%
By Age Group BER AR E D
18 — 25 years old 18E2573% 7% 14%
26 — 35 years old 262 355% 6% 14%
36 — 45 years old 36 £ 455% 4% 7%
46 - 55 years old 46 EH55% 2% 12%
56 — 65 years old 56 & 655% 1% 3%
Above 65 years old 653 £ Nil & N3

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to provide a safe and
harmonious working environment for employees while strive to achieve
simultaneous growth between our business and talents, with the am to
continuously expand the talent team.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Group is committed to safeguarding the health and safety of all our
employees as per the fundamental importance in providing a stable and
safe working environment. The Group adopts a systematic approach
to safeguard the health and safety of employees by identifying and
mitigating potential office safety risks and equipping employees with
sufficient fire protection equipment. Safety procedures are included
in the employee handbook for guidance. In case of any incidents or
accidents, employees must report to their supervisors immediately.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety (Continued)

As for maintaining the occupational health and safety in our operations,
the Group understands that both the preventive and reactive
approaches are essential to dealing with accidents. We believe that
preventive measures are particularly more important than reactive
measures because they are more cost-effective and can better prevent
avoidable damages from incidents. The Group has provided employees
with protective equipment such as earplugs, rubber gloves and carbon
masks for offering protection to employees when they are performing
job duties in the factory plant. The Group actively fulfills the statutory
requirements such as the Law of the People's Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, Management
Specification for Regular Detection of Occupational Hazard Factors in
Employers (‘FAABMEERTCERZTHBRAETIERE) and the
Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (/P A R ILHN
BZ 24 ER") etc., for aming to continuously improve the working
environment of the factory after regular inspections towards the
potential occupational hazards. During the Reporting Year, we entrusted
a third-party inspection agency to perform testing on each production
positions in relation to their exposure to occupational hazards, including
dust, VOCs, noise and radiation. The testing result of dust, VOCs
and radiation complied with the “Occupational Exposure Limits for
Hazardous Agents in the Workplace — Part 1: Chemical Hazardous
Agents” and “Occupational Exposure Limits for Hazardous Agents
in the Workplace — Part 1: Physical Agents”. For the occupational
exposure of noise, there were only 5 production positions out of the 39
tested production positions exceeded the standard limits. The Group
had already arranged the workers at those positions to perform a body
check in order to confirm our employees’ health. All workers from those
positions did not suffer from any occupational diseases. The Group has
also established internal policies and procedures to provide guidance
for all workers on the storage, management and usage of dangerous
chemicals in both the warehouse and production areas to avoid any
serious deviations and safety issues caused. The Group will continue to
pay attention to the health of employees, regularly arrange occupational
hazards examinations, and arrange suitable job positions for employees
according to their health conditions to prevent employees from injuries
due to the exposure of occupational hazards at work.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety (Continued)

Moreover, the Group has also set up the Environmental, Health and
Safety Committee (‘EHS Committee”) for monitoring, inspecting and
improving the environment, as well as the health and safety of related
facilities. The EHS Committee members are responsible to avoid the
risks of worker injury and unexpected accidents from happening. Fire
drills and chemical spill drills are held regularly by the EHS Committee
in order to enable employees to familiarize themselves with the
evacuation procedures. In addition, the Group has also set up several
policies and procedures for the workers regarding the reporting and
handling mechanisms of major health and safety incidents, along
with work injury and medical emergency management etc. to avoid
potential work safety issues such as fire accidents and chemical
incidents occur in the factory area. The Group provides employees with
induction trainings on building the emergency response capabilities.
The training encompasses a wide range of topics, including anti-
terrorism training, fire safety, dangerous goods management, protective
apparatus management, and safety production knowledge etc. Apart
from the induction training, the Group also organizes regular training to
strengthen the awareness of employees on occupational safety issues.

During the Reporting Year, there were 3 people involved in work related
injury cases with a total of 71 days of lost working days recorded
(FY2020/21: 12 people injured with 574 working hours loss or 72 days
of lost working days). There were no case of fatality happened over
the past 3 years. The Group is keen to gain a better understanding
towards each work-related injury case by obtaining the related Work
Injury Investigation Reports. By analysing the reasons and causes of the
occurrence of work-related injuries, the Group can arrange appropriate
follow-up actions according to the recommendations in the reports to
avoid the recurrence of similar incidents and eliminate the tendency
of employees getting injured. To better support injured employees In
the event of an accident, the Group has subscribed to an Employer's
Liability Insurance to provide financial assistance to workers as an
additional medical benefit apart from the mandatory Social Insurance
subscription. Moving on, the Group will continuously promote the
concepts of occupational health and safety to all employees and avoid
work injury or accidents as much as possible.
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B B REARS

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety (Continued)

Besides, in order to protect the health and safety of our employees
during the continuous outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic, the Group
has set up a set of policies and procedures regarding the COVID-19
control for the PRC factory based on the COVID-19 control requirement
of the local government to avoid and handle in case there is any
potential outbreak of COVID-19 in the PRC factory. Moreover, the
Group has also provided with sufficient anti-epidemic supplies, such
as hand sanitizers and masks for the workers working in the PRC
factory. Employees are required to have temperature checks before
commencing their work. The Group has also set up quarantine areas
for employees in case there are suspected cases of being infected with
COVID-19 in the employees’ dormitory and canteen. The Group also
encouraged workers in the PRC factory to be vaccinated to maximize
the protection against COVID-19. During the Financial Year, a total
of 1,487 employees has been vaccinated for 3 doses of COVID-19
vaccine, which accounted for approximately 96.7% of the total
employees. All but 3 employees were vaccinated, and the reason for
unvaccinated employees was due to their personal health concems.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B3: Development and Training

As mentioned in the previous sections, the Group provides a wide
variety of training to employees to equip them with the necessary
work-related skills and concepts. Standardized operation manuals
and training are provided to newly recruited employees and existing
employees regularly. Internal training sessions are provided to all the
newly joined employees, so that they can better understand the vision
and mission of the Company. Among the provided induction training,
the training sessions also included topics such as occupational health
and safety and environmental related issues etc. On-job trainings
are provided to all employees from time to time so that they can
better understand latest technology on printing. For the Reporting
Year, the Group has provided training to 1,249 employees in total
with 97.3% participation rate. A total of 2,498 hours (FY2020/21:
4,994 hours) of training was recorded with an average training hour
of 2 hours (FY2020/21: 5 hours) per employee. The percentage of
trained employees by employment category of entry level employees,
middle management and senior management are 93%, 5% and 2%
(FY2020/217": 95%, 4%, 1%) respectively, while the percentage of
trained employees by gender was 61% (FY2020/21: 55%) for male
and 39% (FY2020/21: 45%) for female respectively. To maintain the
quality performance, we will continue to provide ample trainings to our
employees in the future.
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RIE  HERERRE

SECTION B: SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT
AND LABOUR PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B4: Labour Standard

Respecting human rights has been an integral part of the Group’s
approach to sustainability. The Group fully complies with labour laws
and other relevant legislation that prohibits child labour and forced
labour. The Group does not employ any person below the age of
eighteen at its workplace by verifying the applicant’s identification
documents in the recruitment process to prevent illegal labour. Any
violence, with the purpose of deliberately causing difficulties, threats
and/or corporal punishment, forcing employees to work is prohibited.
Prior consent from employees for overtime work are required and
no employees are forced to work against their will. Besides, Worker
Union is set up to provide an effective communication channel for the
Group and the management to better understand the needs of our
employees. The Group strives to ensure that no employee is forced to
work against his/her will, or work as forced labour, or be made subject
to corporal punishment or coercion of any type relating to work. The
Group regularly reviews its employment practice to ensure that are in
full compliance with the Employment Ordinance and other regulations
related to child labour and forced labour.

For the Reporting Year, the Group did not aware of any non-compliance
with the statutory requirements in Hong Kong and PRC, including the
Mandatory Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Minimum Wages Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong; Provisions on Minimum Wages (‘& T & #1E”) of the People’s
Republic of China, Labour Law of the Peoples’ Republic of China (“A
#= AN RHMELEE"), Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China (‘P AR KB L E)A FE"), Social Insurance Law of the
People’'s Republic of China (‘1 2 A R FBIRE & (RERE"), Regulation
on the Administration of Housing Provident Funds (“ER A& EIE
{&41", Regulation on the Implementation of the Employment Contract
Law of the People’'s Republic of China (‘P AR £ MBI LB A REE
BB in the PRC.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - OPERATING
PRACTICES

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
Establishing a successful and beneficial relationship with supplier was
one of our objectives to successful supplier management. The Group
has formed strategic alliance with our suppliers which enabled us to
obtain raw materials with highest quality at reasonable prices. During
the Reporting Year, we cooperated with 64 (FY2020/21: 68) suppliers
in total, of which 28 were located in the PRC, 32 were located in Hong
Kong, 2 were located in Vietnam, 1 in Germany and 1 in Singapore
respectively.
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Before engaging any new suppliers, the Group conducts a thorough
supplier assessment for assessing and evaluating whether potential
suppliers can meet our expectations. The Group assesses suppliers
based on several criteria, including the aspect of operation flow control,
the management hierarchy, quality and material control, environmental
control, as well as energy conservation policies. Both new suppliers
and existing suppliers are required to sign a Declaration of Conformity
for the raw materials supplied.
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B B REARS

SECTION B: SOCIAL - OPERATING
PRACTICES (continued)

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
(Continued)

On the other hand, the Group also conducts an annual supplier
assessment on the performance of existing suppliers on areas including
raw material quality control, environmentally friendly material used,
environmental standard fulfilled, energy saving and use of renewable
energy with its storage device, financial background and the suppliers’
social related standard towards their employees. The Group also
performs incoming material inspection procedures to ensure the
raw materials provided by suppliers are in good quality, which also
serves as one of the assessment criteria for the annual suppliers’
assessment. Since product quality is of our top priority, the Group
prefers to cooperate with suppliers who can fulfil our requirements and
service commitments. Besides, the Group is also aware of suppliers’
commitment towards the environmental aspect and pick those who put
emphasis on environmental control. Additionally, we also have a Green
Procurement Practice in place to reinforce our supplier management in
terms of minimizing the environmental risks along our supply chain.

Moving forward, we will closely monitor the performance of our
suppliers to ensure it is consistent with its service commitment regularly
with the aid of our annual supplier assessment plan.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL - OPERATING
PRACTICES (continued)
Aspect B6: Product Respon5|b|I|ty

Product Safety

The Group is committed to providing products and services with high
standard of quality and reliability. We have been awarded the following
certificates:

° Certificate of “Good Manufacturing Practices”
° ISO 9001:2015 “Quality Management System Certificate”

° Seal of Compliance with requirements of the International Council
of Toy Industries (ICTI") Ethical Toy Program

° Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (‘HACCP”) Verification

The Group performs incoming material inspection procedures
to ensure the raw materials are in good quality and condition for
production. The incoming material inspection procedures also aim
to ensure the raw materials fulfil several environmental and product
quality related requirements and standards such as Restriction of
Hazardous Substances (RoHS) (“BaA R &£ E T B 2% @ T
REFERDHIES") established by the European Union and the
Forest Stewardship Council certified material etc. Only the qualified raw
materials are used for production of products to our customers.

The Group pays much attention to the product quality of the finished
goods sold to customers. Our Quality Control Department performs
outgoing quality control of the finished goods on sample basis, which
based on appearance, printing colour and printing quality, packaging,
metal related substance testing. Only when the sampled finished
goods are qualified for the outgoing quality control, the finished goods
are delivered to the customers. During the Reporting Year, there are no
products sold that are retured due to health and safety reasons.

The Group strictly adheres to the applicable laws and regulations
relating to product/services responsibility in Hong Kong and the PRC
such as Sale of Good Ordinance (Chapter 26 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance (Chapter 456 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of
China ("fFEARKEMBEIEMEEEX"). For the Reporting Year, the
Group was not aware of any material noncompliance with relevant laws
and regulations related to product responsibility nor any our products
being recalled.
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RIE  HERERRE

SECTION B: SOCIAL OPERATING
PRACTICES co
Aspect B6: Product Responsmlllty (Continued)
Customer Complaints

The Group regularly conducts customer satisfaction surveys to ensure
we meet customers’ expectations and strive for betterments in relation
to our services. We conducted the customer satisfaction survey every
half-yearly and the feedback from customers who participated in the
survey are positive, in which they are satisfied with the products and
services provided.

Besides, the Group has adopted a set of customer communication
policy as the Group places huge importance on the customers’
feedbacks. Moreover, customer complaints are of greatest concern
to our Group. We will follow up the complaints closely and middle
and senior management will also be involved to resolve the customer
complaints. The Group has established a Product Recall Control
Procedures. In case of any finished products are found with possible
defects, the Group can recall the defective products from the
customers immediately to avoid customer complaints.

For the Reporting Year, there were 3 cases of complaints received
(FY2020/21: Nil), of which the complaints were due to reasons of
production issue and quality of products and they are fully resolved. The
Group believes that the complaints were rare cases, and we will strive
to ensure the quality control of the products and satisfy customers’
expectations with the highest quality in the products and customer
complaints handling procedures we offer.

Intellectual Property Right

The Company acknowledged the importance of intellectual property
rights. The Group takes all practicable steps and measures to ensure
that the data collected from customers are always well-protected
regarding the concerned designs and intellectual property. The
Company has applied RFID, NFC and Real QR Code technology to
collect information for marketing initiatives. To address the confidentiality
issue regarding recipient information, all the information is appropriately
stored in the cloud service.

For the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any complaints
or non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to the
use, holding and processing of such information or personal data from
customers.
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SECTION B: SOCIAL OPERATING
PRACTICES co
Aspect B6: Product Respon5|b|I|ty (Continued)
Confidentiality

Confidentiality in business promotes confidence and trusts between
our clients and our employees with the Group as protecting privacy is
the basis for building trustful relationships. Our employees are required
to comply with the terms regarding non-disclosure agreement upon
confirming their employment status to ensure confidential information

are properly kept. Regardless of the circumstances of termination or
voluntary turnover, employees are strictly prohibited from divulging
any confidential information of the Group to any other person,
firm, corporation, news, media or association during or after their
employment with potential, actual or past clients. Failure to comply
with the above-mentioned obligation may be considered as a serious
misconduct by the Group, and the employee may be faced with
follow-up actions.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group has zero tolerance over anti-corruption and bribery.
The Group has stipulated a set of anti-corruption policy to ensure
compliance by all employees, officers and directors of the Group.
Employees should not solicit or accept any advantage for themselves.
Directors and employees should avoid any conflicts of interest situation,
at which their private interest conflicts with the Group’s interest. Regular
trainings on anti-corruption are provided to all employees in the PRC
regularly to refresh and enrich their understandings and knowledge
towards moral business ethnics and the importance of anti-corruption.
During the Reporting Year, there were 44 employees participated in the
anti-corruption training.

On the other hand, the Group has also formulated a whistle blowing
policy or raising the awareness of employees in maintaining business
integrity and internal corporate justice. The policy provides details and
guidelines for employees regarding the whistleblowing procedures.
Should any suspicious matters arise, various reporting channels are
available for employees to raise their concerns to the Group. Our
management will review and take follow-up actions to investigate every
suspected misconduct case raised by the whistle blowing mechanism.

For the Reporting Year, there was no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees.
The Group was not aware of any misconduct and any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to anti-
corruption.
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B B REARS

SECTION B: SOCIAL - COMMUNITY
Aspect B8: Community Investment

As a socially responsible Company, we are actively engaged in
ongoing community and charity work. In the Reporting Year, the Group
participated in total of 120 hours of volunteering work with 33 of our
employees joined (FY2020/21: 160 hours of volunteering work with 40
employees). Besides active engagement in the community via charity
work, the Group are with close concern our next generation in the
society. In the Reporting Year, the Group has also donated HK$10,000
to the RMHC Hong Kong (Ronald McDonald House Charities Hong
Kong) to help the sick children and their families, which help the parents
to stay close to their sick child and take good care with their sick child.

In the forthcoming year, we will continue to expand community service
and activities to serve the interest of the society.

Event After the Reporting Period for Community
Investment

Further to the donation made in the Reporting Year, the Group has
donated to the Hong Kong WEMP Education Foundation Limited to
make one-time donation in the amount of HK$1,000,000 on 19 August
2022 (after the Reporting Year), in order to sponsor the organization of
Gala Dinner Event for helping children in Hong Kong for mental health
support.
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R HERERHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RIEEE
Year ended Year ended
Emissions Indicators Unit 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-®2--Ff BHE_T-_F
TSR B AASHALEE SASHALFE
Air emissions kg 1,036 1,007
ERBEH NIy
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg 965 939
AE(LHINO) Nis
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) kg 1 1
e (S0 NI
Respiratory Suspended Particles (RSP) kg 70 67
AR ABIFHRLT (RSP) NIy
Intensity kg/HK$'00000 0.16 0.26
BE DT/ TBET
Greenhouse gas emissions tonnes 4,533 4,319
BERBHER W
Scope 1 Emissions from Fossil Fuel Consumption tonnes 151 165
HBE KB RRELEFERHE I
Emission from the Use of Refrigerant tonnes 43 92
REFRARALEEER [
Scope 2 Emissions from Electricity Consumption tonnes 4,294 4,028
&E2 REEERENEER 9
Emissions from Paper Waste Disposed of at Landfills tonnes Nil & 8
RERERHIERE BRI I
Scope 3 Emissions from Water and Sewage Processing tonnes 44 35
#E3 REBRIEKRTKEIHER g
Emissions from Employee Business Air Travel tonnes Nil & Nil &
REEEBBMEERNBEN 9
Emissions from Downstream Transportation and Distribution tonnes 1.12 0.47
KB THHER & HNBER I
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00000 0.69 1.14
BE M/ TEET
Hazardous waste tonnes 13 10
BEEBREY 0
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00000 0.002 0.008
BE W,/ TEET
Non-hazardous waste tonnes 3,236 3,031
BEBREY W
Disposed at landfills tonnes 50 53
EEENHER I
Recycled tonnes 3,186 2,978
BE W3
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00000 0.49 0.80
BE B/ +EET
Sewage tonnes 54,159 49,941
5K M8
Intensity tonnes/HK$'00000 8.23 13.14
BE M,/ TEET
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ENVIRONMENTAL DATA (Continued) RIREHE @)

Year ended Year ended
Use of Resources Indicators Unit 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-B--F HE_T_—F
ERERER By XAZTHLFE SA=THLEE
Electricity Consumption MWh 7,390 6,602
ENH#E FTRE
Intensity MWh/HK$'00000 1.12 1.74
HE TRE/+8ET
Energy Consumption MWh 7,993 7,220
BERUH JKEES
Electricity Consumption MWh 7,390 6,602
BNEHE KL
Diesel Consumption MWh 533 535
LB S KL
Gasoline Consumption MWh 70 83
FURERE KL
Intensity MWh/HK$'00000 1.22 1.90
HE kR +EET
Fuel Consumption L
HRBLH 7t
Diesel L 49,811 49,961
L 7t
Diesel Consumption Intensity L/HK$'00000 7.57 13.14
SOhERE #/+EET
Gasoline L 7,252 8,537
bt 7t
Gasoline Consumption Intensity L/HK$'00000 1.10 2.25
REREE #/+EET
Water Consumption me 76,854 60,722
RKH#E SR
Intensity mM%/HK$'00000 11.68 15.98
HE VAR TEBT
Raw Material Consumption tonnes 22,774 21,119
R AT R FE A
FSC Paper Material tonnes 14,063 7,725
BAMNEREZEERE I
Non-FSC Paper Material tonnes 8,711 13,394
RERMEEZEBRHE M8
Refrigerant Consumption kg 28 62
U2 BIHE NI
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERHRE

SOCIAL DATA HEEE
Year ended Year ended
Employment Indicators 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-B--F HE_ZT_—F
EEEE ANAZTHLEEE ASA=THIEFE
Total number of employees {E 2 & & 1,256 971
By Gender &£ 51 2%
Male 51 624 573
Female Z % 632 308
By Age Group ZE &R AR 25|
Under 18 18T Nil & N::
181025 18 255% 352 332
261035 2623585 368 279
361045 36E45%% 330 280
461055  46E55E 176 46
5610 65 56 £ 655 24 29
65 or above 65BR LA £ 6 5
By Employment Type % {ERFE A& 2
Indefinite duration contract 3EE 7 EifE A 4 215 169
Definite duration contract 7€ EAfE & 4) 615 505
Temporary contract FafF & 4 380 272
Re-employed retirees EFTIEARMRA 46 25
By Geographical Location & ith 32 { B &) 5
Hong Kong &8 32 33
PRC 1,224 938
Employment Turnover & T /i k&=
Total number of employee tumover 48 8 T iRk A& 686 1400
% of employee tumover (monthly average) B Tk a2t (8 AFH) 5% 11%
Employment Turnover by gender (Monthly average %)
REREAINEIRAE (BAFHEIL)
Male 5% 6% 12%
Female Z1% 4% 11%
Employment Turnover by age group (Monthly average %)
RERAREAPNEIRAER (BATLHESL)
Under 18 188 T Nil & NI 4&
18-25 18E2575% 7% 14%
26-35 26 =355 6% 14%
36-45 36E 458 4% 7%
46-55 A6 E555% 2% 12%
56-65 56 E655% 1% 3%
65 orabove 655EA £ Nil % N::
Employment Turnover by geographic region (Monthly average %)
RBNBEPNEIRAZE (BALYEIL)
Hong Kong &8 0.5% Not disclosed
last year
AFEWEE R
PRC F & 5.5% Not disclosed
last year
AFWEEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HEREBWE

SOCIAL DATA ¢ HEHE 2
Year ended Year ended
Health and Safety Indicators 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-B-—F Hz-T——F
BRERZZEE ABZ+ALEFE NA=-THLEFE
Number of reported injuries £ RZEHF 3 12
Number of lost days 18k X & 71 Not disclosed
last year
AFEWEE TR
Number of lost hours 18 2 B £ Disclosed 5735
lost days
BEBAXRE
Development and Training Indicators 2 /& & 1Z 1512
Total number of hours of interal training received by employees 1 & PIERES 3l 4285 £1 2,498 4,994
Average hours of training per employee &4 {8 8 F 1955 3l E5 21 2.0 5.14
Total training hours per employee by employee category
BESHEIRE (REEERES)
Eniry Level §14% 2,334 3,868
Middle Management A 4% & 12 |8 124 826
Senior Management i R & 12 [E 40 300
Total training hours per employee by gender {EE & 5HZ IR & (B4R 2)
Male S 1% 1,516 Not disclosed
last year
AFEWEE R
Female Z % 982 Not disclosed
last year
AFEWEE R
% of trained employee by employment category Z1ZH|EEF oL (REEERIES)
Entry Level #4% 93% 95%
Middle Management 4% & 12 /8 5% 4%
Senior Management B R E 12 E 2% 1%
% of trained employee by gender S1EHEEF AL (FHEFIES)
Male B 61% 55%
Female 1% 39% 45%
Average training hour by employment category F1912 3|8 (RESERIE D)
Entry level ¥4 2.0 Not disclosed
last year
AFVERE
Middle Management A 4% & 12 |8 2.0 Not disclosed
last year
AFVERE
Senior Management i R & 18 B 2.0 Not disclosed
last year
EFVERE
Average training hour by gender 3333185 8 (14585 )
Male 514 2.0 Not disclosed
last year
REWMEFE
Female %Z1% 2.0 Not disclosed
last year
REWMEFE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SOCIAL DATA (c

RIE -HEKRER

HE

Year ended Year ended
Supply Chain Indicators 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-E--F HEZ—_—F
HEEsEEE ARBZ+HLEEE RNA=ZTHILEEE
Total number of suppliers £ fEE A 64 68
Hong Kong &% 32 35
China 28 31
Vietnam #78 2 1
Germany 12 1 1
Singapore 1 0 1 Nil 4
Year ended Year ended
Product Responsibility Indicators 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-E--F HE_Z-_—F
EmEEEE RA=THLEEE ~A=THILFE
Total number of products subject to recalls for safety and health reason Nil & Nil £&
Ze REREEmARKRNERER
Total number of complaints received &% S 4221 3 Nil 4
Total number of legal dispute case A2 A R4 448 Nil £ Nil 4
Year ended Year ended
Anti-corruption Indicators 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-E--F HEZT_—F
RESEE ARE=Z+HLEEE RA=THIEEE
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Nil & Nil £&
brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of cases
REBESHEMEITASEEERETEEED
BVSREARMR B Rk
Year ended Year ended
Community Indicators 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
BE-E--F HE-_ZT-_—F
HERES RA=THLEE ~A=THILFE
Corporate charitable donation (HKD) b 252488 (B7T) $10,000 Nil 4
Employee volunteering service hours {8 & # T RTF5 £ 120 160
Number of employee volunteer 2B & T1EZ (B ABL 33 40



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company during the year was investment
holding.

The principal activities of the Group during the year consisted of
investment holding and the sale and manufacture of printing products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and a review on the business activities of the Group,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group and an indication of the likely future development of the
Group’s business, are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 3
to 4 and pages 6 to 15 of this annual report, respectively. Certain key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s environment
policies and performance and its compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations, and an account of the Group'’s relationship with its
key stakeholders are included in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis”. These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 32 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year and the Company’s and the Group’s
financial positions at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 113 to 196.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK6.8
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the
register of members on 5 December 2022,

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY'’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to 15 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the Group’s financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on page 2 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital during the year are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of our directors were interested in any business apart from the
Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Neither the Group nor the Company had any connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the year. The related party transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements are
exempted continuing connected transactions.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which could
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Detalls of the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in
note 26 to the financial statements, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2022, the Company's reserves available for distribution
amounted to HK$480,599,000 (2021: HK$480,882,000), calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. In addition, the Company's share premium of HK$479,712,000
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on
9 October 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”). No share option has
been granted since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and
there was no share option outstanding as at 30 June 2022. The terms
of the Share Option Scheme are set out below.

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme enables our Company
to grant options to the eligible persons as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to our Group.

(b) Participants
The Board may, at its discretion, invite any eligible persons to
take up options.

(c) Total number of shares available for

issue under the Share Option Scheme
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue as at the date
of listing (i.e., a total of 48,000,000 shares representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report).

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company, in
any 12 months' period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

(f

(9)

(h)

Terms of subscription of shares upon
exercise of the options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant.

Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised
The Board may In its absolute discretion set a minimum period
for which an option must be held before an option can be
exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount
payable on acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of an option must be accepted within
twenty-eight days from the date on which the option is granted.
The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Basis for determination of the exercise
price

The exercise price for any share under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Board and notified to each
grantee (in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option)
and shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share at the date of grant.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme and there was no share option outstanding as at
30 June 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed
above, there is no equity-linked agreement that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares being
entered into by the Company during the year ended 30 June 2022 or
subsisted as at 30 June 2022,
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for approximately 91% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 72%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 48% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 18%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang

Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin

Mr. CHAN Chi Ming

Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry

Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis

Mr. WONG Kam Fai

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number of directors
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company
at the general meeting at which a director retires may fill the vacated
office.

Each of Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Mr. Ng Sze Yuen
Terry and Mr. Wong Kam Fai will retire at the Annual General Meeting
("AGM") and all of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry, Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis and Mr. Wong Kam Fai,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang (&%), aged 78, was appointed as a
Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as the chairman and
executive Director on 18 January 2017. Mr. Peter Chan is responsible
for managing the overall operations and business strategic planning of
our Group. Mr. Peter Chan founded our Group in the late 1970s and
has over 40 years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Peter Chan
has completed form five education.

Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin ((RERR), aged 49, was appointed
as a Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as the chief
executive officer of our Group and executive Director on 18 January
2017. He is responsible for formulating business strategies and
overseeing general performance of our Group, in particular the Group’s
sales and marketing activities, internal audit function and information
technology initiatives. He has over 19 years of experience in the printing
industry and over 26 years of experience in sales and marketing. After
joining our Group in May 2003, he has been primarily responsible
for formulating business strategies and overseeing the general
performance of our Group. He was a committee member of the 10th
Zhaoging Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference* (FRARBGAH A EZEEMETE
£ E8%) from 2012 to 2017. He is also an honorary chairman of the
board of directors of the Zhaoging Overseas Fraternal Association®
EEBIBESE NEEEEEEY
a director of the 3rd board of directors of the Hong Kong GuangFoZhao
Fraternity Association” (B/SEHEHREASE=BEET) from
2017 to 2020. Mr. Kenneth Chan was a member of the Entrepreneurs’
Organisation — Hong Kong Chapter Limited (B& S F ¥R HE
ABRAR]) from 2005 to 2015. He was a YPO Beiing member of the
Young Presidents’ Organisation — Beijing Chapter (F & @& H &1t =
&) from 2014 to 2019, in which he has also joined as a YPO Pearl
River Delta member of the Young Presidents’ Organization — Pearl
River Delta Chapter (BF@BHHEHR=AHE) since 2017. He has
also been admitted to the Institute of Print-Media Professionals (ENRIl &
fam ¥ A EH€) as an Honorary Fellow since June 2018. He is also
a member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries (B8 T4
since October 2018. He is also a member of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce (B4 E) since January 2020. He is also a
General Committee Member of the 42nd Committee of The Hong Kong
Printers Association since May 2022. Mr. Kenneth Chan completed his
second year of studies in computer science at the University of British
Columbia in Canada in 1995.

). Mr. Kenneth Chan was also

ESEWRE

EERSREEERE

BTES

MEELE 785 R-T—tF—A+ AR
EEREF YR-T—+tF—A+/\BBEE
FHRUTES BEEEEAETEAEEER
LEREBRMAL - REERER-NLEF
RARBILAEE - REVRITTEREBRI0FER -
SRS ER KR ERE -

BRERBREE 495 R-T—+tF—A++tAE
EEREE YR _E—+F—A+N\BHAER
EETRERFNTEE - FARHETAEEE
BREBREREERE  LEEAFEMNHEER
EHEE) - NEPEZBEE R B ABGTE - B
BRI BEARI0FKBENEEREHE A
BEBGERLSR - NS = FHAMAKRER
B HEIEAEHTEASEEG R RERER
KR -BRZIZ—ZFEZT—LFRFEAR
BathEeREETE TEZEEZE8 - BN A
EESIBESE N EEECREGR N2
—+tEETTF REBEENADBES
EMEABREE - EESECEE -N_TETHFE
—E-AF BEBRELEAEESTELERDE
ERATEE - R _E—NEE_T—IEA
SFREHeltrnsgg8  TE_T—tFR
EABTFEIBEKR=-AN ST EMAZMEL -
BE-ZZT—\FENARMNEEEADNRHEEEE
AEBHERALESE - AT \FT+AR
NAEESTIEBEEE - HFA_T_TF— A1t
NARSREEE8 - FE_T-__FHAREN
AEBHREREeFNt+ _EES - METBRALE
R—ANEFEMEXRTTRAB T ML K25
BRIENE —FRE o

93



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond (F#& %), aged 74, was
appointed as a Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated
as an executive Director on 18 January 2017. Mr. Desmond Chan is
responsible for overseeing the daily operations of our Group in Hong
Kong. Mr. Desmond Chan joined our Group in the late 1970s and has
over 39 years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Desmond Chan
has completed form five education.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (R 85), aged 66, was appointed as a Director
on 17 January 2017 and was designated as an executive Director on
18 January 2017. Mr. Chan Chi Ming is responsible for overseeing the
daily operations of our PRC production facilities. He joined our Group
in the late 1970s upon completion of his form five education in Hong
Kong and has over 39 years of experience in the printing industry.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry (R +Jt) aged 62, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Mr. Ng has
over 30 years of experience in operations and management and is
now the chief executive officer and an executive director of LAVENUE
International Holdings Limited, a private company in Hong Kong, and
his responsibilities include strategic planning, financial investments,
management of property development and investment portfolios, both
in Hong Kong and overseas. He is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of China New City Commercial Development Limited
(stock code: 1321), and International Housewares Retail Company
Limited (stock code: 1373), companies of which shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

He served as an executive director of Hang Lung Group Limited (stock
code: 010), Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 101) and
Giordano International Limited (stock code: 709), companies of which
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also
worked at the Stock Exchange and held various positions.

Mr. Ng is a fellow member of CPA Australia. He obtained a master's
degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
November 1995 and a bachelor degree in commerce majoring in
accounting and finance systems from the University of New South
Wales, Australia in April 1985.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis (5R7E#), aged 74, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Dr. Chu
is currently a registered medical practitioner in Hong Kong with over
30 years of experience in medicine. In January 1973, he joined the
Medical & Health Department of the Hong Kong Government as a
medical and health officer. In September 1984, he was transferred to
the Accident & Emergency Department of the Prince of Wales Hospital
and was promoted to senior medical & health officer in May 1986.
Dr. Chu was also a medical superintendent of Tung Wah Hospital
between June 1981 and February 1982 and a medical superintendent
of the Prince of Wales Hospital between August 1989 and February
1990. He was also actively involved in the setting-up of the Accident &
Emergency Department of the Prince of Wales Hospital in 1984 and the
Accident & Emergency Information System at Queen Elizabeth Hospital
in 1994. Dr. Chu joined the Hospital Authority in December 1991 until
his retirement in July 2003 and was an adviser of service transformation
of the Accident & Emergency Department of Queen Elizabeth Hospital
through his membership in the Departmental Consultative Committee.
Dr. Chu obtained degrees of Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of
Surgery from the University of Hong Kong in November 1972.

Mr. Wong Kam Fai (Z##&) aged 78, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 October 2020. He obtained
a Bachelor degree of Science from the University at Alberta in Canada.
After graduation, he went back to Hong Kong and worked briefly in
the government as an Executive Officer. In 1969, he started his long
career with the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a statutory
organization responsible for promoting Hong Kong's external trade.
In his more than 31 years of service with the Council, he acquired
extensive experience working both in Hong Kong and overseas
including Los Angeles, Chicago, Dallas, New York, Panama, Paris,
London, etc. He retired from the Council in 2010 as its Deputy
Executive Director.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
He soon joined the China-United States Exchange Foundation in
November 2010 as its Executive Director. The Foundation is a Hong
Kong based non-profit organisation established in 2008 to promote
positive relationship and better understanding between China and the
United States of America. In that capacity, he created and managed
a comprehensive program to enable the peoples of the two countries
from all walks of life including academic, students, politicians,
researchers, officials, media and businessmen to better understand
each other. He retired from the Foundation in 2018 and has been
invited by its board to be its Special Advisor since.

Senior Management

Mr. Tang Shichun (Btt&), aged 52, is the deputy general
manager of Tung Pak Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited and is
responsible for overseeing the production activities. He has over 26
years of experience in printing services and management. Prior to
joining our Group in 1997, he had around four years of experience in
Hebei Xintal Ruikai Printing Limited* (ATt A& el EN B £ A
fR 7~ A]) as an apprentice and his last position held was a supervisor
of the printing plate department (EN Rl 4% 2B P9 5 % ). He obtained a
certificate (4 & £ %) of printing technology™ (E Ml £ 17) from the
Beiiing Institute of Graphic Communication* (1t 5 E Fll £ ) in July
1992.

Mr. Chan Chiu Ning (FREiE), aged 59, is the deputy general
manager of Sun Hing Printing Company Limited and is responsible for
operations and human resources management. He has over 23 years
of experience in the manufacturing industry. Prior to joining our Group
in July 2002, he had been a supervisor of the customer clearance
department in Solid Company Limited for over seven years. Mr. Chan
has completed his high school education in the PRC.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Yiu Cho (##18), aged 40, was appointed as the
company secretary of our Company on 30 September 2021 and is
responsible for the company secretarial matters of our group. Mr. Lam
has more than 16 years of experience in the accounting and corporate
industry. Since March 2016, Mr. Lam has been working for AE Majoris
Advisory Company Limited. Mr. Lam has been a Non-executive Director
of Capital Estate Limited (stock code:193), a company listed on Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, since February 2022, From August 2008
to February 2016, Mr. Lam worked at First Pacific Company Limited
with his last position being a Corporate Development Manager in the
corporate development department, responsible for overseeing mergers
and acquisitions projects of the company. From January 2006 to
August 2008, Mr. Lam worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu with his last
position being a Senior in the Audit Department. From September 2004
to January 2006, Mr. Lam worked at Emst & Young as Staff Accountant
in the assurance and advisory business services department. Mr. Lam
graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
with a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) in
Accounting in November 2004, He was admitted as a Certified Public
Accountant and a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February 2008 and
January 2018, respectively.

In view of Mr. Lam’s experience in legal and company secretarial
functions and with stock exchange rules and regulations, our Directors
believe that Mr. Lam has the appropriate expertise for the purposes of
Rule 8.17 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, every director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for directors and
officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements, or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders as defined in the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, meaning Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang, Mr. Chan
Kenneth Chi Kin, Mr. Desmond Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Goody
Luck Limited and Goody Capital Limited (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have entered into the deed of non-competition dated
9 October 2017 (the "Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the
Company, details of which were set out in the Prospectus dated
2 November 2017. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each
of the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken to the Company that
with effect from the Listing Date, they shall, and shall procure that their
respective close associates and/or companies controlled by them (other
than our Group) shall not, directly or indirectly, be interested or involved
or engaged in, or acquire or hold any right or interest (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) in any business which is or is about to
be engaged in any business which competes or is likely to compete
directly or indirectly with the businesses currently and from time to time
engaged by our Group (including the business as a printing service
provider).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the Company by
written confirmations that from the Listing Date and up to the date
of the Annual Report 2021/2022, they and their respective close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) have complied with
the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-competition. For the
year ended 30 June 2022 and up to the date of the Annual Report
2021/2022, save and except for the interest that the Directors have in
the Company and its subsidiaries, none of the Directors, the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective close associates (as defined under
the Listing Rules) had any business or interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest with the Group.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors had reviewed the written
confirmations and the status of compliance and confirmed that each
of the Controlling Shareholders of the Company has complied with the
non-competition undertaking and the non-competition undertaking has
been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company
As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), are set out
below:
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests

= N 2

and/or short positions in shares and

underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations

E
A. ESERITHAZRAATRMSRE

WEw)

RO ERZR,BKRE (&)

RAQFAREEMEBZER O 2FR

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
or any of its
associated
Company/ Number and corporations’
name of associated Nature of interest class of total issued
Name of director company and capacity securities share capital
EARRHEE
WEREEL S
x28/ F5YAR BRITRE
32 BHARERE BEMERSH <l BOEAL
Chan Peter Tit Sang The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
RéE YN REELE s 360,000,000
(Bist1)hist2) )
Goodly Luck Limited Beneficial owner 986 shares of 98.6%
(“Goody Luck”) US$1.00 each
ERlAA BeREREE
100wz kin
Chan Kenneth Chi Kin The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
REZ YN REEEE RS 360,000,000
(Bt 1)iHizz2) Rt
Goody Luck Beneficial owner 14 shares of 1.4%
US$1.00 each
ERfAA 1A EREE
1.00%€ 2 Rin
(Goody Capital Limited Bengficial owner 1 share of 33.3%
(“Goody Capital") US$1.00
EnlEA 1REE
100% 2 R
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued) ek E (2
A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests A. EERTHARAERQ ARG KAE
and/or short positions in shares and ERPzERZR,BAKE (&)
underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)
Long positions in shares of the Company or any of RAARASRHEMEELIERD ZHE
its associated corporations (Continued) (#)
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
or any of its
associated
Company/ Number and corporations’
name of associated Nature of interest class of total issued
Name of director company and capacity securities share capital
AR AHEE
AREEELH
x28/ #5EAR BRITRE
32 BHARERE BEMERSH kepl BHEI
Chan Chi Ming The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
REH YN REEEE E 360,000,000
(Bt 1) (Wit2) Rk in
Goody Capital Beneficial owner 1 share of 33.3%
US$1.00
ERBAA 1REE
1002 &in
Chan Chun Sang The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
Desmond corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
REE NG REEEERR B ah)
(Hstr)(hst2)
Goody Capital Beneficial owner 360,000,000 33.3%
1 share of
US$1.00
ERlRA 1REE
100% T2 kin
Notes: Biat -
1. The Company is owned as to 54.8% by Goody Luck and 1, REEENMeEBEIT RN BEE THE (R

20.2% by Goody Capital immediately after the completion of the
capitalisation issue and the share offer (without taking into account
any of the shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the over-allotment option and the options that may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme). Goody Luck is owned as to
98.6% by Mr. Peter Chan and 1.4% by Mr. Kenneth Chan, and
Goody Capital is owned as to 33.3% by Mr. Desmond Chan,
33.3% by Mr. Chan Chi Ming and 33.3% by Mr. Kenneth Chan.

AT N A B EE B AR 4 R AR AR B AR A AT 2 AT
EERLNEBREETERITRERERE
THEM R D)+ &2 & B Goody Luck
B 54.8% # 2% N /@ Goody Capital &
20.2% 1 25 > Goody Luck H FR 8 4 4t 4
BOB6% M REPREREEES1.4%
#E 2% + T Goody Capital BIl g BR & 4 45 4
B33.3%  BRFEBASE AR AI3.3% KA
BRAER S AR 33.3% 1 ©
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (¢

A.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of

its associated corporations (Continued)
Notes:. (Continued)

2. Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Kenneth Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, and
Mr. Desmond Chan are persons acting in concert pursuant to the
Acting in Concert Confirmation and Undertaking and accordingly
each of them is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the
others. By the Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking,
with respect to the businesses of each member of the Group,
(i) each of Mr. Peter Chan and Mr. Desmond Chan confirms
that since 31 December 1990; (ii) each of Mr. Peter Chan,
Mr. Desmond Chan and Mr. Chan Chi Ming confirms that since
5 February 1991; and (iiij each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Desmond
Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Kenneth Chan confirms that
since 8 March 2010, (i) they have agreed to consult each other
and reach an unanimous consensus among themselves on such
matters being the subject matters of any shareholders’ resolution,
prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed at any
shareholders’ meeting of each member of the Group, and have
historically voted on each resolution in the same way; (i) they have
centralised the ultimate control and right to make final decisions
with respect to their interests in the businesses and projects of
members of the Group; and (iii) they have operated members of
the Group as a single business venture on a collective basis and
have made collective decisions in respect of the financial and
operating policies of the members of the Group, and will continue
to do so. As such, each of the controlling shareholders is deemed
to be interested in 75.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Short positions in shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none of the
Directors and/or chief executives of the Company nor their
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have
taken under the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required
to be kept therein or which would be required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continue

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company
As at 30 June 2022, the following persons (other than the
directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests of
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the

ESEWRE

= N 2

EnIHE )
B. FERRREMALTREQTRSG
RAEEROZERZE BAE

RZZE-—FXNA=+B U TAL F8
BARRBESBHITHREBE) RARBIRMD &
RO ERLARRBIREES LB
EIEPIE 36 IMAETFTEZ =S Mz 5%

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: A R
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company RAEQARAEBERZHERE
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Number of total issued
Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares share capital
AR 2
ERITRE
BRgE,/ 4% B/ EnkE RPEE BRBEDH
Goody Luck Beneficial interest (Notes 7, 2) 360,000,000 75%
Bnlkm (Wit 2)
Goody Capital Beneficial interest (Notes 1, 2) 360,000,000 75%
BikEn (WaHt1-2)
Mr. Peter Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
B+ REEERER (fi22)
Mr. Kenneth Chan Interest in controlled corporations (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
BREBREE REEEER (Wit2)
Mr. Chan ChiMing Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
BRAEEA LA REEERER (22
Mr. Desmond Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%
BEERE REEERER (22
Ms. Chan Lai Lin Diana Interest of spouse (Note 3) 360,000,000 75%
BEERT Fl iR (Wits)
Ms. Wong Orangeo Wendy Interest of spouse (Note 4) 360,000,000 75%
FTEERT TR (Hit4)
Ms. Lee Shuk Fong Interest of spouse (Note 5) 360,000,000 75%
ERELaL BB RER (Mito)
Ms. Tso Yin Wah Interest of spouse (Note 6) 360,000,000 75%
ThERT @Bk (ite)
Deputada Leong On Kei, Angela Beneficial interest 24,000,000 5%
RLUEE BafEn
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:

1. The Company is owned as to 54.8% by Goody Luck and 20.2%
by Goody Capital after the completion of the capitalisation issue
and the share offer. Goody Luck is owned as to 98.6% by
Mr. Peter Chan and 1.4% by Mr. Kenneth Chan, and Goody
Capital is owned as to 33.3% by Mr. Desmond Chan, 33.3% by
Mr. Chan Chi Ming and 33.3% by Mr. Kenneth Chan.

2. Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Kenneth Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and
Mr. Desmond Chan are persons acting in concert pursuant to the
Acting in Concert Confirmation and Undertaking and accordingly
each of them is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the
others. By the Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking,
with respect to the businesses of each member of the Group,
(i) each of Mr. Peter Chan and Mr. Desmond Chan confirms
that since 31 December 1990; (ii) each of Mr. Peter Chan,
Mr. Desmond Chan and Mr. Chan Chi Ming confirms that since
5 February 1991; and (iiij each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Desmond
Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Kenneth Chan confirms that
since 8 March 2010, (i) they have agreed to consult each other
and reach an unanimous consensus among themselves on such
matters being the subject matters of any shareholders’ resolution,
prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed at any
shareholders’ meeting of each member of the Group, and have
historically voted on each resolution in the same way; (i) they have
centralised the ultimate control and right to make final decisions
with respect to their interests in the businesses and projects of
members of the Group; and (iii) they have operated members
of the Group as a single business venture on a collective basis
and have made collective decisions in respect of the financial
and operating policies of the members of the Group, and will
continue to do so. As such, each of the controlling shareholders is
deemed to be interested in 756% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

3. Ms. Chan Lai Lin Diana is the spouse of Mr. Peter Chan. Under
the SFO, Ms. Chan is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares in which Mr. Peter Chan is interested.

4, Ms. Wong Orangeo Wendy is the spouse of Mr. Kenneth Chan.
Under the SFO, Ms. Wong is deemed to be interested in the
same number of shares in which Mr. Kenneth Chan is interested.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:. (Continued)

5. Ms. Lee Shuk Fong is the spouse of Mr. Chan Chi Ming. Under
the SFO, Ms. Lee is deemed to be interested in the same number
of shares in which Mr. Chan Chi Ming is interested.

6. Ms. Tso Yin Wah is the spouse of Mr. Desmond Chan. Under the
SFO, Ms. Tso is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Desmond Chan is interested.

Short positions in shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations

As at 30 June 2022, no person, other than the directors and
chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company” above, had registered an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has no significant events after the reporting period up to the
date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Chan Peter Tit Sang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 September 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun
Hing Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 196, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HEETSER

FARETEE

MRBTZTEEREBEESNERHE  RAEN
PEAMBRRNEIRAEENEH - ZEFS
IE;EE"E”*EJrWﬁL?EE\ﬁﬂ%iE%%&ﬁE LB
iﬁmﬁfi SHZEETHRRHEEBNE
€ %ﬂ' %IEE"%#EP A N a] B2 HE Y

ﬁLWMM%

e,
==

EEERTTARE [(RBMA BRSSP BRE
ARYENEE] 2o Mt E’JEE BREZF
HAEMMEE - HEM VET TIEEREH

ﬁﬁrﬁ%’ﬂpﬂéﬁﬂ’lm’\ﬁﬁxiﬁﬁékﬁuéaﬁkﬂ
MRt EIZRF - BERITEHEFNE
&%E‘Z@T L RIEMATHRFT ﬁm/\ﬁﬁ‘%i&
RETBRIRHER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNAEERRETEE

Provision for inventories

FERHE

As at 30 June 2022, the Group recorded gross inventories
of approximately HK$68,065,000 and a provision for
impairment of approximately HK$2,163,000. The write-
down of inventories to net realisable value was estimated by
management through the application of judgement and the
use of highly subjective assumptions.

RZEZ_ZFXA=Z1+H AEEHBFTEY
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The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment
provision for inventories are included in notes 3, 4, 7 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
BHFEREREHENSTTBRERKEEREHN
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Our audit procedures included:

B EEHIZRF B -

obtaining an understanding of management's controls over
identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excess and other inventory items whose costs may not be
fully recoverable;
BEEEEBHNBRIMNEERE B -
VA R B A R g8 2 U I K AR 2 17 & B0l

HHIH BRI

evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the impairment;

il BEREEFERERAANTGE  BAENR

B

assessing the adequacy of impairment provision by
reviewing subsequent sales after the year end and a
comparison with historical sales records; and
FREMHFAEBREGHERMAFELHE
B REIEREREREERR &

FLERIEH L

observing physical condition of inventories by performing
physical inventory inspection.

ETFERERE  RERFENERMRR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no redlistic alterative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concermn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2B ENHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

30 September 2022
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REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Government grants

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating income/(expenses), net
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted
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Notes
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For the year ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLEE

2022
—s-=

HK$’000

FET

657,726

(390,822)

266,904

3,596
304

(10,240)
(108,377)
(3,574)
(6,281)

142,332

(26,552)

115,780

HK cents &1l
24.12

2021
—EC-
HK$'000
FET

380,090
(228,577)

161,613

2,829
2,753
(6,307)
(61,291)
4,192
(907)

93,782

(15,950)

77,832

HK cents &1l
16.22



PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that
may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

FEEF

Hit2mEE (BE)
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For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=THLEE

2022
—s-=

HK$’000

FET

115,780

(5,855)

(5,855)

109,925

2021
—EC-
HK$'000
FET

77,832

8,329

8,329

86,161



NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible asset

Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Prepayments and deposits

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payable

Lease liabilties

Deferred tax liability

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity
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15
16

17

20
24

18
19

21
21

22

15

23
15
24

25
26

30 June
2022
—E—-=
~A=+H
HK$’000
FET

123,712
127,373
2,137

9,884
53,130
7,938

324,174

65,902
79,682
12,043

269

237,159

395,055

31,563
44,642

7,514
45,457

129,176
265,879

590,053

1,602
121,088

122,690

467,363

4,800
462,563

467,363

30 June
2021
T4
~NA=+H
HK$'000
FET

72,051
9,650
2,700

10,588
32,112
4,687

131,788

67,079
81,930
4,982
919
203,510

368,420

28,924
36,842
10,087
28,989

104,842

263,578

385,366

83

88
385,278

4,800
380,478

385,278



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 30 June 2022 BE-ZZT-_—FA=+HILFE
Exchange
Share Share Other Retained  fluctuation Total
capital premium reserve profits reserve equity

2 R EE Ritff RERR EARBHE BRAR
HK8000 HK8000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

(note 26(a)) (note 26(b)) (note 26(c))
(Hiitzem)  (Hitoem) (Hiit260)
At 1 July 2020 “Z-ZEt+A-H 4,800 479,712 (328,049) 166,812 (158) 323,117
Prolfit for the year FERA - - - 77,832 = 77,832
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FRE M 2 EIRES :
Exchange differences on translation of BEBIFBOELER
foreign operations - - - - 8,329 8,329
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 EM B - = = 77,832 8329 86,161
Final dividend for 2020 “TCTERERE - - - (16,800) - (16,800)
Interim dividend for 2021 (note 12) S -FHRE (HF12) - - - (7,200 = (7,200
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZZE=—4:A=+Ak
“2--%tA-A 4,800 479,712 (328,049)" 220,644 8,171* 385,278
Profitfor the year FERF - - - 115,780 - 115,780
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMZEES
Exchange differences on tranglation of BEBIEBNELZE
foreign operations - - - - (5,855) (5,855)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZEMEEE - - - 115,780 (5,855) 109,925
Final dividend for 2021 (note 12) B ERERE W2 12) - - - (19,200) - (19,200)
Interim dividend for 2022 note 12) T CEERE (M2 12) - - - (8,640) - (8,640)
AL30 June 2022 R-E-—#XA=+A 4800  479,712* (328,049  308,584* 2,316 467,363

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBERBIERE MR K RN 462,563,000
HK$462,563,000 (2021: HK$380,478,000) in the consolidated BT (T = —4 : 380,478,000/ 7T) H4&RE
statement of financial position. f& -
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Year ended 30 June 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Write-down of inventories
Fair value loss/(gain) on a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss
Write-off of trade receivables
Impairment of an intangible asset
Finance costs

Increase in inventories
(Decrease)/(increase) in trade receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Increase in trade payables
Increase in other payables
and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Principal portion of lease payments

Dividend paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

BHE T -_—FXA=1THIFE

Notes
S
KETHFBESRE
R A& F
AT ZIBFTERE:
FEUWA 6
ME - BREREETE
7
FAREECTE 7
HEYHE BMEIKXEEERN
518 7
WoRFEE 7
EAFEBRAERARNS®
BEZ A AFEKS 7
WOR R E 5 BR SR 7
BILEEZRE 7
ELE B ®N 8
FEE N

B 5 RERIERL, (420)
BNFIE - RE REMERGR

0 27(c)f)
5 A FORIE

Hofth FE A FRIR N BB

o 27(c)i)

BEMBIAE
ERFE

B EBNEH
BEAEINRIE

KB EHERESREFE
RETBEBHESRE

EHAE
BEWE  BW&ENMRBEARB

6, 27(c)(i)

14, 27(c)(i)
HEME - B R iEEE
IS IR
FREBEHD,/ (50)
REEBATAR SR EFE
BMETBHAERERE
ey EﬁHZZKé*M 27()
Ea,fﬁﬂ /\_:

METBHARES RE R

2022

—Eg-=

HK$’000
FAET

142,332
(3,246)

11,111
19,221

1,603
960

704

563
6,281

179,529
(1,681)
2,210

(42,739)
3,325

7,976

148,620
(6,281)
(12,812)
(150)

129,377

2,544
(66,730)

241
635

(63,310)

(4,298)
(27,840)

(32,138)

2021

T —F
HK$'000
FHET

93,782
(2,515)

9,048
11,570

462
440

(549
98

907

113,243
(41,704)
(19,685)

(10,046)
12,387

3,751

57,946
(907)
(8,508)
(1,612)

46,919

2,515
(13,601)

106
919)

(11,799)

(12,536)
(24,000)

(36,536)



Year ended 30 June 2022

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits and wealth
management products with original
maturity of less than three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
cash flows and the consolidated
statement of financial position

HE T NA=1tHItFE

ReRRLSEYEM (AD)
E
FONRE LB EEY
SN BEE R B B B BF R

FRNRERAESEEY
RERREESENERIN
R MIRITHES

BERRAIHNBEINR=EAN
B E BT AR SR B EE o

HERERERNEAMTE
RRRPTRIE S M
ReEEY

/ Annual Report FE3kE 2021 / 2022

2022
—s-=

HK$’000

FET

33,929

203,510
(280)

237,159

53,853

183,306

237,159

2021
—EC- 4
HK$'000
FET

(1,416)

204,120
806

203,510

32,710

170,800

203,510



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands. The registered address of the Company
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 4/F., Sze Hing Industrial
Building, 35-37 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
engaged in the manufacture and sale of printing products during
the year.

Goody Luck Limited ("“Goody Luck”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), is the immediate holding
company of the Company and, in the opinion of the Directors,
also the ultimate holding company of the Company.

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

RAREEER

AR —HERSEREEMKIOER
N Al e AR B K i Ak A Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lslands ° AN Al
B B S B R BB L R R A 85-37
SN TR REAE o

ARBBREERRE - KRB REK B
NE|(MRBEAAKE]) REFALSRER
$HE ENRlan o

Goody Luck Limited ([ Goody Luck]) & 5
BHBRHE ((RBEBRES]) Mk
YWAR BARBMEEERAGR M
EERAETARDTNSEERAT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 R B o

30 June 2022
—E__FRA=1H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. XARKEEER @
IN FO R MAT'ON (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries EBEMBATNER
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARAREBHBARIMFFBFNOT
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
EMAT/ EMmES BRILER/ KRB
4 REEWE ZfRE BHEAM TEER
Direct Indirect
B 54
China IOE Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Intemet and technology
HERENHEERAR Bk 2B business
EBBRBRER
Mau Hing Intemational Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding and
BREAKRERAR B 10,0007T sdle of prinfing products
REZRREEDR R
Strong Luck Limited The BV US$1 100 - Investment holding
EERAREE 1%7 REAER
Sun Hing Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 = 100 Sale of printing products
HEERERAR &k 6,000,000 7 HEERm
Tung Pak Printing (Shenzhen) People’s Republic of HK$151,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited" China (the "PRC")/ 151,000,000 7 printing products
RRPE ORI BRAR Mainland China RERHEE R
EARLR
([hE) /hEm
Tung Pak Printing (Huizhou) The PRC/Mainland China Renminbi 80,030,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited" mE/RER AK#80,030,000 printing products
RAFE (M) BRAR" RERHE Rl
A These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises A ZEBERBTRBEEEZFMAIIGEE

under the laws of the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

R

ERINTEFTRB/ER

FEAREARFE

XEIBRASEFEETRAKENA
ARFIHEAR - EERBWEEAMM B
RAIMFHBEREEHRBER TR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss which has been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 30 June 2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arangements; and

() the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

By 755 R AR Y &

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

1 REEE

MBHmRIBBE LGNS ([FER
SRR AE ) MAMERBHBREER (&
AMBHRELR ) (BEMETEMBRS
R FRGE ((FASFERD &
28 BAELR G R EEE A BEDG
MEBEREMRR - BRIRAFEEF AR
SN ERMEECKAFEFEN  ERH
BHRERDBBEBELKAERE - (R B EE
BN W EFBHRERATET ([FETD

25 -

SERBENEXE
BEMBRRBEARRREWE R AH
BT _FXNAZTHIEFENTER
K-MBRARAARREERBELZHMN
TR (BELABETE) EAEEH2HE
REHSEBNIHRFAERBRXES
FERA R GEFE BT ELRMEN (AIAS%
EER FRARNAETEREHRARBRE
MBI ER)) 2% E B RS - BIIGE
4 o

WARFERAMEREE I RREHRK
ZHERZRBOENOER - AAKRER
AHEESERAHREHRNENSEE
E—OHBAEERER - 81 -

(@) BEREHRNHBREEFEANS
wZ
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© ARENREELEERRE-

MEBARNMERREMEART BN
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MERBERAKERGZHEE A EF AR
BRE  UHEAANGERE TSR
BIFEBRRIE -

121



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 R B o

SOJune 2022
—E-_FXA=1+H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION ¢ 1 RBEEE @)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the holding company of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond

30 June 2021

mERENEE ®)
Eé&ﬁ@@@%émﬂmmw%mﬁg
RAEEZBARNEE A RIFERE
# - AMEU RSB E RN AR AL
B MABHASESRERANNKS
MEBRBARMEERARE #x W
A RAXRRALTEENESRABEH
-

=B RBRRBER XAt = RE A =
Z—HEHIZHABAEE AEBEEHNF
HEEREHREHR - R—RHNERQ A
MR A R B HE S AR
LA X 5 AR

HAREREMB LR OEGE  AlgR
IFHERNZMBRARNEE (BREBE) &
BE () EMIEERERAREE: K
FTAMEERE BFTIEN W HER () 2 UER
REODFE : () ERRERENRFE
R (if) B B AE 3 7 1B 51 FE SR WO (LT B R B /S
o EAEREMETHANGERANAEH
EEAXBO NEMDBEEEERNRE R
M(WER)  EXREANEEER T EHEA
BEXBEMHERNEEMRR -

B BRRBEEEED

AEBERFEEAPBHRRT E RN
AT RIERT BB IS ER -

ERMBREEUNEOR - FIEREEHE -
BALHERE 9 - FEoER
BB BREENE TS
BERUEREEULE IR R
BEMBREERSE 16%

CCHES)
BARMBREER —F——F
%165 (BRTA) NA=F A%
HFER G
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described

below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest
rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities when accounting for changes
in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
conseqguence of the interest rate benchmark reform and
the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to
be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any
gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR
is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an
entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity's financial instruments and
risk management strategy.

These amendments did not have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

By 755 R AR Y &

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

22 SHHERBESEEE @)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIE AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(o)  Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees to
elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the
practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical expedient
are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

This amendment did not have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

22 ST HERBESESS &)

)

R-Z-—FOARMGOEEMBR
SEAF 165 (BATA) AR NE
AMEREERHERI12(EA - 5
EETHRAFEREMERELERN
HeReREAEEERNGFERIE -
At ZEREERIBERREEN
ROEFRRDEZERIBA/-F
ZZFERAZT RS ZAAN TR
HEEE  pliERmeERAZERE
HRFMEMEN - RETAR=-F
— AR IRAMRNFEY
BEEBER M EREAZETAN
ERRATEEERSE AN HME
HYMR BN B AE SR A EE o SLRF
RFEMA -

ZIERT AL EBH AEENERA M BR
RELEEMEAFE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 = B R

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts® ®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information? ©

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current? 4

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use’

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract’

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 417

a4 g

A=A

30 June 2022

—E-_—_FXA=+H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIE AR M EE

30 June 2022

=

FRA=+H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption.

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion.

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
Qctober 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023.

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option set out in this
amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17.

2.3 CHEMEERERNE BT K
WEER (2

RZEZZF—A— Az 2BRABZFE
HARIAE K -

MEIE-=F—A - B ZRFARZFE
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BrEwmZ B MRS ER B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (o

Further information about those HKFRSS that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilites and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(FRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 July 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEMARERNE BT K
HONG KONG F|NANC|AL REPORTING XA ()
STANDARDS (continued,
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current ERGFERE IR (BEIR) FEES
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities %5/7%#%;@ I TEREHEBDERRD
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an RIEMBEIME - ZFBTAETH - ME
entity's right to defer settlement of a liabllity is subject to the entity REEEEEENEMNIAREERG R
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to EEG AIREZEERAREBARTEK
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if - ERZBBERTEEERAE BB
it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a TEECEEEABERANNTEESE -
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise TerEaENYE - Ex—rf RTINS
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also ERARABEEEENER  ZFBIR
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. RZZE-_=F—HF—H WZ BHRBZFE
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or BN WHSEBWER - ZFBF]RE
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier RTFREER - BHZEBIIABZTIEYH
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to AEBGREUERRERTAERTE -

have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies ERGAERNEIR (BEIAR) HESF
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy BEHRTEBFBRHEZSNBEER
information rather than their significant accounting policies. ﬁﬁé‘Eﬁiﬁm TR - WEETBURE R 8
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered = iﬁ/\ﬁﬂ’%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂé‘ﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁ
together with other information included in an entity's financial - AeRRferE -—RARKST’
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions WEFEFREREZ :ﬁ?éﬂﬁ%i& =IE
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements H2RE BIEREHBEKX - BENB
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HERBBEBHREE 25 (BETA) o
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance HEE IEEE@F’E?H?\EA@*IEK%EE%EE@HF
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy EHIFES - BE S EAE 15 (BRTA)
disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual RZEZ=F— )EJ Azt 2 FE
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier M AER - WAFIRAER - AR EEH
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the BHRELEREBREE 2R (BFTA) FTiR
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, HIES| WIERF] - WEZFEET R ZERX EI
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The BN IEME - ARNE B B Al ERT M E%—Erf
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on A AEESHPRBEREE 2 HE

the Group's accounting policy disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Amendments to HKAS 8 olanfy the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax
asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted.

Upon initial application of these amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 EMRMEERERNEBIMB

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Amendments to HKAS 16 proh|b\t an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fuffiling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfiling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfiling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do
not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS )
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
llustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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—E-_—_FXA=1+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its unlisted fund investment at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — pased on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — pased on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea
Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual

impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

0] has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) s a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0] the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(Vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conin
Related parties (Continued)
(o)  (Continued)

(Vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(Vi) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3% to 5%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 5% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33.3%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 15% to 25%
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont

Property, plant and equlpment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the statements of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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B HRAR M EE
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contin
Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

@@  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
pbasis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings Over the lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful lives of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

()

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that is considered to be of low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

3. FE®
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES d)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES d
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES d
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent,
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

it has retained the risk

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

,‘mq‘

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
o receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30 June 2022
—E-_—_F,XA=+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont
Impairment of financial assets (Com‘mued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 -  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, certain
other payables and accruals and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

By 755 R AR Y &

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

FESHBERBE 2

EREE

ASmARE

TRABBENY S HERE D BEARAFER
ABSENESRAE  ERRERIEMNK
7 (@) °

MEZBRABNLIRATERR ERR
AR RN RIBERIING EREIER B

AEENTRABRERESENFIEA &
THHEMNRARETERREERE -

REBERAHE2ERMAE (ERREER)
ZRETE

R HERIK - st EERREFRERR
RERMN X REHKATTE - FRIFFR
VRETK  BIGRAKATIRR - i KRB
BEABRIEEREEBERN X HZ
B2 TERR o

SHEHEEARE - EBRBELNEMT
FXEEANBERNEARBONER
HAAA - BRF KB ABENREK
o

RIEBIATHMEAE
BEREMPEEICEERBURHER - B
RIFHEREBAE -

ERACMBBEAR-—ERARBERTE
MIEREERN S —HSBAEMRAK - X
HEFABNRFTELEXRER  HEX
BAEITERRIBAREAERER—
B EE ARREENZENERER -

145



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuec
Offsetting of financial mstruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilites and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 R B o

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=1+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilites and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Govemment grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 R B o

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=1+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or senvices to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount

receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the products.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont
Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the

employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group'’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the Group based on a percentage of
the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully once made.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the memorandum and bye-laws of the relevant
companies grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 R B o

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=1+H
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilites denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currency of certain overseas subsidiaries is a
currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (c
Foreign currencies (Continued)
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of an overseas subsidiary
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 A B EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_F,XA=+H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
C/r ir
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key

ed)
L,LA,

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for
sale or use. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review at the end of each reporting period and makes
provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying values of inventories and the write-down
of inventories recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed. The carrying amount of inventories as at
30 June 2022 was HK$65,902,000 (2021: HK$67,079,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Con
Estlmatlon uncertainty (Continued)

Withholding taxes

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had unremitted earnings
amounting to approximately HK$52,653,000 (2021
HK$65,347,000) that are subject to withholding taxes. In the
opinion of the directors, the Company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is not probable
that the subsidiaries established in Mainland China will distribute
such earmnings in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no deferred
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on distribution of unremitted eamings by the Group'’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of eamings
generated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR M EE

SOJune 2022
—E-_FXA=1+H

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the manufacture and sale of printing
products.

Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

«<.-é/'\.m|3§*>|,
REEME AEBRE—
DE - BNREE R SHE ENRI & o

i EE R
(a) RANBEFHUKE

B 2HmE =

2022 2021

—g-= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Europe N 314,126 148,384

Hong Kong &% 155,949 157,429

United States of America (the “USA”) % 103,962 24,363
The People’s Republic of China FREARKEME ([REHE])

(the “PRC") 8,784 18,580

Others EAh 74,905 31,334

657,726 380,090

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

PR SEERDREEFAELE

5I) o

(b) FRBEE

2022 2021
=== T —%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

The PRC AR 300,714 106,915
Hong Kong &5E 2,500 3,494
303,214 110,409

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.
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5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 = B R

30 June 2022

ZEZZFRA=TH
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KZ9I{&ER (&)
(Continued)
Information about major customers FEEFNER
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to RESEERP (R 10% A L) &
10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: WesslE T
2022 2021
—E-8® —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Customer A EEA N/ATE R * 52,227
Customer B =FB 471,869 188,915
Customer C EFC N/ATER* 50,634
471,869 291,776
* Less than 10% of the Group’s revenue. * DRAE B EH) 10% ©
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 6. Wiz HEtWARBSHE

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and
government grants is as follows:

Yas - B W AR BB B 2T a0 T

2022 2021
—E--F T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue Y 25
Revenue from contracts with customers BEA#H S 657,726 380,090
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHWE
Disaggregated revenue information SHFBAER
2022 2021
—E-8F T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Sale of products transferred at a point in time~ $HE R EREIZHEZENE R 657,726 380,090
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIE AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 6. Wz HMWARBATHEE &)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEEHWE (&)
(Continued)
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
Geographical markets AR FET FET
Europe (H 314,126 148,384
Hong Kong B 155,949 157,429
USA E3E1 103,962 24,363
The PRC H 8,784 18,580
Others H 74,905 31,334
657,726 380,090

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that was included in contract liabilities

TERFINAFERMREFAREHRNELH
BEREBEHREXBHEEMERR

at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from EERN =S
performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2022 2021
—E_-C —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Revenue recognised that was included in RBEEBVIFAEHNBED
contract liabilities at the beginning of the B R -
reporting period:
Sale of products HEEm 1,089 3,503
Performance obligations BHEE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of products
and payment is generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers, from delivery.

All the amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022

Note: During the year, the government grants have been received under
the Employee Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund
from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and for innovative and technology enhancement in the
PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating

to these grants.

—E-_—_FXA=+H
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 6. Wz HMWARBATHEE &)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS (Continued)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and Wz - R A RBUSHEIMA AT -
government grants is as follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income and government grants E b A & BT w6 BY
Interest income F B U A 3,246 2,515
Others HAth 350 314
3,596 2,829
Government grants (note) RAT R Bh (H152) 304 2,753
3,900 5,682

Hat - FR - RITEBIRE BB R RBFELR
E& T [RELE] 581 A KB A &l
K B BE 8 o B HETE 2 4 Bh I S P 7S
REKGH S EMRAEIR

159



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR M EE

SOJune 2022
—E-_—_FXA=1+H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBIRIEF

AEENKRBADEFE MR, GEA)

2022 2021
—E—-= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cost of inventories sold” EEFERAR 390,822 228,577
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - BiE M REZITE 11,111 9,048
(note 14) (Ktat14)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) @FHEE %(EZ?EE (H1a£15) 19,221 11,570
Lease payments not included in the RETEHER BRI ETALZ
measurement of lease liabilities (note 15(c))  FERFK () /Wﬁj? 15(c)) 7,697 3,216
Auditor's remuneration 1% B5 R 7 B 1,391 1,314
Employee bensfit expense (excluding directors' B E@ABIX (TEEEER
and chief executive's remuneration): TTERBE RN -
Wages and salaries** TEREE™ 127,958 73,226
Pension scheme contributions” RIREFHEIHER 5,376 2,652
133,334 75,878
Foreign exchange differences, net* bE & =R 704 (4,203)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE  BEMEBERD
plant and equipment* Eta 1,603 462
Write-down of inventories™ MRS~ 960 440
Fair value loss/(gain) on a financial asset at EAFEEBREBEARNSR
fair value through profit or loss* BEZNHEBE (W) 704 (549)
Write-off of trade receivables* WO W E 2 RS - 93
Impairment of an intangible asset* B EEZRE" 563 =

ok

Cost of inventories sold includes HK$131,856,000 (2021:
HK$75,651,000) of employee benefit expense, depreciation,
lease payments and write-down of inventories, the respective
amounts of which are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed above for each of these types of expenses.

These items are included in “Other operating income/(expenses),
net” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This item includes redundancy costs of HK$20,222,000 (2021
HK$3,495,000), which is included in “Cost of sales, Seling and
distribution expenses and Administrative expenses” on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

ke

BEEFEEKABIE131,856,0008 T (=ZF
——4% 75,651,000/ 7T) MEEREFMA
Y -iE - AEMFEBRESE (HES
BEAALENHZSESERIERENIEE

ZEBBFAGEBERREEN [HBE
BUA (B F8] -

Z BB ALE
NI

BEEREEANHEK

%A B B3E520,222,0008TT (B —4F :
3,495,000/ 7T) MYTUEAPK AN B4 - W E AT
MNRBEBRREEA [EEMRAE] -

WEBOR 2 KA HRAEEERETR
RIFERBEFOKFE -

160 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED 3 S ED 2 B 5 BR 2 & / Annual Report EE ¥R 2021 / 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 = B R

30 June 2022

—E__FRA=1H
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. EMEMA
2022 2021
g8 T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBEZHE 6,281 907
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9. EERITHATEMH
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BHE LA - BAE R EEHIE 383(1)@)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (), L) OROHERAR (KEEEFZER)
(c) and (9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 FRBIE 2T BERFNE S K1 TBARH B
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of LUNNE
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Fees we 1,059 844
Other emoluments: B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYEF 48,566 22,525
Pension scheme contributions RIRBETEIHEK 21 35
48,587 22,560
49,646 23,404
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FASTNTFRLIERTESNEES ]
during the year were as follows: N
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry RETTEE 253 112
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis KRR L 163 112
Mr. Wong Kam Fal HIRMBLE
(Appointed on 1 October 2020) (RZZEZTF+HA—HEZMT) 163 84
Mr. Ho Yuk Chi g E T4
(Resigned on 30 September 2020) (RZZEZZEFALA=THEFT) - 56
579 364

161



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIE AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E__FRA=1H
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9. EERITHAREM =)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Con )
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFEHITESE &)
(Continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRABIEARBYIFRTESZNE
independent non-executive directors during the year (2021 e (ZE=—F : ) -
N,
(b) Executive directors (b) BITESE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e MR Bir&
e BYEHAN FTEIfAER 4z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
2022 —E-_C—F
Executive directors: WITESE
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang BeR 881 A S E 120 27,462 - 27,582
Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond ~ BREA £ 4 120 3,380 - 3,500
Mr. Chan Chi Ming EBRSAE 120 3,588 - 3,708
Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin* [ e o 120 14,136 21 14,277
480 48,566 21 49,067
2021 —E-—F
Executive directors: WITESE :
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang PR A ST 120 11,351 = 11,471
Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond ~ BR&EAE LA 120 2,125 = 2,245
Mr. Chan Chi Ming BRARFA L A 120 2,138 14 2072
Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin* PBRAZER SR A 120 6,911 21 7,052
480 22,525 8% 23,040

*

Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin, who acts as an executive
director of the Company, is also the chief executive officer
of the Company.

* REBEEEEADRRITESRFR

1T,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 9.

10

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors (Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2021 four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining one (2021: one) non-director, highest paid employee
are as follows:

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

EERITHRARFHM @

(b) HITES (#)
FA - EEMETLRERELRE
PR A

FRAEERERESNHH
1E R INAZ SR B h0 A By 10 22 B S B
B -

10. TR HESE

FAN A ERHEERENS (ZT=Z—
F:OF) EE - AFHFEHN EXME
Q- FAMB T —HB(ZTE=Z—F: —H)
IEEERFTEENFTIFEIHET

2022 2021

—E-8® —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REREYEF 752 746
Performance-related bonuses FIBMEEEIEA 203 76
Pension scheme contributions RIS ET B R 18 18
973 840

The number of non-director, highest paid employee whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

BRUTHEANNFEEERSFEEA
Eg N

Number of employees

EEAH"
2022 2021
—E-8F B
Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
non-director highest paid employee as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FR AREBEANFESESFERX
EB - 1E R DA A 52 B 3K A0 A B 1O 22 B
SkBERAHIE -
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S5 R B o

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

11. INCOME TAX 11. FiBH

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BV, the Group is not subject to any income tax in such
jurisdictions. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits

REREFEREBHERREFERD IO
B AKRBHAERNZEREERBREM
Fiedi- FR BAEMNSHERARERE
AT R B AR 16.5% (= F = —
F:165%) ZHERFREE EAKE
Y E o — K8 A RLE T A IS B R AR

MEAENGERAR - ZMBRRNE
2,000,000 7T (=T = —% : 2,000,000
L) BRRAF AL ERENS.25%(=F

tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000)
of assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%

(2021: 16.5%). The PRC tax has been provided at the rate of ——% :8.25%) §t & - MmiiA 2,000,000
25% (2021: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in TCEER D BIIR16.5% (— T = —4 : 16.5%)
the PRC. BE - REBIERR P EEEN G E
RBRMIZ5%(ZFZ—4F : 25%) 2
KET IR -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Current — Hong Kong NER - BB
Charge for the year FAMAX 29,846 13,139
Overprovision in prior years BAFERERE (145) (14)

Current — PRC NS
Charge for the year FREX 151 3,418
Deferred (note 24) RIE (Kiat24) (3,300) (593)
Total tax charge for the year FRFIBR L B 26,552 15,950
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% e 2= Fd e

11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

12

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is

as follows:

11. FIBH =)
AR A T 2R3 P A B B A 1 e 75
SEBREERHENHSESUENT -

=

30 June 2022
FXA=1+H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Profit before tax R 5 A g 142,332 93,782
Tax at the statutory tax rates of BAREEEEEEMETED
different jurisdictions i1E 20,776 16,284
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority 15 E BB X (165) (165)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT FEMRIEAFIERE
previous years (145) (14)
Income not subject to tax BERBRBA (460) (1,125)
Expenses not deductible for tax DEELE 1,588 gr2
Temporary differences not recognised AIER B =TS 4,958 -
Others i - @)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate EAEBEBRRE187%
of 18.7% (2021: 17.0%) ZTE-—F 1 17.0%) 5HEH
BHBFX 26,552 15,950
DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interim — HK1.8 cents (2021: HK1.5 cents) P — BT RAR 1.88 1L
per ordinary share (ZZE=—F 1 1.55) 8,640 7,200
Proposed final — HK6.8 cents EEARH — SlREmEke.sEL
(2021: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share ZEZ—F 1 4.0540) 32,640 19,200
41,280 26,400

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

REFEBRBRE AR EREBIRBF KR
G LEARRBRROIER T AEER ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIE AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 480,000,000 (2021: 480,000,000) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic eamings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2022 and 2021
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 30 June 2022
and 2021.

The calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share is based

13. ZIKJ’D\EBHE%EAEE{E%HQE
F

BREAEFHSEIRBEARQ ARERS
EABEEEENRERNDRITE BB
DN AE I 15 £480,000,000% (=T = — 4 :
480,000,000 %) 5+ & -

AR AREEHE T _—_FR_T_—%F
ANAZTHEHLEFEHEERHTBELEE
Taik AT EpEETEEEE_T
T ERZEBE-—FRXA=ZTHIEFEM
VN FRERZAEL FE -

BREAREERNIRE TISHAE

on:
2022 2021
—E-CfF —E-—fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
Earnings BH
Profit attributable to equity holders AR BIHERH ARG R
of the Company 115,780 77,832

Number of shares

BB EE
2022 2021
g T4
Shares gh)
Weighted average number of ordinary FREETEBRME T
shares in issue during the years 480,000,000 480,000,000
HK cents HK cents
Bl JEN
Eamings per share B AR
Basic and diluted ERREE 24.12 16.22
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% e 2= Fd e

30 June 2022

—EZFRA=1+H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - BENRKRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
Buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Total
B #ER
BF AEEE  HEREE  BOEREB RE @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz:23 FAT FET AT FEn Z.23
30June 2022 “E--FRAZ1A
A30 June 2021 and RoE--E~AZHEK
at 1 duly 2021; “E-EHA-R:
Cost A 462 304 195,826 16,474 9,542 222,698
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (400) (394) (128,912) (12,663) (8,278) (150,647)
Net camying amount EmFE 62 - 66,914 3,811 1,264 72,051
ATy 2021, net of acoumulated RZE--FtA-A-
depreciation hging 62 - 66,014 3,811 1,264 72,051
Additions g - 14,913 48,069 4,470 1,333 68,785
Disposals e - - (1,817) (1) (26) (1,844)
Depreciation provided during ERfTERE
e year 6] (961) (8,208) (1,415) (524) (11,111)
Bxchange realignment EiAE 2 (430) (3,460) (214) (63) (4,169)
A30 June 2022, net of RZF-=FRAZ1A"
acoumulated depreciation hging 57 13,522 101,498 6,651 1,984 123,712
At30 June 2022: RZF-ZERAZTH:
Cost A 446 14,850 219,536 19,559 10,475 264,866
Acournulated depreciation ZiHE (389) (1,328) (118,038) (12,908) (8491)  (141,154)
Net camying amount FmEE 57 13,522 101,498 6,651 1,984 123,712
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FIE AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ - BMERRE @

(Continued)
Fumiture,
fitures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
Buidings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
il %ER
BF REXE  BRRES  BOZR g @t
HK8000 HK8000 HK$000 HK8000 HK8000 HK$ 000
A AT A1 AT AT AT
30 dune 2021 “E--F7A=1R
At July 2020: R-Z-ZELA-A:
Cost A 412 3% 167,732 14,19 9512 192,249
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (352 (3%9) (112,448 10,105) 8,321) (131,624)
Net canying amount BEE 60 - 55,284 4000 1,191 60,625
At 1 July 2020, net of accumuated RZFZZECA-A-
depreciation il 60 = 55,084 4090 1191 60,625
Addiions AE - - 12116 %8 47 13,501
Disposals 5 - - (668) - - (369)
Depreciation provided during ERfTERE
e year ) = (6,944) (1,657) (449) 9.048)
Bxchange realignment g 7 - 7026 410 % 7541
430 June 2021, net of RZB=-F7A=TR-
acoumulated depreciation il e 6 - 66,914 3811 1,264 72,051
A30 June 2021; RZB=-FrA=TA:
Cost A 462 304 195,826 16,474 9542 200,68
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (400) (304 (128912 12,689 8279 (150,647)
Nt camying amount KEAE 62 - 66914 3811 1,264 72,051
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15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various buildings used in
its operations. Leases of buildings generally have lease terms
between 1 and 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. A&

By 755 R AR Y &

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

AEEEREEA

(a)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

AEBERARNEEBEEEZSHETRIL
HEAK - BF2EABMABENF1E10%5F -
—RiME - AEBNRFRANEEAIINZ A
TEENHEEEERE -

ERRRE
ER - AEEFRREEEYFEER
BRI -

Buildings

BF

HK$'000

FHET

As at 1 July 2020 R-ZE-_ZFtHA—H 17,789

Additions NE 1,747

Depreciation charge e (11,570)

Exchange realignment PE H TR 1,684
As at 30 June 2021 and R=ZB-—FXA=1+HE

1 July 2021 R-ZE-_—FtH—H 9,650

Additions = 139,982

Depreciation charge e (19,221)

Exchange realignment P& 5 AR (3,038)

As at 30 June 2022 R-ZEZZFXA=1H

127,373
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S5 R B o

30 June 2022
—E-_—_F,XA=+H
15. LEASES (Continved 15. 8 »)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERAEBAA ®)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the

b) HEEE

FA HEREZHREERFAZES

movements during the year are as follows: HIT -
2022 2021
—E-8® T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FHET
As at 1 July KtA—H 10,170 19,275
Additions NE 125,880 1,747
Accretion of interest recognised during 4 A B FERRF &
the year (note 8) #& (K728) 6,281 907
Payments ENEN (10,579) (13,443)
Exchange realignment PE 5 AR (3,150) 1,684
As at 30 June MRABA=+H 128,602 10,170
Analysed into: DA -
Current liabilities mENEB 1D 7,514 10,087
Non-current liabilities FEmENED 1D 121,088 83
Within one year —FR 7,514 10,087
In the second year F-F 7,969 83
In the third to fifth years F=ZERF 34,647 =
Over five years HBiEAF 78,472 =
128,602 10,170
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBEZHBHBERD TR EHRE

32 1o the financial statements.

MiEEG2 R EE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 = B R

30 June 2022

—E__FRA=1H
15. LEASES (Continued) 15. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEEERAEBA &)
(¢) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) REZRHEERRZSBEHIIWT
leases are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBZFE 6,281 907
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FAEEEZITEER 19,221 11,570
Expense relating to short-term leases IS KR TAEER
(included in administrative expenses)* (FEATTERRAZR) 7,674 3,193
Expenses relating to low-value assets REEEEMBERX
(included in administrative expenses)* GTATTERAZA)* 23 23
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R8BS FER B 33,199 15,693
* Included in “Lease payments not included in the * AATRERES @RI ETA
measurement of lease liabilities” in note 7 to the financial ZHERK]  FEERTBRE W
statements. T e
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 27(0o) (d HEEZRERHEENMBREMT
to the financial statements. 27(0) B FE -
16. INTANGIBLE ASSET 16. B E=E
Club membership
REIEsE
2022 2021
TEDCfF T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 1 July BtA—H 2,700 2,700
Less: Impairment loss (note 7) B OREEE (K 7) (563) =
As at 30 June ®ANA=+H 2,137 2,700
As at 30 June: BANA=+H
Cost B AR 2,700 2,700
Less: Accumulated impairment o REHRE (563) =
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,137 2,700
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S5 A B EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSET

17

(Continued)
The Group has classified the acquired club membership as an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life in accordance with
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that
the club membership has no expiry date and is expected to
generate future economic benefits to the Group indefinitely. The
Group re-evaluates the useful life of the club membership each
year 1o determine whether events or circumstances continue to
support the view of the indefinite useful life of the asset.

During the year, the club membership was impaired due to
the decrease in market value. The directors had consequently
determined to recognise an impairment loss of HK$563,000
on the club membership and its recoverable amount of
HK$2,137,000 was determined using the fair value less costs
of disposal with reference to the market price quoted for the
relevant club membership.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

16.

17.

BILEE #)

AEECREBETESENERBRELE
EREBNERLT RO BRABEEMR
REHNETEE - HWIHARNEXHBEE
WEERBH BRHERAAEEES
BERQEND AEESFEHFEEL
BeENERFEH UETREFFMHNL
BREEHZEERBR ERASEH -

FR eEBGRENETERK - 25
BE 1% B 753 2 45 7 )5 (B /85 18 563,000 7% 7T
WRERBBESEMETE  FRAFE
BERELERAETHEMNATHNE SR
2,137,000/ 7T °

AFEEFABRENEHE

it S

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Unlisted fund investment ELTESERE 9,884 10,588

The above investment was classified as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest. The fair value of the
unlisted fund investment is determined by its net asset value
quoted by the investment administrator of the investment fund
with reference to the underlying assets of the fund.

HREAREZANRERETEELAS
RFABWMMNR REREFBREATE
EFf ABRNEREE - FETEESRE
MAFEERHREEASHRETEER
HES ZHBEEENFEEEBEMARE

472 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED 37 8 £l 2B PR 2 & / Annual Report & B4 2021/ 2022



18.

19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022

—E-_FXA=1+H
INVENTORIES 18. 7 &

2022 2021
—g-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 28,451 28,203
Work in progress ERm 15,905 11,691
Finished goods B 21,546 27,185
65,902 67,079

TRADE RECEIVABLES 9. EZ B
2022 2021
—E-- T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables E 5 W GRE 79,682 81,930

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit.
The credit period is generally one month, extending up to three
months for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a policy to manage its risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
As at 30 June 2022, the Group had certain concentrations of
credit risk as 55% (2021: 52%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from one of the Group's major customers. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

AEFBEARFPHNEBESIBRREZEBNEE
H-FEHRTA—EA REZLERE=
BA(MEEREFPME) - BEREFPEERS
EEREE - NEBBE AR E M KREERE
WIS BRIS M ETE - WRBBURULE
BHERK ALt AEERETHE
BM-RZTE=-Z=—FA=1+H ~5%E85H
ETEESTRAR REAZAEEMEK
BHRM 2% (ZEZ—F 1 52%) A&
WAREB —REERF ZHE - NEBEIL
AREZ SR KIELEHBEEEWERR
HEMIEREETLR - B S EUGRIA TR

B o
o
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B HRAR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (conin

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

. BEZRWRIE (@)

RBEHR RERZAH2INES R

WRIRHIBREC AT AT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —@mAR 59,923 41,296
1 to 2 months —Z=mMEA 14,508 32,082
2 to 3 months MZE=MEA 4,680 6,815
Over 3 months BiB=1EA 571 1,737
79,682 81,930

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. The expected credit loss for the Group’s trade
receivables is minimal.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on payment due date, is as follows:

REREAH  NEBEERBREBEREET
BMESMAGERREERE - BHEXE
REBBRUBERANSERTFE 2 A
AIH) B HR B o FXET B RBR T L R AR AS
R -EBEREERNBREAHNTESH
BB F M - BRI BOR R E MR
BRANAEREREMN - —RME - B
FEM IR BB —F R T LAMEE - B
PNRBREHHMITE -

AEBEAECENBT BB RE LS
OMMEMFBEMEEEBZRE - ZER
RFARAERZRYFARAE2HMBRHE
BEE - AEENE S EKRFIRNELE
EEERTRE -

RBEHR REBBEH2INEZE
WORIRHI BREC DT AT

2022 2021

—E-= T —%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current BNEA 68,997 54,878
Less than 1 month D18 A 8,654 22,801
1 to 3 months 12318A 1,634 2,680
Over 3 months BiBeEA 397 1,571
79,682 81,930
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022
T _FNA=1H

20. ANRIE - ZE R HHEKRK

OTHER RECEIVABLES b= |
2022 2021
—E-_C B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Prepayments AR 52,051 27,492
Deposits and other receivables e K E AR IE 13,122 9,602
65,173 37,094
Less: Non-current prepayments and deposits 8 : JERBITEN FIB RIE S (53,130) (32,112)
12,043 4,982

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and third parties and value-added
tax recoverable. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The expected credit loss for the
Group’s deposits and other receivables is minimal.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts.

As at 30 June 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was assessed
to be minimal.

ReRhAEMERFEZTZEEERS  #
EERE=TRERATHEEEER - RE
HEBH FEERBEERITLZER
SEBEBERTSETRES N - B8
TH—;E’\L H—rﬂﬁﬂfﬁm%%}iﬁ% ﬁﬁﬂiﬁiﬁ
E‘nﬂﬁ%”&mﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%@ﬂé%ﬁ °

FABEMEBRLRE - LI ERATE
S BE B ML B 8 R GRG0
BB ENOR -

H/Q\—?——&—v— ﬁf/\ﬂ +E| Eﬁ
BT BB -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 A B EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. REeRFESZEYUARZRF

RESTRICTED CASH BHe
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTA 54,122 33,629
Time deposits EHFR 183,306 170,800
237,428 204,429
Less: Restricted cash W ZBRFIRE (269) 919)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 237,159 203,510

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”)
amounted to HK$7,716,000 (2021: HK$8,223,000), which
are not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with a creditworthy bank with no
recent history of default.

RBER AEBMUARE [ARE])
FEMNRERREEEYRT7,716,000% T
TE -4 :8223000/87T)  TBAEMA
HpBHEMER R RIERE AN
BTG RAERE SERMESER
T AEE BB EITINEEFH AR
TARE SR AEMER -

RITRSREREARITHERN XA ZH
FRBRERA S - EEEMERENF —
HER=ZEANZHHRREFE BFAEE
MERREFR) - WiRBBOEHERE
KA R BRI B, o RITAERR R E MTF 377
ENMEER T B BT R R ERAOIRTT -
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22,

23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

22, ESREANRIE
RBEER BREREAHLINBSE
NRIBHBE ST -

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —EAR 21,870 20,779
1 to 2 months —EMEA 9,057 7,128
2 to 3 months MZE=MEA 351 934
Over 3 months BiB=1EA 285 83
31,563 28,924

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within three months.

% 5 RE R 8RB R R = A A A
i -

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HittERRIBERETER
2022 2021
—E--F —E-—1F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 FET FET
Other payables H e3R8 (@) 874 307
Contract liabilities aREaRE b) 435 1,089
Accruals EEtE R 43,142 35,446
Deferred government grants IERE R AT 47 B 1,793 =
46,244 36,842
Less: Non-current other payable W IER BV E M RS 5K IE (1,602) =
44,642 36,842

Notes: k3

(a) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of one month.

(b) Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from
delivering products. At 1 July 2020, contract liabilites amounted to
approximately HK$3,503,000. The decreases in contract liabilities
in 2022 and 2021 were mainly due to the decreases in short-
term advances received from customers in relation to the sale of
products at the end of the year.

@ EHMENRETFHEERFHHRS—E
=18

b)) AHABERERNERAKEMNSEHR
R -RZTE_TFLA—HB GHAEE
#) /35030008 T —_E-_FR T
ZFENEBRL I EEHRBFARE
EEmATP WA EBRTRD -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 A B EE

30 June 2022
—EZFRA=1+H
24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EERHIE

The movements of the deferred tax assets and liability during the

year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Loss available

FRBRERBEEEMAENEFNOT

ELERBAEE

for offsetting
against future Lease
taxable profits Provisions liabilities Others Total
FEAESH
ARERH
BANEER BE HEEE Hith @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2020 WZEZTF
+A—H = 3,211 370 192 3,773
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profitorloss 5t A/ (1B &) &R
during the year (note 11) BHNEERE
(Hiz#11) - 984 (277) (177) 530
Exchange realignment X AR - 357 27 = 384
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZZE-—F<A
=tRR=Z=-%
+A—H - 4,552 120 15 4,687
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to profitorloss 5t A/ (1B &) &R
during the year (note 11) BEAETHE
(Hizt11) 7,824 (4,733) 190 14 3,295
Exchange realignment ERAR (220) 181 (5) - (44)
At 30 June 2022 eSS
NA=TH 7,604 - 305 29 7,938

478 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED %7 % £ 25 IR 2 & / Annual Report FE 3R 2021 /2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% e 2= Fd e

30 June 2022

—E__FRA=1H
24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24. RENHIE (&)
Deferred tax liability EERIEEE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation
# AR E
WiTERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2020 R-ZT-_TFLHA—H 68
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during FTAFRNIB=ARERIR (M 717)
the year (note 11) (63)
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZZEZ—FA=+HK
—T=-—FtHA—H 5
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during FTAFNIB=ARERIE (ML 717)
the year (note 117) (5)
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZFXA=1+AH -
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the WA TIEE BRELEHIEEE -
following items:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Tax losses Y = 8,779 =
Deductible temporary differences AR ERER 11,053 =
19,832 -
The above tax losses arising in Mainland China will expire in one LERPEEENREBE  #§R—=8
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred FRZH A B EE AR RERT @ A o I
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above EHALBERRAELERIBEEE  BETR
items as it is not considered probable that sufficient future B A REE Fo R 2 AR R FE AR i ) DA 3
taxable profits will be avallable against which the above items can SHAEIER °
be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRAR M EE

SOJune 2022
—E-_FXA=1+H

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liability (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earmings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2022, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such eamings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in the
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$2,633,000
(2021: HK$3,267,000) as at 30 June 2022,

24. FEEHIE (&)

EEBIEEE (#)

REBTEEPEMEIE ERERTRH
BAARIINECENINEREENRE
BU10%TEMH - ZREH_FTTNF—
A—BRER @BAR_ZTLF+_-A
=t RZENAFN - 5 E A ESNE
KREENREER ZMATARBIRLY - 8
BRAMEIARELARD - LAKHE - @&
ARERE% - At AREAHZFR T E
NBRIWNMBARR —ZTTNF— A —
B 1R B A ) BN P IR B P BB RO ©

RZZ-—FB=1+8B HBERLEE
PR B Ay it BT 5 B B 8 B R BB LR &R (B
B MEMENRERECHRE -&E5
w#'j RAl REK - ZEHBABTKAA
BEREAERMN RZTEZZ_F A=+
EI + 4 T SRR AE T IE B B A R B A b B
BARKREMARNERZERESTA
472,633,000 (ZZT = —4F : 3,267,000
BIT)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022

ZEZZFRA=TH
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. A&
2022 2021
—g-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: VEIE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000 &
of HK$0.01 each FRREMEO0.01 B ITH T imR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRERE:
480,000,000 ordinary shares 480,000,000 A%
of HK$0.01 each FEREEOC.01 BTN E R 4,800 4,800

26. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration paid
for the reorganisation, the capitalisation issue and the initial
public offering.

Other reserve

The balance of the other reserve represents the difference
between the aggregate of the paid-up share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
pursuant to the reorganisation undergone by the Group.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.

26. #E&
AEBMAREE LATEENREREE
BHOE2IRNGAERBBER -

(a)

(b)

(c)

1 47 (B

B EERERTRONEABSERE
A AMMCBETRERDMAEEMT
MR EZE0EHR -

Hitbf# e
RIEAEBOEM - HAbE RS
BB I 2 7] 2 4R R A A R R A
RARRIBZERAT D BITRAZ
A EH -

B 5K E
X RBREREREINEEBM B
BERMELWAMBHBELZRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 A B EE

30 June 2022
T _FNA=1H

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from (a) MEETEELENEEEH

financing activities

27. ZREBEEHRERMEE

Lease liabilities

HEAE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2020 R-ZZ_ZFt+H—H 19,275
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREE (12,536)
New leases Mg 1,747
Exchange realignment e P 1,684
Interest expenses FMEZ 907
Interest paid classified as operating DEAKEFYRERZENFE
cash flows (907)
At 30 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZEZ—FRA=+AK
RZE-_—FtH—H 10,170
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREZD) (4,298)
New leases e 125,880
Exchange realignment P H AR (3,150)
Interest expenses B 6,281
Interest paid classified as operating DHERKEFHRERZEMNFILE
cash flows (6,281)
At 30 June 2022 R-ZZB-_ZFRA=1H 128,602
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEZHERLHAEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the AR REABREMNHEZRERH
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: BEEES AT
2022 2021
—g-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Within operating activities BEEEN 13,978 4,123
Within financing activities BERENA 4,208 12,636
18,276 16,659
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Major non-cash transactions

U

(i

)

During the year, the Group has non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$139,982,000 (2021: HK$1,747,000) and
HK$125,880,000 (2021: HK$1,747,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for buildings. The additions to right-of-use assets
included the transfer of rental deposits from
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
HK$ 14,102,000 (2021: Nil) during the year.

During the year, the Group has recognised the
estimated obligations, included in property, plant
and equipment and other payables and accruals of
HK$2,055,000 and HK$2,055,000, respectively, to
dismantle, remove, restore certain items of property,
plant and equipment in respect of premises under
lease arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, interest income
of HK$702,000 (2021: Nil) was not yet received
and was recognised in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables.

28. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

27. RERERERMT @)

(c) FEHFBRERS

0 RER AEEREFHER
O ERAREEREEARN
FEIR SR E 7 5l A 139,982,000
BT (ZZ = —4 1,747,000
7 7T) } 125,880,000 7T (=
T — — 4F 1,747,000 TT) °
RERN  FAREEZRER
FEHBENREBE B REM
Bl REFELHSREA
14,102,000 (Z T = —4F :
/) o

i RER AEBEEBERGTE
% PEEME - BERRE
MEMEMFERESER
F o D Rl A2055000% T K
2,055,000 7T+ LA #F Bk - IR
B -BEETYE BERR
HEEERHEETHETER -

(i)  AIFREHEIR - M ARUEF B
AT702,0008 T (ZFE = —4F:
) WRTEMER  EeRkHE
h FE U RIE R HERR ©

28. e
RIBEEFR - NEEG U TEAASE -

2022 2021
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Contracted, but not provided for: ETAMBR B
Leasehold improvements HEEE 12,448 =
Plant and machinery R K Es 23,966 20,658
Motor vehicle RE 2,612 =
39,026 20,658




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 A B EE

30 June 2022
ZEZZFRA=TH
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. B TR 5
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) BRTHBREREMBOAFROZS
financial statements, the Group had the following material Sh REBRFRNBEATER T 22
transactions with related parties during the year: AR5 :
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Rental expenses paid to related TN TR ATMNEERS
companies 2,586 2,586
Rental expense paid to a related party T4 FREHE H I ER X 408 408
The rental expenses were paid based on tenancy TEF S TR R AN & B Fff a8 2 7] E1R8
agreements entered into between a subsidiary of the T /NCIE ) D VA= OR -0/
Group and related companies/a related party. fF o
(b) Compensation of key management (b) XEEEXEEEASNEHN
personnel of the Group
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other short-term HFehHMEHEESRA
employee benefits 49,625 23,369
Pension scheme contributions BRI ETEIEK 21 35
Total compensation paid to YRFEEEEABNFH RS
key management personnel 49,646 23,404
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EHRESRITRBEFTMNE — 5
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial BHR I EHREMFE ©

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 7% e 2= Fd e

30 June 2022

—E__FRA=1H
30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 30. ZERESHNEMTE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial U BHREBEAINRERMVEEERNT ¢
statements as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
As at 30 June 2022 R-BZZFXA=t+H
Financial Financial
asset at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAVEER ¢ Eiz[o S
BEARMN SlERH
cREE SREE st
Mandatorily
designated
as such
BEIEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Financial asset at fair value through BATEEFABEN
profit or loss TRHEE 9,884 - 9,884
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE - 79,682 79,682
Financial assets included in FTAENRE - B2k
prepayments, deposits and other H At FE R IE Y
receivables SREE - 13,122 13,122
Restricted cash XREHR 2 - 269 269
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBReFEY - 237,159 237,159
9,884 330,232 340,116
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIE AR M EE

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

30. REHETHE/MTE (&)

CATEGORY (Continued)
As at 30 June 2021 RZEZ—FA=+H
Financial Financial
asset at far assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BRTEER TRE SHAK AR
BaARD FIERHY
CREE CREE #at
Mandatorily
designated
as such
5E e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TFET
Financial asset at fair value through BATEBERFABRER
profit or loss CREE 10,588 - 10,588
Trade receivables 2 5 RYGRIE - 81,930 81,930
Financial assets included in FSPAEMRE RER
prepayments, deposits and other H At FEUFRIE R
receivables TREE - 9,602 9,602
Restricted cash XRHE e - 919 919
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR EEY - 203,510 203,510
10,588 295,967 306,549
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 = B R

CATEGORY (Continued)

30 June 2022

—E-_—_FXA=+H

30. RERETHEEMT

H /#)

= (W8 /

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REBHERAIENSREE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade payables =) AN 31,563 28,924

Financial liabilities included in other FTAEMEMFIERETERDY

payables and accruals oA=L 18,023 12,012
Lease liabilities HEAE 128,602 10,170
178,188 51,106

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial asset at fair value through profit or loss was

carried at fair value.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade payables,
lease liabilities, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of non-current deposits have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities, and were assessed to be approximated as

their carrying amounts.

The fair value of the unlisted fund investment is determined by its
net asset values quoted by the investment administrator of the
investment fund with reference to the underlying assets of the

funds.

R

ARFAEFER ©

HRE - EHREMKR

Eod
7

WihEt AR ERS

EEEMRE -

1. ERMITENAFERAEE

AEBZRAFEEFAEENSHEE

BEEREMNMG ReLREFEYW XK
B 5 B OR
MEBE  ANFR ReREMEBER
HANSBEENREMENIEA - Bt
ERANEZREE AV EREKEER
o NDTEARZETAIHABEME -

FERBERORFETIZEREEBLUE
X EERREGTEHHROTARA
ARONETRERRARRESREFE -

FLTESRENAFEERUKEREES
MREEEERILESZHABEENFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 R B o

30 June 2022
—E__FRA=1H
31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 1. e T AN AFEERAFE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 2 4E )
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy AR EEE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement THRETASEEeHIANATETER
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: %
Asset measured at fair value: RAOFEFENEE
As at 30 June 2022 RZTZZFA=1+H
Fair value measurement using
ATEFERA
Quoted Significant  Significant
pricesin  observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SER BEATEE  EATAUR
TiERE WAE ZHWAE
(25— (B5=F8) (B=®E) st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAET FAET
Financial asset at fair value BATEEFABRZN
through profit or loss SREE - - 9,884 9,884
Asset measured at fair value: BRAFEIENEE:
As at 30 June 2021 RZZT=Z—F-A=+H
Fair value measurement using
ATEHBRA
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR BRAER EATAH
Mi5HE BAE R AE
(B—F) (=) (=) et
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Financial asset at fair value BATEEFABRZN
through profit or loss CREE - = 10,588 10,588

488 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED %7 % £ 25 IR 2 & / Annual Report FE#é& 2021 /2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

32

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during
the year are as follows:

31.

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

EMIENDAFEFERAFEE
B

DR ERE (7
FRBZERNATEEHEZEHNOT

2022 2021

—E-F T —%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 July W+EA—H 10,588 -
Transferred from Level 2 BE_EBREA - 10,039
Total gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss RIBEER W (Fi18) 85 (704) 549
At 30 June WANA=+H 9,884 10,588

The Group did not have any financial liabilites measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2022 and 2021.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer
into or out of Level 3. In the prior year, a financial asset of
HK$10,039,000 was transferred from Level 2 into Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
receivables, deposits, trade payables and certain other payables,
lease liabilities, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations.

32.

R-EBE-_—_FR-_FT-_—F<A=+H"
AEEMETMZATEAEZEMAE -

FR FRF_BAFEEFAEZHE
WHEER BB ARBERE=E - &
=, L EEA10,039,0008 THELREE
BE-_EEBAF=E-

MHEREERFERBK

FEETEN SR IABEERATEE
AAABENEREE  B5 REMEKK
BB BEHEMNFERETHMEN
RE MERE XRGBEURBER
ReEEY ZEERIANTIRZENSR
EEAEBREMTES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S5 R B o

30 June 2022
—E-_—_FXA=+H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. K EREREBBERBER (@)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continue
Iltis, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group's
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has foreign currency exposures, which mainly arise
from monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. The Group currently has no particular
hedging vehicles to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.
The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities
held in currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level.

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group
does not expect any significant movement in the USD and HK$
exchange rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the Company’s equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

REFACQEFERN  AEEZBRR TR
ETWMTAZEE  MUETAE-EHBX -

AEESRIAEEANTIERRBINER
B EEERREABDECRR EFEF
kB ERBEESHEZFRARABR
Higta T -

S BE LB

AEEEEIMNERE - EBREUEITIA
INEEFAENEREERAEG AKER
Al 30 858 P R E S0 T A SR OMNE R -
AEEETEHRITAETAINEERFH
EREERAE  BRAENFERER
AR IR o

mMRBTEREX THE Rt AKER
T RABTEX TG HRERNENRE -

TERMABRAREEZTNSEAEE
B RAAAEEMBERRFTENERLT
HAKERRERROBHRANEN (ARE
BEENBBZATERE) RARRER
(AREREERBBEZAFEREY) K
RE DT ©

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in rate before tax in equity*
= RRBE A F xR
EH(FE) 20, () #wh, Gl *
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
As at 30 June 2022 i
~A=+H
If HK$ weakens against RVIB WABETREARBEE 5 (2,031) -
If HK$ strengthens against RMB fim’S T HAREAE (5) 2,031 -
As at 30 June 2021 R-ZZE——4F
~A=+H
If HKS$ weakens against RVIB BT ARERE 5 3,527 =
If HKS strengthens against RMB BT AREHE 5) (3,527) =

) Excluding retained profits * TEIERE &= T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 30 June. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 30 June 2022

By 755 R AR Y &

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

2. IKEREERERBE #®)

FERR

AEEERZRA FERENE=TXR
5 AREHNBRBEHELEANER
ZRERIGRBEERAOERBHEE
FEERERF - N BREKRSRTE
EERAEENZRARY TEX -

RS R FRER
TRINNERARBEEERRNEEER
RFFERNRSEERR  DEEERE
HER (RIFEFHHBSZRAHE N
EREMERN) RRANA=+BNFEREER
DHEEE -2 cBEATREENERER
#E -

R-BZZ=FXA=t+H

12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses
12184 24
BEHEERE RHEEERSE
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
P ER 1 SR 47 st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade receivables® B 5 e RIE - 79,682 79,682
Financial assets included in SPABRRIE  &e
prepayments, deposits and Ko E At FE UK IE A
other receivables TREE
— Normal** —FE*> 13,122 - 13,122
Restricted cash XRHE e
— Not yet past due — AR EE 269 - 269
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY
— Not yet past due — AR EE 237,159 - 237,159
250,550 79,682 330,232
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continueq)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

32. IEBREEEEREE &)

EERRE @)

BERBKFERER (&)

As at 30 June 2021 RZZZ—FA=+H
12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses
1218 A 2 H
EHEEER BEEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
PR E% 1 & HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET &
Trade receivables* B 5 W RIE" - 81,930 81,930
Financial assets included in FPABMRE  &e
prepayments, deposits and N Ho At FE R IE Y
other receivables SHMEE
— Normal*™* — EF*™ 9,602 - 9,602
Restricted cash XEHRE
— Not yet past due — R 919 = 919
Cash and cash equivalents R kB2 EEY
— Not yet past due — WA 203,510 - 203,510
214,031 81,930 295,961
= For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * RAEBRBABECEZEETRENE S EK

approach for impairment, the expected credit loss for the Group’s
trade receivables is minimal as disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.

= The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables Is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that
the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

ok

FIAME - ARENE 5 RO TEH
EEERMNRE  YRERHMBIREM
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (cont
Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity

of funding and flexibility through the use of funds generated from
operations.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

32.

B RS R M EE

30 June 2022
—E-—_FXA=+H

MEREREERZERBE ®
REBE S AR

AEENEERBREREEMSES
EESZARBEREEE 2 MRS TE -

AEBRHREBRER G HORITRA A
ECREEINHBERNAT

3toless
Less than than 12 1to5 Over 5
Ondemand 3 months months years years Total
3Z12f84
RER  HR3fER T 1%5% BB5E o
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
&L AL FAT FAT FET FET
2022 —E-CE
Trade payables EoRAFTE 21,871 9,057 351 284 - 31,563
Financial liabiities included in FTARMERTER
other payables and accruals A ERNSRBAE - 6,831 11,192 - - 18,023
Lease liabilties HEaE - 4,090 12,186 71,256 91,254 178,786
21,871 19,978 23,729 71,540 91,254 228,372
2021 —E--f
Trade payables BHREAFTE 20,780 8,061 83 - = 28924
Financial iabilties included in FTAEMERTER
other payables and accruals [ ERNERAR = 5,757 6,255 = S 12012
Lease liabities HEAR - 3,434 6,910 84 = 10,428
20,780 17,262 13,248 84 = 51,364
Capital management ERER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem
in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders and retum capital to shareholders. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 June 2022 and
2021,

AEBETEAERIEFEHEREALHE
REFELE  URRRREHERILAEFH
ENEREBIVRIEE KA °

AEBEEREENGHE L EELERRE
BELRE - RERBAABELEE &
SEAEEIABREKNTRROKRESER
MERREMER BE_T-_—FK_F
TERA=TRLEFE BEREANE
1% BERREF W RAE L EE o
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—E-_—_FXA=+H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net

debt divided by the capital plus net debt. Net debt includes

trade payables, other payables and accruals and lease liabilities

less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents the equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at

HERMREEEERBE &)

EXEE @)

AEEFREEABLE (FEBHRNER
WFER) BERER - FEBEIBESHEN
RE - HENREREFEANEER
B RERERREEFEBY -  EXAEAR
AHEAARGEDZ RRERRNEER

the end of the reporting periods are as follows: BT -
2022 2021
—E-= T %
HK$°’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables B 5 e IR 31,563 28,924
Other payables and accruals E e 5RE & ERT & A 46,244 36,842
Lease liabilities HEAE 128,602 10,170
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEEY (237,159) (203,510)
Net debt HHETE (30,750) (127,574)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR BIHEAR A (G2 467,363 385,278
Capital and net debt BEARRFER 436,613 257,704
Gearing ratio BEAMFGLEE N/A T~EA N/A 7~ iE A
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 = B R

30 June 2022

—E-_—_FXA=1+H

33. A AMBIRR R

2022 2021
eS8 —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EREBARZEE 334,059 334,059
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEEFABRN
profit or loss CEEE 9,884 10,588
Total non-current assets IEREBEERE 343,943 344,647
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivable H b fE W5k IE - 125
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUM I B A RIZkIA 140,340 140,420
Bank balance IRITHE R 1,116 490
Total current assets mBEERE 141,456 141,035
Net assets BEFE 485,399 485,682
EQUITY %
Share capital f& A 4,800 4,800
Reserves (note) (K1) 480,599 480,882
Total equity HEm B 485,399 485,682
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

34.

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

33. KR EMBEMRRE 2

Note: Biat:
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AAvIEEREZNT
Retained
Share premium profits Total
B HE REEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FEIT FEIT
At 30 June 2020 RZZE-_TFA=+H 479,712 121 479,833
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A4 ) & 2 BT UL ZS
for the year f@ %’E - 25,049 25,049
Final dividend for 2020 ZETERPRE - (16,800) (16,800)
Interim dividend for 2021 —E_—FhHRE - (7,200) (7,200)
At 80 June 2021 and 1 July 2021 RZTEZ—FA=+H
r=—ZT=-—%F+tA—H 479,712 1,170 480,882
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 Y% K| & & E Uz
for the year FEE - 27,557 27,557
Final dividend for 2021 —E - —FREARE - (19,200) (19,200)
Interim dividend for 2022 —E-__FREKE - (8,640) (8,640)
At 30 June 2022 R-E-_—FxA=1+H 479,712 887 480,599

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 30 September 2022,

34. #HtEBEE

MBBRER-_F__FAA=THKE
FEHEREETIE -
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